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CORPORATE PROFILE
AN

Maoye International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 8 August
2007. The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the operation and management of department stores and
property development in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 5
May 2008 (the “Listing Date”).

With a unique operation model of “retail + commercial property”, the
Group has been growing rapidly since its establishment, and has
achieved scale expansion across the country by duplicating this
model. Supported by lands acquired at low costs, the Group uses its
physical retail to nurture property, building a closed ecological cycle in
which its core business supplements and supports each other.

Since Shenzhen Dongmen store, the first store of the Group,
opened in 1997, the Group has been concentrating on development
and careful planning for over 20 years, and leveraging its strong
competitiveness and reform and innovation keeping pace with
times, the leading position of the Group in Southern China has been
strengthened step by step. The Group has also further expanded into
the most developed markets with the fastest growth rate in Eastern
China, Southwestern China and Northern China, becoming the
industry leader in numbers of regions. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group had 48 stores with total gross floor area of 3.015 million sg.m.,
of which self-owned properties accounted for approximately 78.84% in
gross floor area. The major cities under its coverage include Shenzhen
and Zhuhai in Guangdong; Chengdu, Nanchong and Mianyang in
Sichuan; Chongaging; Wuxi, Yangzhou, Taizhou, Nanjing and Huai'an
in Jiangsu; Zibo, Laiwu and Heze in Shandong; Qinhuangdao and
Baoding in Hebei; Shenyang and Jinzhou in Liaoning; Taiyuan in
Shanxi; and Hohhot and Baotou in Inner Mongolia.

The Group actively grasps the development trend of medium-to-high
end physical retail in China, empowers new retail through the
integration of online and offline advantages and opening up upstream
and downstream channels to create new offline consumption
experience featuring multi-scenario and high efficiency at all times,
and strives to achieve the transformation from traditional department
store retail to new retail.

This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available
on the Company’s website at www.maoye.cn.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of language(s)
(either English only or Chinese only or both languages) of the
corporate communications of the Company (including but not limited
to annual reports, interim reports and circulars) by sending reasonable
prior notice in writing to the share registrar of the Company in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Shareholders who have chosen to receive the Company’s corporate
communications in either English or Chinese version will receive
both English and Chinese versions of this annual report since both
languages are bound together into one booklet.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities and equity for the last 5 financial years is set out below:

SEXNBERLEMBFEENER BE BERESHENOT:

OPERATING RESULTS R 4
For the years ended 31 December
BE12ANALEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
2019 2018%F 20174 2016%F 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
IS ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Restated?)
(BHEM)
Total sales proceeds and HEMGREREERABE
rental income' 15,415,742 15,787,762 15,711,849 13433479 9,362,084
Total operating revenue? A PN ST 7,940,561 7,848,911 7,174,316 6,925,377 4,115,464
Operating profit BENE 2,701,985 3,007,175 2,749,613 1,359,829 995,013
Profit for the year FEFHE 471,046 1,127,221 1,268,409 112,061 289,533
Profit attributable to: FE1EFIZS
- Owners of the parent -BRAEEFEEA 186,262 799,403 1,071,973 46,382 298,627
— Minority interests —-bERRELS 284,784 327,818 196,436 65,679 (9,094)
Basic earnings per share (RMB)  SREXREF (AREL) 0.04 0.16 0.21 0.01 0.06
Total sales proceeds and rental income Total operating revenue
HEMSHRERHEKRAHARE KEWANBRE
ERM;agiHiz;]) ET\MEBQ‘M;) .
A aET) BET
20000 8000 7’8.49 7’9.41
7174
7000 6’%25 Y
15712 15788
O O 15,416
15000 © 6000
13,433
O
5000
4115
10000 9,362 4000 O
O
3000
5000 2000
1000
0 0
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

HIGHLIGHTS OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

2019
20194
RMB’000

ARBTR

FEMBERRREE
As at 31 December
W12A31H
2018 2017 2016 2015
20184 20174 2016%F 20154

RMBO00 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARETRL

(Restated*)
(BHEL)

50,969,724 47,831,805 45975332 31,774,937
35,674,838 34,043,632 33,898,763 22,128,489
15,294,886 13,788,173 12,076,569 9,646,448

12,300,008 11,072,182 10,135,809 8,256,505
2,994,878 2,715,991 1,940,760 1,389,943

Assets and liabilities BERGE
Total assets BESLT 53,830,059
Total liabilities BEET 37,675,030
Total equity ERBEHE 16,155,029
- Attributable to owners —SRAEREHEEA
of the parent JE{hHE R 13,030,346
- Attributable to minority interests ~ — > BUR R E(L R 3,124,683
Notes:

1. Total sales proceeds and rental income represent the sum of total sales
proceeds from concessionaire sales and revenue from direct sales at the
department stores of the Group.

2. Total operating revenue represents the sum of the Group’s revenue and other
income.

3. The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2019 is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of
approximately RMB186,262,000 and weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2018 is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of
approximately RMB799,403,000 and weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2017 is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of
approximately RMB1,071,973,000 and weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2016 is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of
approximately RMB46,382,000 and weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 5,141,489,556.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2015 is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of
approximately RMB298,627,000 and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 5,160,924,290 in issue.

4. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has changed the accounting

policy for investment properties from the cost model to the fair value model, and
accordingly restated the financial report of 2015.
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RETAIL NETWORK

Gross
Floor Area
NO. Store Name Province (sg.m.) Open Date Ownership Retail Format
EEmE
Fi PIESR a6 (FHK) BAXBH MEFRERE X&
1 Shenzhen Dongmen Guangdong 40,709 Mar-1997 Owned Department Store
AR PIE BER 199743 A B8 BE
2 Shenzhen Huagiangbei Guangdong 63,243 Oct-2003 Leased Department Store
RYZE RIS BR 20034104 HE BE
3 Shenzhen Shennan Guangdong 10,507 Dec-2004 Leased Department Store
RYREE BER 20044124 HE BE
4 Shenzhen Nanshan Guangdong 44,871  Sep-2009 Owned Department Store
ARYIEE L E BER 20099 A B8 BE
5 Zhuhai Xiangzhou Guangdong 35,701 Nov-2001 Leased Department Store
WEBEMNE BR 20014114 HE BE
6 Shenzhen Outlet Guangdong 23,141  Dec-1999 Leased Outlets
RN R EFHH S BR 19994124 HE B R AR HT
7 Chongging Jiangbei Chongging 67,537 Oct-2004 Leased Department Store
BEETILE EN 20044104 Gizh—1 BE
8 Rendong Sichuan 31,078 Sep-1998 Owned Department Store
ARIE )l 199849 H B8 =1
9 Guanghua Sichuan 67,914  Dec-2009 Owned Department Store
KEE 7a)l| 2009412 A BA BE
10 Chengdu Chunxi Sichuan 29,866 Nov-2013 Owned Department Store
B ER B BRI 7a)l| 20135114 B8 BE
11 Chengdu Maoye Complex  Sichuan 87,835 Jun-2005 Owned Department Store
BB R 7a)l| 200546 A B& BE
12 Nanchong Wuxing Sichuan 25,695 Nov-2001 Owned Department Store
MEARREE 7a)l| 20014114 BA BE
13 Mianyang Xingda Sichuan 27,795 Sep-2008 Owned Department Store
W5 ELEE 7a)l| 20089 A B8 BE
14 Zibo Maoye Times Square  Shandong 86,677 Feb-2015 Owned Shopping Centre
MIFRERFRES HIER 20155 2H 8A B
15 Laiwu Maoye Complex Shandong 97,132 Dec-2017 Owned Shopping Centre
HEBR TR M R 20174 12A BA BYH o
16 Heze Huihe Shandong 31,187 Mar-2011 Owned Department Store
SHEBAE TS 201143 A B8 BE
17 Zibo Maoye Complex Shandong 100,724  Oct-2010 Owned Department Store
B EE R M IS 20104F10A4 B& =1

6 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED J% % B B 2 f% 45 IR 2 &
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RETAIL NETWORK

Gross
Floor Area
NO. Store Name Province (sg.m.) Open Date Ownership Retail Format
EEEE
Fi PIEER K (FHK) BAXBH MEFRERE X8
18 Zibo Maoye Plaza Shandong 36,791  Nov-2010 Owned Department Store
WEIX R ES TS 20105114 B8 BE
19 Zibo Maoye Taikerong Mall  Shandong 25,337  Nov-2010 Owned Department Store
MIEXERTRES IR 2010411 A 88 ENS
20 Zibo Maoye Shopping Mall  Shandong 9,761 Nov-2010 Leased Department Store
IR R 20105114 HE BE
21 Wuxi Shopping Mall Jiangsu 200,433 Oct-2007 Managed Shopping Centre
BHBYHLO L#R 20074104 EIRE By
22 Taizhou Maoye Complex Jiangsu 86,066 Jan-2015 Owned Shopping Centre
TINLE R TER 20151 A B8 BYH o
23 Nanjing Maoye Complex Jiangsu 88,786 Nov-2016 Owned Department Store
R R E R PR3 20165114 B8 BE
24 Wuxi Yibai Jiangsu 78,695 Mar-2016 Owned Shopping Centre
BHEAERE L#R 201643 A B8 By
25 Yangzhou Wenchang Jiangsu 21,485 May-2011 Owned Shopping Centre
HBINX B & TER 201145 B8 BYH o
26 Taizhou First Department Store Jiangsu 40,358 Oct-2009 Owned Department Store
EME—BE PR3 20094104 B8 BE
27 Huai’an Maoye Complex Shanxi 59,856 Apr-2019 Owned Shopping Centre
LR ERME LEF 20194 A BE BYH D
28 Taiyuan Maoye Complex Shanxi 246,224  Nov-2014 Owned Shopping Centre
KRR 1) 2014114 B8 BYH o
29 Taiyuan Liuxiang Shanxi 31,448 Oct-2008 Owned Department Store
KIEWEE i 2008410 A B8 BE
30 Baotou Maoye Complex Inner Mongolia 62,898 Jan-2017 Owned Shopping Centre
Phase |
BERKE XM —H AES: 201741A B8 B
31 Victory Times City Inner Mongolia 190,915 Nov-2010 Leased Shopping Centre
HEHRRE A 2010114 HE BT
32 Victory Mall City Inner Mongolia 131,987 Dec-2013 Owned Shopping Centre
HE % N EE R AE 20135 12A BA BYH o
33 Baotou Donghe Victory Plaza Inner Mongolia 74,692 Nov-2014 Owned Shopping Centre
BSR4 % F B 5 AES: 20146114 B8 B
34 Victory Commercial Building  Inner Mongolia 44,221  May-2003 Owned Department Store
wZMNEE ARE 2003554 BE BE
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RETAIL NETWORK

ZEHAS
Gross
Floor Area
NO. Store Name Province (sg.m.) Open Date Ownership Retail Format
EEmE
Fi PIESR a6 (FHK) BAXBH MEFRERE X&
35 Victory International Plaza  Inner Mongolia 83,969 Jan-2008 Owned Department Store
HE T ERESE AE 200851 A B8 BE
36 Victory Shopping Center Inner Mongolia 63,695 Sep-2006 Owned Department Store
HwZTEY B L AERE 200649 A B& BE
37 Baotou Victory Commercial Inner Mongolia 77,500 Oct-2010 Owned Department Store
Building
BBELZNEE AE 20104104 BB BE
38 Shenyang Tiexi Liaoning 48,496 Jul-2012 Owned Outlets
EIS EPE BE 20124 7R BE B 2
39 Jinzhou Maoye Complex Liaoning 48,578 Feb-2019 Owned Shopping Centre
NI E PN BE 201942 A BA BYH o
40 Xiandai Shopping Plaza Hebei 36,926  Jun-2010 Leased Department Store
BREWES Ak 201046 A4 HE BE
41 Qinhuangdao Mall Hebei 26,697 Jun-2010 Owned Department Store
RESEM e 20104 6A BE BE
42 Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Hebei 46,287 Jun-2010 Owned Shopping Centre
ZESTRE e 201046 A BE B
43 Qinhuangdao Jindu Hebei 46,610 Sep-2008 Owned Department Store
ZESRWE e 200849 A B8 BE
44 Hualian Commercial Building Hebei 12,737  Jun-2010 Owned Department Store
EREE S Ak 201046 A BA Els
45 Qinhuangdao Maoye Hebei 10,470 Jun-2010 Owned Supermarket
Supermarket
REBXFEBM Ak 201056 A BA for i
46 Baoding Yanzhao Hebei 61,491 Sep-2014 Owned Department Store
1R E B IR e 201449 A B8 BE
47 Baoding Guomao Hebei 24,826 Dec-2010 Owned Outlets
REBREE A e 2010412 8A B R SR AT
48 Qinhuangdao Maoye Hebei 125,684 Oct-2019 Owned Shopping Centre
Complex
REBKXEXRM e 20194104 BB BYHhL
Note:  During the Reporting Period, as the operating rights of 12 supermarket shops ~ #5f: REHIA - AL RS & WA E 457 226 58

8 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED J% % B B 22 f% 45 IR 22 &

in Hohhot and Baotou in Inner Mangolia were outsourced, thus the shops
above were not included in the 2019 statistics.
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RETAIL NETWORK
TENE

Total Sales Proceeds and
Rental Income in 2019 by Regions

20195 SHEFMBRIER
HEWALFENELL
1% 38%
Eastern China Northern China
R 7
/‘
18%

Southwestern
China
i)
\_/33%
Southern China
#EH
NORTHERN 1t75 EASTERN ¥R SOUTHWEST Fi g
Baotou 58 Zibo 18 Chengdu FX#B
Hohhot FFR1& 4 Heze fNE Mianyang #2355
Qinhuangdao ££5 Nanjing R Chongqing BEF
Baoding fRE Taizhou Z&M Nanchong FE7t
Shenyang Lk Wuxi 85
Jinzhou &%/ Yangzhou 5/ SOUTH ZERg
Taiyuan KR LaiV\./U %ﬁ Shenzhen SEJI
Huai'an 752 Zhuhai %5
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERBEE

In 2019, with the continuous tensions in Sino-US trade relations and
China's economic growth facing downward pressure, the growth in
retail in the PRC slowed down. The total retail sales of social consumer
goods in the PRC in 2019 increased by 8.0% year-on-year, which
was lower than 9.0% in 2018. Although the overall growth in retail
slowed down, specific consumption category maintains solid growth.
In the light of complicated domestic and international situation, the
Group actively responded to the downward pressure in the respective
industry by seizing the trend in consumption upgrade and fully
capturing the potential development opportunities in the retail market.

After years of development, the Group’s physical stores occupied
excellent locations and business areas with crowded passenger
flow. With the salient dividend from offline traffic and the aggregated
effect from being close to business district, the impact from the
stores was constantly growing. In 2019, the Group actively promoted
Maoye Complex project in key cities. Three new shopping centres
were opened during the year. The newly-opened shopping centres
together with the existing stores in the region created an linkage
effect and increased the Group’s market share and consolidated
the Group’s industry leading position in the PRC retail market. At the
same time, in light of the shift of mainstream consumers to young and
trendy consumers, the Group aims to be consumer-oriented. With
differentiated shopping goods and experiential shopping environment,
as well as upgrading measures such as the transformation into
shopping centres and outlets, the consumers’ comprehensive and
refined demands were satisfied.

In 2019, the Group promoted business development of the Company
through adopting various measures. Firstly, the Group promoted data-
driven refined operations, adhered to the core of leading service and
quality first. With a focus on customer experience, we enhance service
quality, optimize product categorization, and broaden business
solicitation channels. Secondly, the Group continued to facilitate the
digital construction of Maoye and construct the digital capability to
achieve “digital retail, intelligent business”, as well as supporting the
upgrade of consumers’ experience at physical store so as to further
explore customer value and support the upgrade in digital retail.
Thirdly, the Group actively established strong brand and product
power by adopting measures such as actively building an efficient
supply chain and conducting self-sourcing and operation. In addition,
the Group adhered to strategies of strengthening fee control and
management and lowering financial leverage to efficiently enhance the
Group's resistance to risks.

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Xk ¥ BIFR 4= AR A A
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERBES

Looking into 2020, despite the impacts from Sino-US trade frictions
and the novel coronavirus (COVID-19), China's economy remains
to be under short term downward pressure. However, the trend of
China's economy remaining stable and prosperous in a long term
will not change. The income of residents will grow further, boosting
consumption capacity and the willingness to spend as consumption
structure continues to upgrade. Optimistic about its business in
the medium and long term, the Group will continue to advance in
developing department malls in a pan-shopping centre manner. By
increasing the number of experiential, personalized and differentiated
products and brands, as well as continuing to uplift the consumers’
experience, customers’ trust and satisfaction will be enhanced. At the
same time, the Group will improve the refined management standard
and save operation cost for further advancement in light asset output
model. Certain non-core assets will be disposed to maximize asset
efficiency and the return to shareholders.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all of our

employees for their dedication and express my gratitude to our
shareholders and customers.

Huang Mao Ru
Chairman

24 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWED

MACRO ECONOMY OVERVIEW

In 2019, under the impacts of both the Sino-US trade frictions
and pressures on domestic economic development, the gross
domestic product of the PRC reached RMB99 trillion, representing
a growth rate of 6.1%, which was the lowest annual growth rate
recorded since 1991.

The retail market of the PRC was also under pressure. The
total retail sales of social consumer goods in the PRC in 2019
increased by 8.0% year-on-year, which was lower than the
increase of 9.0% in 2018. The growth in retail business slowed
down consecutively for the second year. However, compared
to the other markets, the consumer market is still an industry
which is more resistant to risks. In 2019, the contribution rate of
consumption to economic growth was 57.8%, driving economic
growth by 3.5%. Such consumption was the main driving force
underpinning economic growth for the sixth consecutive year.
In 2019, the growth rate of online retail sales of physical goods
continued to slow down and accounted for more than 20% in
total retail sales. The physical retail industry remained as the
mainstream social consumption patterns.

Amidst the general slowdown of macro economic growth, service
consumption continued to increase in proportion and the overall
consumption structure of citizens has upgraded. In addition to the
shift of needs of products to pursuing quality, diversification and
personalization, consumers also valued their shopping experience
during the consumption process. The continuous upgrade in
consumption has become the general trend. Although the growth
in overall sales slowed down, specific types of consumption
maintained solid growth.

12 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED /5 % BB 2 2 5 R A &
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OPERATION REVIEW

In 2019, the Group recorded total operating revenue of
RMB7,940.6 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 1.2%;
a net profit of RMB471.0 million was recorded, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 58.2%. If the impacts from the non-
operating gains and losses and the new Finance Reporting
Standard 16 were excluded, a net profit of RMB679.1 million
would have been recorded, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 9.7%.

During the year under review and under the complicated
domestic and international economic situation, the Group actively
tackled the difficulties in the respective industries by seizing the
trend in consumption upgrade and fully capturing the potential
development opportunities in the retail market. By widening the
regional sales network into the Internet to enhance the scale
effect, enhancing industry transition and upgrade, facilitating
data-driven refined operation and expediting online and offline
mutual promotion and integration, financial leverage was lowered
continuously. Its achievements were mainly reflected in the
following aspects:

1. Widening the shop network by opening three new
“Maoye Complex” shopping malls

During the reporting period, the Group opened three new
shopping malls in three provinces (Liaoning, Jiangsu and
Hebei) to build one-stop shopping malls covering retail,
catering, supermarket, cinema, children’s playground and
other leisure services. At the same time, the malls interacted
with the old stores in the region and established leading
positions in the regional market.

In February 2019, Maoye Complex in Jinzhou, located in
the core business district of Jinzhou City, Liaoning Province,
was officially opened. The project is a signature urban
experiential shopping centre, integrating entertainment, a
cultural museum, swimming pool and gymnasium, cinema
and youth development centre, creating a place for reading,
entertainment and leisure in Jinzhou and a new platform for
leisure activities for families and youth.
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In April 2019, Maoye Complex in Huai'an of Jiangsu Province
was grandly opened. With nearly 100 premium brands, it
offers high-end cinemas, more than ten specialty stores
in cosmetics, baby products, fast fashion and a sports
arena, and is the first shopping mall in Huai'an with industry
standards and a number of premium brands.

In October 2019, Qinhuangdao Maoye Complex in Hebei
Province was officially opened, and the number of visitors on
the opening day exceeded 500,000. Qinhuangdao Maoye
Complex is located in the largest leading “urban complex” in
Qinhuangdao and planned to accommodate more than 240
brand stores. The opening of Qinhuangdao Maoye Complex
further increased the Group’s market share in Northern China
and consolidated the Group’s industry leading position in the
regional retail market.

As of 31 December 2019, the Group operated in more than
21 cities and managed 48 stores in the PRC, of which 15
stores were shopping centres. The total gross floor area was
approximately 3.015 million sg.m.

Continuing to facilitate business model reform and
further optimize income structure

During the reporting period, the Group continued to facilitate
business model reform by reducing floor area of joint
operations as appropriate and increasing leased floor area,
resulting in a more stable rental-income ratio. Under this
strategy, the Group’s rental income from the stores amounted
to RMB1,117.6 million in 2019, representing a year-on-year
increase of 11.4%.

Secondly, the Group continually optimized the product
category portfolio through increasing the proportion of
product categories with high gross profit such as international
cosmetic products and Internet celebrity food and beverages.
In relation to brand recruitment’s strategy, the Group focuses
on the introduction of cost-effective, young, differentiated
and trendy brands to actively capture the development
opportunities arising from the consumption upgrade at the
moment.
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Digital upgrade of retail of Maoye empowered by big
data

During the reporting period, the Group continued to aim
t “digital retail, intelligent business” and captured new
opportunities in the development of the retail industry.
Through the “Mao Yue Hui (i€ ) ", “Mao Le Hui (K445) "
and “Xiao Hong Mao (/N4Tf%) ” APP or applet, the Group has
constructed a digital operating system to support the upgrade
of consumers’ experience at physical stores so as to further
explore customer value and support the upgrade in digital
retail.

During the reporting period, a total of 77 items about
consumption behaviors such as members’ value contribution,
product preferences, trading behavior and marketing behavior
were added in the membership management system of
“‘Mao Yue Hui”. Member categorization was more refined
and marketing was more precised. With 11 new marketing
approaches in member recruitment including recruitment
gifts for new members and returning members and free gifts
with purchase of a target amount, along with timely statistics
and analysis on the new marketing approaches, stores have
continuously optimized member maintenance and marketing
efforts. In 2019, more than 1 million new members were
recruited, achieving a conversion rate of more than 50% of
new members.

During the reporting period, “Mao Le Hui" online store, a
newly-developed WeChat applet, was launched on 13 April
2019. As at the date of this report, the online store can be
accessed by APP, H5 and Wechat applet. Since the “Mao
Le Hui” beauty applet was published online and utilized
various channels to enhance the promotion power on Weibo,
Xiaohongshu and Douyin, the brand impact from “Mao Le
Hui” was enhanced.

During the reporting period, the “Xiao Hong Mao” merchant
service APP was continuously optimized. On the basis of
the suppliers service platform, new functions were added,
including self-service SMS marketing for merchants, WeChat
customer service, convenient orders inquiry and multi-
channels orders consolidation, optimized product return
managing process and realization of online and systemic
product return managing process. The management
efficiency and service level of merchants were enhanced and
sales performance was improved.
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Meanwhile, as offline retail actively sought changes, the
retail industry anticipated a rebalance between online and
offline retail. In the new retail era, the core variables of the
industry have been transformed into differentiated competitive
advantages of internal leading high-quality enterprises, and
concentration in sectors has increased significantly. The
demand of downstream consumers was more gravitated
towards quality and personalization, and the requirements for
offline retail experiences had become increasingly prominent
under the trend of consumption upgrade. As such, the Group
has continuously carried out measures, such as transforming
into shopping malls, outlets and brand upgrades, in the
past five years, so as to improve its operation, upgrade
its business format, and anticipate new development
opportunities in the new retail era.

Following the changing trend in consumption and
establishing strong brand and product power

During the reporting period, the Group actively established
strong brand and product power by adopting measures such
as actively building an efficient supply chain and conducting
self-sourcing and operation. Regarding supply chain, we
entered into in-depth strategic partnerships with suppliers
by optimizing brand product supply channels based on
consumers’ preference and established a benchmarking
brand mechanism to optimize product categories and explore
derivative products. Regarding self-sourcing and operation,
we actively advanced in our own brand development,
bespoke production from factories and procurement from the
source to enhance our self-sourcing and operation ability as
well as satisfying consumers’ demand for quality products.
At the same time, the Group actively optimized the operating
efficiency of its backstage platforms, enhanced the support in
logistics and delivery, decreased the number of levels in the
supply chain and lowered the procurement cost and operation
fees.
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Strengthening effectiveness of management and
continuing to reduce financial leverage

During the reporting period, the Group maintained the
proportion of gross floor area of self-owned property in stores
at a high level of 78.84% and the proportion of gross floor
area of related party leases reached 85.47%. This could
effectively reduce the impact of price fluctuations in the rental
market and control expenditure. Regarding the operation of
the Company, the Group utilized the strategic integration of
supply chain resources and an effective operation model
to provide resources and management to cross-regional
stores to achieve economies of scale and improve operation
efficiency. Meanwhile, the Group refined the management
of the operation system and financial system as well as
strengthened the refined cost management and control of
cost. The Group also monitored the estimated execution rate
of projects, improved the management organization structure
as well as utilized digital information technology to enhance
and refine the management efficiency.

During the reporting period, the stock pledge ratio of Maoye
Commercial Co., Ltd. (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
600828) continued to decrease. As at 31 December 2019,
the stock pledge ratio was 42.9%, representing a decrease
of 46.8% from the corresponding period of 2018. That ratio
was further decreased to 25.0% on 7 February 2020, which
effectively enhanced the Group’s resistance to risks in the
current situation.
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lll. FUTURE OUTLOOK = RRRBE

In 2020, in light of the impacts from Sino-US trade frictions and
the novel coronavirus pneumonia, China’s economy remains to
be under short term downward pressure. However, the trend
of China's economy remaining stable and prosperous in a long
term will not change. The income of citizens will grow further,
boosting consumption capacity and the willingness to spend
as consumption structure continues to upgrade. With our strive
for implementation in the past few years, we have witnessed
the significant achievements of the Group due to business
transformation. Going forward, the Group will continue to maintain
a steady and solid development strategy. While focusing on the
operation scale and enhancing benefits, business innovation and
transformation will be strengthened, with a focus on the following:

Firstly, continuing to advance the development of department
stores in the form of generic shopping centres, increasing
experiential, personalized and differentiated products and brands,
and continuously enhancing the experience of consumers,
thereby enhancing their trust and satisfaction;

Secondly, actively improving refined operation capabilities,
adhering to the core commitment of service first and quality first.
With a focus on customer experience, we enhance service quality,
optimize product categorization, and broaden business solicitation
channels;

Thirdly, continuing to promote the digital construction of Maoye
so as to establish digital capabilities, implement digital operation
and fully leverage operational advantages bought by big data,
and continuously improve our operational analysis ability and
operational efficiency;

Fourthly, continuously exploring financing channels and
proactively exploring innovative financial instruments to construct
a multi-channel and comprehensive financing system. Debt
structure would be continuously optimized to control financing
cost;

Fifthly, strengthening its effort in disposing of the non-core assets
and further optimizing the cash flow of the Group;

Sixthly, adhering to implementing cost control on various levels
and strengthening fee control and management, lowering
operation cost and enhancing the asset profitability.
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PERFORMANCE OF MAJOR DEPARTMENT STORES' FEMERRA
Total sales
proceeds and Operation Gross Floor
No. Store Name rental income Period? Area
HERBNE
Fi¥  PERR REERALE JE 2 EEEE
(RMB'000) (Years) (sg.m.)
(AR®EFT) (%) (FAHK)
1 Shenzhen Huagiangbei RYIEE S L IR 2,274,160 16.3 63,243
2 Shenzhen Dongmen RYIEPIE 972,367 22.8 40,709
3 Guanghua KEE 929,588 10.1 67,914
4 Shenzhen Nanshan YR LR 921,485 10.3 44,871
5 Victory Commercial Building ~ #%F|@E 840,584 16.7 44,221
6 Victory International Plaza H% BB ES 764,714 12.0 83,969
7 Taizhou First Department Store ZME—FHE 630,179 10.3 40,358
8 Chengdu Maoye Complex FEB X R 532,014 14.6 87,835
9 Taiyuan Maoye Complex RRKERM 787,077 5.1 246,224
10 Victory Shopping Centre HEF B H L 437,315 13.3 63,695
11 Qinhuangdao Jindu ZEESSHE 434,250 11.3 46,610
12 Xiandai Shopping Plaza BREWES 422,649 9.6 36,926
13 Shenzhen Outlets RYI R AR A 412,692 20.1 23,141
Notes: B

! Major department stores are stores with annual total sales proceeds and rental

income of over RMB400 million;

2 Operation period was calculated until 31 December 2019.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Total Sales Proceeds and Rental Income

For the year ended 31 December 2019, total sales proceeds and
rental income of the Group were RMB15,415.7 million, representing
a decrease of 2.4% compared to the year of 2018. Under the impact
from the micro-economic environment, the growth in the overall results
in the retail industry slowed down. Same-store sales proceeds and
rental income were RMB15,311.3 million, representing a decrease of
2.3% compared to the year of 2018.

Bt 7% [ B8

HEFSRERBEKRAHALE
HZE2019F12A31BH I FE AEBMHEE
FSsERAERABTE S ARE15415.7H
BT B2018F T [82.4% - R R E K& EIRIE
R TETERBEERESE  KEEF
JESHEMSHIELEEWA BARK15311.3
BEIT B2018F T pF2.3%

For the year ended
31 December

HZ12A31HILEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT

Total sales proceeds from FrirEiEHE 45
concessionaire sales 12,547,871 12,990,329
Direct Sales BB 1,750,291 1,794,280
Rental HEWA 1,117,580 1,003,153
Total Sales Proceeds and Rental Income $§E 5718 RAEW A &8 15,415,742 15,787,762

Among the total sales proceeds and rental income of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019, total sales proceeds derived
from concessionaire sales accounted for 81.4%, those derived from
direct sales accounted for 11.4%, and those derived from rental
income accounted for 7.2%. For the year ended 31 December 2019,
sales proceeds from concessionaire sales were RMB12,547.9 million,
representing a decrease of 3.4% compared to the year of 2018; rental
income were RMB1,117.6 million, representing an increase of 11.4%
compared to the year of 2018.
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The total sales proceeds and rental income of the Group in the four

regions are set out as follows:

ANBRBEBRINTRAR:

Total sales proceeds and rental income
For the year ended 31 December
HEMSREREEWARRE
BZ12A31ALEE

AEBROARENHEMSHAELEER

2019 2018 Growth Rate
20195 20184 g
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

(AR¥ET ) BUNS S %

Eastern China HEH 1,737,836 1,925,452 -9.7%
Southern China g 5,026,542 4,419,351 13.7%
South-western China k=) 2,778,236 3,166,855 -12.3%
Northern China il 5,873,128 6,276,104 -6.4%
Total A5 15,415,742 15,787,762 —2.4%

For the year ended 31 December 2019, sales of apparels (including
men’s and ladies’ apparels) accounted for 34.2% (2018: 34.2%),
jewelries accounted for 17.6% (2018: 16.5%), leisure and sports
goods accounted for 11.8% (2018: 11.4%), cosmetics accounted for
7.6% (2018: 9.0%), shoes and leather goods accounted for 11.4%
(2018: 8.3%), others (including branded merchandise, children’s
items, bedroom and household goods, home appliances, supermarket
and others) accounted for 17.4% (2018: 20.6%).

For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue of the Group’s main
business amounted to RMB6,267.4 million, representing an increase
of RMB150.2 million compared with RMB6,117.2 million for the year
of 2018. The increase of revenue was mainly because of the revenue
derived from the real estate projects in Taizhou, Jinzhou and Huai’an of
Maoye Property has recorded an increase.
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Other Income

For the year ended 31 December 2019, other income of the Group
amounted to RMB1,673.2 million, representing a decrease of RMB58.5
million compared with RMB1,731.7 million for the year of 2018. The
decrease in other income was primarily due to the impact from the
overall results in the retail industry, a decrease in the main business
income from the Group’s department store segment and the decrease
in revenue derived from administration and management fees and
sales promotion.

Cost of Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2019, cost of sales of the Group
amounted to RMB2,443.6 million, representing an increase of 9.8%
compared with RMB2,225.8 million for the year of 2018. This was
primarily because of the increase in revenue from property sales from
the property projects during the period, resulting in the increase in
relevant cost.

Employee Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2019, employee expenses of the
Group amounted to RMB569.1 million, representing a decrease of
6.4% compared with RMB608.1 million for the year of 2018, which was
mainly due to (i) a reduction in some regional rosters during the year
led to a decrease in relevant staff cost; and (ii) the business of Inner
Mongolia Victory Supermarket sub-contracted to other third party
since July 2019 led to a decrease in staff cost.

Depreciation and Amortization

For the year ended 31 December 2019, depreciation and amortization
of the Group amounted to RMB1,107.1 million, representing an
increase of 38.1% compared with RMB801.4 million for the year of
2018, which was primarily due to the application of IFRS 16 new
accounting standard on leases during the period which led to
amortization of the recognized right-of-use assets in the leasing term.

Payments for Short Term Leases and Leases of Low Value
Assets/Operating Lease Rental Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2019, payments for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets of the Group amounted to
RMB31.8 million, representing a significant decrease of 92.8%
compared with operating lease rental expenses of RMB440.5 million
for the same period last year, which was mainly due to the application
of IFRS 16 new accounting standard during the period. Pursuant to
the new standard, the relevant rent was not accounted in this item.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Other Operating Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2019, other operating expenses of
the Group amounted to RMB1,378.6 million, representing an increase
of 8.9% compared with RMB1,265.8 million for the year of 2018. The
other operating expenses as a percentage of total sales proceeds and
rental income has been increasing compared with the corresponding
period of 2018.

Other Gains and Losses

For the year ended 31 December 2019, other gains of the Group was
recorded as gains of RMB291.8 million, representing a decrease of
41.6% compared with RMB499.9 million for the year of 2018. This was
primarily due to (i) the provision impairment of goodwill for Guanghua
and Rendong stores; and (i) changes in fair value of the Group’s
investment properties.

Operating Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2019, operating profit of the Group
was RMB2,702.0 million, representing a decrease of 10.1% as
compared to that of RMB3,007.2 million for the year of 2018. This was
primarily due to (i) the provision of impairment of goodwill and assets
for Zhongjiabochuang Information Technology Co. (& 1B EI{E B
T i tn B R A &), a company established in the PRC and listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000889) led to a significant
loss for the Company in the financial year of 2019; and (ii) under the
impact of the macro-economic environment, the overall gross margins
of the retail industry slight decreased.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2019, finance costs of the Group
amounted to RMB1,320.6 million, representing an increase of 30.7%
compared with RMB1,010.2 million for the year of 2018. This was
primarily due to (i) the application of IFRS 16 new accounting standard
on leases during the year. The amount of lease liabilities is increased
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made, resulting in the increase in financial fees; and (ii) the increase in
financing interest rate of interest-bearing liabilities.

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2019, income tax expense of the
Group amounted to RMB642.2 million, representing a decrease of
28.5% compared with RMB897.6 million for the year of 2018. This was
primarily due to the decrease in total operating profit for the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWED

Profit for the year
As a result of the foregoing, for the year ended 31 December 2019:

Net profit for the year was RMB471.0 million, representing a
decrease of 58.2% as compared with the year of 2018;

Without taking into account the effect of non-operating gains and
losses™, net profit for the year was RMB581.9 million, representing
a decrease of 22.6% as compared with RMB752.3 million for the
year of 2018.

non-operating gains and losses represent the gains and losses in respect of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income, investment gains and losses
recognized due to non-operating gains and losses of associates, the disposal
of property, plant and equipment items, investment properties and land lease
prepayments.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to RMB1,232.6 million, representing a decrease of
RMB2,072.3 million compared to the balance of RMB3,304.9 million as
at 31 December 2018. The main cash inflow and cash outflow are set
out as follows:

(i)

(i)

Net cash inflow of RMB1,364.0 million arising from operating
activities;

Net cash outflow of RMB467.3 million arising from investment
activities of which included:

1) the payments of properties, equipment and investment property
amounting to RMB451.7 million; 2) the payments of purchasing
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss amounting to
RMB205.0 million; 3) cash inflow of RMB207.1 million from buy-
back of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; and
4) cash outflow from the profit distribution to small and medium
shareholders of Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd. (%2 ERHD
R A &) (“Maoye Commercial’) amounting to approximately
RMB29.0 million; and
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(iii) Net cash outflow of RMB2,940.3 million arising from financing
activities, which mainly includes:

1) cash inflow arising from bank loans and other borrowings
of RMB7,389.7 million; 2) cash outflow arising from repayment
of bank loans and other borrowings of RMB9,371.7 million; 3)
cash outflow arising from repayment of interest of approximately
RMB1,219.8 million; 4) lease expenses of RMB436.9 million
included in the new accounting standard on leases; 5) cash
inflow arising from borrowings from fellow subsidiaries amounting
to approximately RMB924.3 million; 6) cash outflow arising
from an increase in the equity interest in Maoye Commercial of
approximately RMB60.1 million of Baotou Maoye Dongzheng Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (REMXKER EFEHEREFR
‘A 7)) (“Baotou Maoye Dongzheng”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company; and 7) profit distribution to shareholders of the
Group amounting to approximately RMB165.8 million.

Interest-bearing Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, total bank loans, USD senior guarantee
notes and corporate bonds of the Group were approximately
RMB16,119.9 million (31 December 2018: RMB18,241.9 million).
The gearing ratio' and net gearing ratio® were 29.9% and 92.2%,
respectively (31 December 2018: 35.8% and 97.7%, respectively).

! Gearing ratio = total debt/total assets = (bank loans + corporate bonds + USD
senior guarantee notes)/total assets

2 Net gearing ratio = net debt/total equity = (bank loans + corporate bonds + USD
senior guarantee notes — cash and cash equivalents)/total equity

Contingent Liabilities
The case of Liyang Fenglian using Taizhou First Department Store

On 14 December 2011, Taizhou First Department Store Co., Ltd. (Z&
ME—BEEERMD AR AR (“Taizhou First”), a subsidiary of the
Group, entered into the Property Lease Agreement (the “Agreement”)
with Liyang Fenglian Property Development Co., Ltd. (VR[5 LB %
R AR AT (‘“Fenglian Company’), pursuant to which, Taizhou
First will rent the property of Fenglian Company to operate Maoye
Department Store Liyang Pingling Square Branch (/%% B & %5 F %
&35 )5) (“Liyang Store”). On 19 December 2014, Fenglian Company
filed a lawsuit at the Changzhou Intermediate People’s Court (& /1
mHRRARER) (the “Court”) over the unilateral termination of the
Agreement by Taizhou First. On 17 July 2018, Fenglian Company
amended its litigation claims, requiring an order that Taizhou First
shall pay a property use fee of RMB81,126,129, a rental loss of
RMB14,316,376, a commercial service fee of RMB239,700 and
interest.
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On 28 November 2018, the Court adjudicated that the lease
agreement and supplemental lease agreement entered into between
the two parties were terminated on 30 November 2014 and that
Taizhou First shall compensate Fenglian Company for the use of
its property in the amount of RMB66,611,996, the interest from 1
December 2014 to the date of full settlement which shall be calculated
at the prevailing lending rate stipulated by the People’s Bank of China,
and the handling costs relating to the case. The court judgment also
rejected the other litigation claims from Fenglian Company. Both
Taizhou First and Fenglian Company appealed against the court
judgment. The court hearing was held at the Jiangsu High People’s
Court CIERE S B AEERT) on 7 May 2019 and the trial is still in
progress.

Upon consulting with the lawyer, the management of the Group has
made provision for the litigation of RMB25,000,000.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s collateral interest-bearing
bank loans amounting to RMB9,763.2 million were secured by
approximately RMB3,402.1 million, RMB8,394.2 million, RMB367.3
million and RMB103.3 million respectively of the Group’s land and
buildings, investment properties, right-of-use assets and properties
under development.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company issued US$150,000,000 and US$100,000,000 senior
guaranteed notes with a term of 2 years on September and October in
2018 respectively which is exposed to the effect of foreign exchange
fluctuation risks. During the reporting period, the Group recorded a
foreign exchange loss of RMB37.6 million on exchange. Since the
business of the Group was mainly focused on Mainland China, its
operation was not exposed to any foreign exchange fluctuation risks.

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had not entered into any
arrangements to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group's
operating cash flow is not exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation
risks.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Mao Ru (E&E ) , aged 54 is the founder of the Group
and the Chairman, Executive Director, Chief Executive Officer and
the Chairman of Nomination Committee of the Company. He is also a
director of various companies in the Group. Besides, he is a director
and owner of Maoye Department Store Investment Limited and MOY
International Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholders of the
Company. Mr. Huang is responsible for the overall development
and strategic planning of the Group. He has extensive experience
in department store and commercial real estate industries and has
been engaged in department store business for over 20 years. Before
commencing his department store business, Mr. Huang established
Maoye (Shenzhen) Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (&2 CG#EII)
EMERZEAR QA )in 1992 and Shenzhen Maoye (Group) Co.,
Ltd. CRINZZE (B BRMH AR AR in 1995. Mr. Huang had been a
director and the Chairman of Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd. (fX ¥ m %
%13 BB A A]) (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 600828) since July 2005 and resigned on 9 February
2009.

Mr. Zhong Pengyi ($Z§2) , aged 64, is an Executive Director
and the Vice Chairman of the Company. He joined the Group in
August 2007. Mr. Zhong received a master's degree in business
administration from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2003. Mr. Zhong
has over 30 years of experience in the operational management of the
department store industry, real estate industry and trading industry.
Mr. Zhong has been an independent director of Shenzhen Centralcon
Investment Holding Co., Ltd. GRIITT R IMNIEEZR KD BR A F)
(a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code:
000042) since July 2017. He has been the chairman of Shenzhen
Friendship Trading Center Co., Ltd. CRIITTREME ZH OLERA
7)) since July 2002 and deputy director of the expert committee of
China’s Urban Commercial Planning Management Association ( # [
BMEERIEEHAEERELZEE) . He is also a councilor of China
Commerce Association for General Merchandise (T BB EH £ €)
and a vice chairman of China Friendship External Supplier Association
of Commerce (FEIRFEIMEREZHE ) . On 14 March 2014, Mr. Zhong
has been appointed as a director of Shenyang Commercial City Co.,
Ltd. CESEENRH AR A F, “Commercial City”) (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600306). He has also
been a director of Maoye Commercial since 10 June 2015.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wang Bin (E3&) , aged 53, joined the Group in 2010. He was
an Executive Director of the Company before his re-designation as a
Non-executive Director on 5 May 2017. He is also a director of various
companies in the Group. Mr. Wang had been the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company since 20 October 2010 and resigned on 7
December 2015. He had also been the Vice President of the Company
since 14 January 2013 and resigned on 7 December 2015. Mr. Wang
is a senior accountant. He received a bachelor’'s degree majored
in finance and accounting from Shanghai Maritime University in
1988 and received a Master of Business Administration degree from
Murdoch University of Australia in 2001. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Wang worked for China Merchants Group (2% &) and served
as financial controller of Huafu Holdings Limited (ZEF4ZRRGR A 7)) .
He has more than 20 years of experience in financial management.
Mr. Wang had been a director of Zhongjiabochuang Information
Technology Co., Ltd. (= H A5 BT MBRAF]) (a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000889) since
December 2010 and ceased to be a director from June 2016. Mr.
Wang has also been appointed as a director of Maoye Commercial on
28 November 2012 and ceased to be a director from 25 September
2019, and he has been appointed as a director of Commercial City on
14 March 2014.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Chan Lum ($B#&#k) (Alias: Chow Chan Lum, Charles),
aged 69, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of both the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. He joined the
Group in October 2007. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and is the precedent partner of Wong
Brothers & Co., Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chow obtained
a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1974 and received a Postgraduate
Diploma in Accountancy from the University of Strathclyde in Glasgow,
United Kingdom in 1975. He has been qualified as a Scottish
Chartered Accountant since 1979 and was awarded a Postgraduate
Diploma in China Law by the Research Institute of University of East
Asia (now known as the University of Macau) in 1987. Mr. Chow is
a member of the Foreign Experts Consultative Committee on China
Independent Auditing Standards of the PRC Ministry of Finance
and had served on a number of committees of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, including as the deputy
chairman of the Auditing & Assurance Standards Committee and a
member of the Investigation Panel and the Professional Standards
Monitoring Committee. He was the Chairman of the Chinese Opera
Advisory Committee of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (2010-2016), a member of the Cantonese
Opera Development Fund Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and was the Chairman of the Chinese
Entrepreneurs Organization (2013-2014) and the Treasurer of the
Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts (2010-2015). He was a past
President of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Chow serves as
an honorary advisor and committee member of various social groups
and has been a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Guangdong Province, the PRC from 1997 to 2012. Mr.
Chow was awarded the Medal of Honor by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region on 1 July 2013 and also the
Honorary Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts in
October 2017. He is an independent non-executive director of China
Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 85).
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Mr. Pao Ping Wing (JE@% ), aged 72, is an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He joined the Group in August 2007. Mr. Pao obtained
a Master of Science degree in Human Settlements Planning and
Development from the Asian Institute of Technology in Bangkok,
Thailand in 1980. In the past years, Mr. Pao has been appointed to
serve on various government policy committees and statutory bodies,
especially those involving town planning, urban renew, public housing,
culture and arts and environmental matters. He is an honorary fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Housing. He was elected as one of the
Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1982 and one of
the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of the World in 1983. He was
also an ex— Urban Councilor of Hong Kong. Mr. Pao was appointed
as a Justice of the Peace in 1987 and was a special committee
member of the 9th and 10th session of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Guangzhou Committee. Currently, he is also
an independent non- executive director of a number of companies
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Leung Hon Chuen (22 ) , aged 68, is an Independent Non-
executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company. He joined the Group in October 2007. He is currently
operating a consultation company providing corporate finance and
investment consulting services. Mr. Leung obtained a Bachelor of
Arts degree with a major in economics from the University of Western
Ontario in Canada in 1976. He has over 25 years of experience in
financial services industry and financing markets in Canada and
Asia-Pacific Region. Since 1976, Mr. Leung worked for the Canadian
Imperial Bank of Commerce in Canada and Asia for 15 years, where
he held senior administrative management positions in investment
banking, retail and corporate banking and private banking.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. So Ka Man (& = #) , aged 46, was appointed as the Secretary
of the Company in November 2017. She is a director of the Corporate
Services Division of Tricor Services Limited, a global professional
services provider specializing in integrated business, corporate and
investor services. Ms. So is a Chartered Secretary and a fellow of both
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom. Apart from the Company,
Ms. So, has been providing professional secretarial services to a
number of listed companies.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group recognizes the vital importance of good corporate
governance to its success and sustainability. The Group is committed
to achieving a high standard of corporate governance practices as
an essential component of high quality and has introduced corporate
governance practices appropriate to the operation and growth of its
business.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). In the opinion of the board of directors of
the Company (the “Board”), the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2019, save and except for the deviation from code
provision A.2.1. Key corporate governance principles and practices
of the Company as well as the details of the deviation are summarized
below.

The Board will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the operation and growth of its business and
to review such practices from time to time to ensure that the Company
complies with statutory and professional standards and aligns with the
latest developments.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for overall management and control of the
Company. Its main roles are to provide leadership and to approve
strategic policies and plans with a view to enhancing the interests of
shareholders. All directors carry out their duties in good faith and in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, making decisions
objectively, and acting in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management. Any director may request independent professional
advice under appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making reasonable request to the Board.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

TEERER
AEBRRRENEEERYAREENKY
FIsBERERER - ARRBAIREREK
ENEXEREN FRRERNERTER-
YIINBEERBEERERNEEERT
e

KARERAENREEBAZTSAARR A
([BRFr])FESEMRB ([ EHRA ) Mk
T EERERET (IR FrENERE
Bl-EFERA ARAREZE2019F12A31
AIEFE—HESTASTANES - ST A&
NEA2AENRBEERIN ARREZREE
RRAI R IR A N A BIREERFFIBE T X

it o

EZeREBIRTEAARAEHEERE
ROGEEATH A TRRAZFDEHR A
RARBTEEEREERE  UR2RIE
TSN ER -

FE
BEHERZE
AAFNEREELEHHEEEAT HT
ZRE A ERBEBERE 8 WEEARRE
RAKRENG - 2RBEBELEHRITRS A
TRESTBREDI SR G] FE AR HIRE A K
BEREIAR/ARARERRMOMRITE

FBERGR 2HMEHESHERRER
ARESARAWERGRERENE R MR
BoEMEZHAREEBRT RNEESE
HERERUSRKBYEXER BABAR
GEANE

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED X ¥ BEEIER AR AR 31



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SREARE

The Board reserves its rights for making decision on all major matters
of the Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
executive directors and senior management of the Company. These
responsibilities include implementing decisions of the Board and
directing and co-ordinating day-to-day operation and management
of the Company. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from
the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
aforesaid officers.

Board Composition

The following chart illustrates the current structure and membership of
the Board and the Board Committees:

Board of Directors

Exg

EEQARNARBIMAEAFEELRE
BEMENMERMEBREE  EERAENIE
B AMEZEMEAREERG TBXSH (K
RPN mERE) MBER ZEES
NEMERYHRLEEH-

EXgCH B0 EEERTARRNGTE
ErERERE REELRE BTERS
HVORE IR RBHARFNAEEEERE
B-BEEE MR TREMEE - bl
ﬁi%‘tﬂﬁ&ﬁi%?&%ﬁﬁ RAERBESRS

E=endm
;%?@ﬁ%%@&%%%%@%fﬁﬁ%%&
=

Executive Directors $1TE%E

Mr. Huang Mao Ru, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
BXMAEE (EFRREEHITE)

Mr. Zhong Pengyi, Vice Chairman

BBEELRE (FEFR)

Non-executive Director FE£/TE%E

Mr. Wang Bin T %t &

Independent Non-executive Directors BV F#TEE
Mr. Chow Chan Lum 885t &
Mr. Pao Ping Wing 58 /i &8 5 4
Mr. Leung Hon Chuen 2% & %4

Audit Committee

EREES FHEES
Mr. Chow Chan Lum (Chairman) Mr. Pao Ping Wing (Chairman)
BEMFEE (/) IR T (/)
Mr. Pao Ping Wing Mr. Chow Chan Lum
IR S BIEM S £
Mr. Leung Hon Chuen
RERES
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Remuneration Committee

Nomination Committee
REZES®
Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman)
BmIKIEE (EE)

Mr. Chow Chan Lum
BERARSE A&

Mr. Pao Ping Wing
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The Board members have no relationship with each other. The
biographical details of the directors are disclosed under the section
headed “Biographies of Directors and Secretary” in this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board has at all
times met with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
(representing at least one-third of the Board) with one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications and accounting
and related financial management expertise.

All directors have brought a wide range of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning. Moreover, through active
participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving on the Board
committees, all independent non-executive directors have made
various contributions to the effective business direction of the
Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director in respect of his independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive directors are independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

Mr. Huang Mao Ru is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. As Mr. Huang is the founder of the Group
and has extensive experience in the department store industry and
commercial real estate industry, the Board believes that it is in the
best interest of the Group to have Mr. Huang taking up both roles for
continuous effective management and business development of the
Group.

The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All directors are appointed for a specific term. All the executive
directors, non-executive director and independent non-executive
directors of the Company are engaged on a service contract/letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years.

According to the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles
of Association”), all directors of the Company are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and are eligible
for re-election at annual general meetings of the Company. Any
new director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first
general meeting and any new director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
shareholders at the following annual general meeting.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Huang Mao Ru
and Mr. Wang Bin shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming 2020 annual general meeting of the
Company. The Board and the Nomination Committee recommend
their re-appointments. The Company’s circular, sent together with this
annual report, contains detailed information of the above two directors
as required by the Listing Rules.

Training and Continuing Development for Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of responsibilities as directors of the
Company and of the business activities and development of the
Company and comply with the code of conduct of the Company at all
times.

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. Such
induction is normally supplemented with visits to the Group’s key
business sites and/or meetings with the senior management of the
Company.
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Under code provision A.6.5, directors should participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated briefings for
directors will be arranged and reading material on relevant topics will
be issued to directors where appropriate. All directors are encouraged
to attend relevant training courses at the Company's expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, all the directors were
provided reading materials or regulatory update on corporate
governance matters and responsibilities of the directors for their
reference and perusal. Besides, Mr. Wang Bin, Mr. Chow Chan Lum,
Mr. Pao Ping Wing and Mr. Leung Hon Chuen attended training
sessions arranged by the Group'’s legal advisors.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transaction
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as its code of
conduct governing directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities.
Specific enquiry has been made of the Company’s directors and all
the existing directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the period
from 1 January 2019 to the date of this annual report.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting
than the Model Code (the ‘Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the
Employees Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the
Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for

dealings in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its
directors and relevant employees in advance.
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BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees have been established with defined
written terms of reference, which are posted on the Company’s
website “www.maoye.cn” and the Stock Exchange's website. All
Board committees should report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises a total of three members, namely,
Mr. Chow Chan Lum (Chairman), Mr. Pao Ping Wing and Mr. Leung
Hon Chuen, all of whom are independent non-executive directors.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Chow Chan Lum who
possesses the appropriate professional qualification, and accounting
and financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a
former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the financial
statements and reports and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the financial officers of the Group or external auditors before
submission to the Board; (ii) review and monitor the external auditors’
independence and the objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process; (iii) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and (iv) review the
accuracy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting
system, internal control system and risk management system as well
as internal audit function.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee has
held four meetings and performed the following major tasks:

e Review of the scope of audit work and the auditors’ remuneration;

e Review and discussion of the annual financial results and report in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 and interim financial
results and report for the six months ended 30 June 2019 and
discussion with the management of the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group;

e Discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment of the
external auditors; and

e Review of the financial reporting and risk management
and internal control systems of the Group together with the
effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Group.

The external auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee
meetings held during the year to discuss with the Audit Committee
members issues arising from the audit and financial reporting
matters. The Chairman of the Audit Committee provided the Board
with a briefing on the significant issues after each Audit Committee
meeting. There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises a total of two members,
being two independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Pao Ping
Wing (Chairman) and Mr. Chow Chan Lum.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy
and structure and the remuneration packages of executive directors
and senior management (i.e. the model described in the code
provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code); and (iii) review and approve
performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee has held one meeting and performed the following major
tasks:

e Review and discussion of the remuneration policy of the Group;
and

e Review and discussion of the remuneration packages of directors
and senior management of the Company.
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The senior management of the Company are the directors of the
Company. Details of the remuneration for each director of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 8
of the financial statement.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises a total of three members, being
one executive director, namely, Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman) and
two independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Chow Chan Lum
and Mr. Pao Ping Wing. Accordingly, a majority of the members are
independent non-executive directors.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to (i) review the
Board composition, develop and formulate relevant procedures for the
nomination and appointment of directors; (ii) make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and succession planning of directors;
and (iii) assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors.

The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. The Company believes that greater diversity of directors
is good for corporate governance and is committed to attract and
retain candidate(s) for Board with a combination of competencies from
the widest possible pool of available talents; and to assess regularly
the diversity profile of the Board and, where applicable, senior
management prepared for Board positions under the succession
planning of the Company and the progress on achieving diversity
objectives, if any.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects set out in the Board diversity policy,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee would discuss
and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for
adoption.
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The Director Nomination Policy adopted by the Company sets out
the factors for assessing the suitability and the potential contribution
to the Board of a proposed candidate, including but not limited
to the followings: character and integrity; qualifications including
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are
relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy; diversity
in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age (18 years old or
above), cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service; requirements of
independent non-executive directors on the Board and independence
of the proposed independent non-executive directors in accordance
with the Listing Rules; and commitment in respect of available time
and relevant interest to discharge duties as a member of the Board
and/or Board committee(s) of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new directors and re-election of directors
at general meetings. The Nomination Committee will review the
Director Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination Committee
has held one meeting and performed the following major tasks:

e Review of the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company;

e Recommendation of the re-appointment of those directors
standing for re-election at the 2019 annual general meeting of the
Company; and

e Assessment of the independence of all the independent
non-executive directors of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Board has performed such
corporate governance functions as follows: (i) reviewed and
developed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, (ii) reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, (iii)
reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, (iv) reviewed
and monitored the compliance of the Model Code and the Employee
Written Guidelines, and (v) reviewed the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance records of each director at the Board and Board
committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the table
below:

EENZEENENSRBHFELE

TRV SESHEEHZE2019F12A318 1E
FERTNEEZLSR BEFZEeENE
NCIL S Nl TR

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY,/ EEAR

Annual Extraordinary

Audit Remuneration Nomination General General

Name of Director Board Committee = Committee = Committee Meeting Meeting
Esps EEXg® ENZET® FHZEE RAEZEE RREAFAE RRHFIKE
Mr. Huang Mao Ru BRIMELE 5/5 - - 11 11 11
Mr. Zhong Pengyi BRELE 5/5 - - - 1/1 11
Mr. Liu Bo (Note) Bk £ £ (M) 5/5 - n - 17 17
Mr. Wang Bin TR EE 5/5 - - - 1/1 11
Mr. Chow Chan Lum FEMEE 5/5 404 N n 1 n
Mr. Pao Ping Wing AR R E 5/5 4/4 111 11 1/1 111
Mr. Leung Hon Chuen RERELE 5/5 4/4 - - 11 il

Note: Mr. Liu Bo resigned as an executive director and a member of the
Remuneration Committee on 5 December 2019. Before his resignation, there
were 5 Board meetings, 1 remuneration Committee meeting, 1 annual general
meeting and 1 extraordinary general meeting of the Company held during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held one
meeting with the independent non-executive directors without the
presence of other directors during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The management has
provided such explanation and information to the Board as necessary
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
information and position of the Group put forward to the Board for
approval.

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019. The directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has acknowledged that it shall be responsible for risk
management and internal control systems and review of their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. These systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and provide only reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board shall be fully responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives and to establish and maintain
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of risk
management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted different risk management
procedures and guidelines with a clear division of power and
responsibility. The Company would conduct self-assessment each
year to confirm that all departments and the Company have properly
complied with the risk management and internal control policy.

During the year, all departments conduct regular internal control
evaluation to identify risks with potential impact on the Group's
business and other aspects including major operational and financial
procedures, regulatory compliance and information security. The
management with the leader of the department would evaluate the
chance of risk occurrence to provide response plan and monitor the
progress of risk management.

The internal audit department is responsible for independent review
of the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems. During the year under review, the internal audit
department reviewed important issues such as the relevant strategic
management, major operational and financial reporting procedures,
human resources management, adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experiences, regulatory compliance and information
security, and provided its findings and recommendations to the Audit
Committee for improvement.
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During the year under review, the Board, with the support of the
Audit Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2019 by reviewing the report from
the management and the internal audit results, and confirmed the
effectiveness and adequacy of risk management and internal control
systems of the Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy to provide the
general guideline on handling confidential information, monitoring
of information disclosure and response to queries to its directors,
officers, senior management and the relevant employees. The
Company has executed supervision programs to confirm the strict
prohibition from unauthorized access to and use of inside information.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor's Report” in this annual report.

The remuneration paid to the Company's external auditors by the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit service for the
year ended 31 December 2019 is set out as follows:

ERBEFN E2SEEZZESNHHTE
EEAQR RENERQAP2019F12/831H
HFEERBRERERANIBEIE RGN E B
FBEHNEREBRELABETER  WHER
AN T JEL B B IR R R D BS R AR N A AU
MFED M-

ARBIERAZ BT PR AR R
REHE EZREERENOEEER SRR
B =REEENAHERRBN —MRIES -
ARBIEERITEEZFABREBBELR
R RERNEBIAAARRER -

SN B R A BT &

AR EIINEE A B A 1 S AR Bl E 22019
F1I2A3MA L FEMERERA PRI TAME
ME R ARFER BB AIHRE ] —&5-

HZ2019F 128318 IEF B KRR HE X
R 75 &2 3F A% IR 75 [\ A A &) SIS A2 £ Rib 79 BM
S

Type of services RMB’000
Ji8i% kil AR®T
Audit expenses of the Group AEBNEZER 4,300
Non-audit expenses of the Group REBWIEEZER

— Review on the interim financial report of the Group —AEENF R EREERN 1,100

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged Tricor Services Limited (“Tricor”) as
external service provider. Ms. So Ka Man of Tricor has been appointed
as the company secretary of the Company. The primary contact
of Ms. So Ka Man at the Company is Ms. Lu Xiao Juan, the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company. During the year ended 31 December
2019, Ms. So Ka Man has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional trainings to update her skills and knowledge.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and
the Group and the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend
Policy (including but not limited to the Group’s financial results, cash
flow situation, business conditions and strategies, future operations
and earnings, capital requirements and expenditure plans), dividends
may be proposed and/or declared by the Board during a financial
year and any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to the
shareholders’ approval.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of transparency and
timely disclosure of corporate information, which enables shareholders
and investors to make the best investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at “www.maoye.cn”, where extensive information and updates
on the Group’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to
the Company as follows:

IR S BUR

AR A IR BB R AR R - R IB R
N A) N A S B B S A S DA B BB B 3R P K
MR (BIRENRNAEBE 5 RE R
SREMN  FBAR LK RREERE
M BeBREHEE)  EFS A NER
PRFERER, LEIREE - MR BEFE
B E B B R B R LR TR

BERRRREERE

ARBRA BERERFERER  SEER
BERAERMAKEELGAREEBERAR
REBERERBE - ARBIMARRERE
MEREEARENNEEN  REBFRNK
REBREEFHRERERE

ARSEBRER AQAKREBEHEUM
[www.maoye.cn | % & 2N 5 B S 75 38 R K38
e BB ER CEERFHAREMAENE
BIFEF N Z BB RARER -

BRRNZEEBBI TR AARR R FE
EHEHHENR:

Address: 38/F, Tower A, World Finance Centre, 4003 Shennan East Road, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic
of China (For the attention of the director of the Investor Relations Department)

A - hEE AR HAERYI TR R BE40035% tE R 2 R /O ARE3SHE (Wit A RIRE ERRIEE)

Email: irg48@maoye.cn

BF MY ir848@maoye.cn

Enquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

The Board welcomes views of shareholders and encourages them
to attend general meetings to raise any concerns they might have
with the Board or the management directly. Board members and
appropriate senior staff of the Group are available at the meetings to
answer any questions raised by shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationship
with its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
informed of the Group’s developments.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting. The Company’s shareholders may convene
an extraordinary general meeting or put forward proposals at

shareholders’ meetings as follows:

(1) Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company may
request the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting
pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association by sending a
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in the PRC. The objects of

the meeting must be stated in the written requisition.

(2) If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association, the
shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the general meeting shall send a written
notice, duly signed by the shareholder, of his/her intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed by
the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected.
These notices should be lodged at the Company’s principal place
of business in the PRC, or the office of the Company’s share
registrar. The period for lodgment of such notices shall commence
on the day after the dispatch of the notice of such general meeting

and end 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the Company and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.

Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the
Articles of Association is available on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website. Shareholders may refer to the Articles of

Association for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (www.maoye.cn) immediately after the relevant general

meetings.
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NOTES ON THE REPORT

The ESG Report (the “Report”) covers Maoye International Holdings
Limited (“Maoye International’ or the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”). The contents include the Group’s
Environmental, Social and Governance performance on its major
points of operation (i.e. Mainland China).

REPORTING PERIOD

The Report covers the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2019. Certain contents can be traced back to previous years, as the
case may be.

PREPARATION PRINCIPLE

This report is prepared pursuant to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) as set out in the Appendix
27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. For information on the Group's corporate
governance, please refer to the Corporate Governance section in this
year’'s annual report.

DATA DESRCIPTION

All data in this report are based on Maoye International’s formal
documents and statistical reports. In this report, the currency amount
is accounted by RMB, unless otherwise specified.

REPORTING SCOPE AND BOUNDARIES

This report covers the Group’s 48 department stores, supermarkets,
outlets and shopping centres (“Retail Department Stores”) in
Mainland China and the offices in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL OF THE REPORT
This report was approved by the Board in 24 March 2020.

CONTACT US

Investor Relations Department, Maoye International Holdings Limited

Address: Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province
Tel: (86) 755-25983885

Fax: (86) 755-25981379

Email: ir848@maoye.cn
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The sustainable development of enterprises shall not realize without
the engagement and support of all stakeholders. The Group carried
out communications and views exchange with stakeholders regarding
sustainable development and related issues through various channels,
and identified the issues that our stakeholders are most concerned
about: “products responsibility” and “community investment”;
relatively important issues: “use of resources”, “health and safety”,
“‘employment”, “development and training”; and the related issues:
“emissions”, “environment and natural resources”, “labour standard”,
“management of supply chain” and “anti-corruption”. The Group
constantly makes improvement on such issues in the normal course
of business so as to address the concerns of our stakeholders,
enhance trust and cooperation, and jointly promote the sustainable
development of the Group and society.
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Stakeholders
Flz=rEE A

Government and
regulatory bodies

BUFREEHE

Shareholders
O and investors

BRERRREE

Employees

Wikt A

Suppliers
HER

@ Customers
ol e

Business partners
AERH

Communities
and the public
HERAR
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Major communication channels

Policy and guideline
Daily communication
Working conference
Information disclosure

Social public welfare
activities

General meeting
Results announcement
Investor forum

Annual and interim report
announcement

Staff meeting
Staff training
Staff activities

Contract negotiation
Daily business transaction
Project cooperation

Customer complaint hotline
Customer satisfaction survey
Customer service centre
Discussion and visits

Cooperation

Communication and
interaction

Public welfare

Community education and
promotion

Forum and communication

Enterprise recruitment
publicity etc
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Major concerns

ETEERE

Compliance with relevant
laws

Tax paid according to law
Promotion of employment
Social contribution

Operation results
Corporate governance
Information disclosure

Sustainable
development

Health and safety
Occupational development
Compensation and benefits

Fair cooperation
Adhere to commitment
Mutual benefits

Quality of service
Handling of complaints
Protection of privacy

Fair cooperation

Performance of
contracts with integrity

Mutual growth

Public welfare
Promotion of employment

Involvement in
community construction
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Company has listed out 11 areas and evaluated the importance
of various key areas to our internal and external stakeholders and
identified major concerns of our stakeholders.
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Low The importance to our sustainable development High
& HASETHRABENEEY B
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE ERER

The Board is the highest governing body of the Company and holds
the ultimate responsibility on the overall strategic development and
corporate governance of the Company. To ensure high governance
standards in ESG matters, the Company has a stable ESG governance
structure with clearly defined responsibilities in place.

Executive Director
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The formulation of ESG strategy and the day-to-day management
and reporting on ESG matters resides with the ESG Group, which is
headed by the Executive Director and comprises members from all
major departments. The responsibilities of the ESG Group include
formulating ESG strategies, sustainability reporting, stakeholder
engagement, materiality assessment, monitoring the performance
of ESG initiatives and promotion of ESG issues both internally and
externally.

Through the Executive Director, the ESG Group has been providing
updates to the Board on the latest ESG performance of the Company
on an annual basis. The ESG Group has continuously worked upon
enhancing its reporting mechanism that will enable the Directors to
effectively oversee the effectiveness of the ESG risk management and
internal control systems.

To ensure effective implementation of ESG strategies and identify
any potential ESG-related risks and opportunities, the ESG Group
conducts regular meetings to discuss a range of pre-defined ESG
initiatives and to follow up upon the works of business units which are
charged with carrying out measures and setting appropriate policies
to align with our overall ESG strategy. The ESG Group is also assisted
by the internal audit team in identifying and evaluating the potential
ESG related-risks (including climate change related risks), so as to
devise appropriate strategies for risk mitigation.

The ESG Group continues to keep abreast of the latest developments
on sustainability issues and remains committed towards promoting the
integration of sustainable and socially responsible best practices into
our daily operations and decision making processes across all levels
of the Group. With the collaborative efforts of all business units, we are
dedicated towards improving our ESG performance and fulfilling the
expectations of our stakeholders
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL A RIE
A1 ﬁmwﬂﬁ%

A1 EmissionMoe!

The Group complies with the relevant requirements of
environmental protection laws and common principles of
corporate management. It correctly handles the relationship
between business and environment in accordance with
characteristics of corporate environmental management, so
that the economy and environmental protection are mutually
reinforcing.

Our environmental policy advocates the prevention of
environmental pollution, with integration of governance for
comprehensive management to achieve maximum economic
benefits under minimum impact on the environment.
Meanwhile, we also attach importance to education and
technical trainings to raise awareness of all employees
about the environmental protection. In view of this, we have
established a sound environmental responsibility system for
the garbage from construction or renovation of the stores
and kitchen waste from restaurants, under which special
personnel supervise the classification and disposal of
garbage.

The Group continues to monitor the operation of
environmental protection facilities and regularly checks the
implementation of environmental protection facilities.

All subsidiaries and retail department stores of the Group
are required to strictly abide by the internal environmental
management system to ensure the compliance with laws
and regulations. During the reporting period, no violations of
environment laws and regulations were found.

Note 1: Since the main business of the Group is operation of retalil
department stores, there was no significant emissions and
hazardous waste generated during the reporting period, hence
the relevant disclosure requirements in the ESG Guidelines (Key
Performance Indicators A1.1, A1.3 and A1.5) are not applicable to
the Group.
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Disposal of harmless waste

During the reporting period, the direct production of harmless
waste in the course of business of the Group was mainly
papers, ink cartridges, cartridges, plastic bottles and paper
cups. During the reporting period, the generated equivalents
are as follows.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE #HEREA®RE

BEEEREY G
AEERHERAREEFTEREL
MEZEEVNIEZLSAR 22 W
8 BRKMBEAT - NIREH EL
EEMTNRMAR

Unit Year 2019
B 20194

Iltem HE

Paper i Tonnes M@ 16.08
Ink cartridge £8 Tonnes M@ 0.36
Cartridge il 5% Tonnes M@ 1.73
Plastic bottle 2B B Tonnes I 0.70
Water cup RN Tonnes WA 1.06

The Group classified and collected different types of waste
and carried out fixed storage and centralized processing.
Recyclable harmless waste was recycled as far as possible,
while the non-recyclable waste was handled by professional
qualified service providers in accordance with the relevant
environmental protection regulations.

AEBEE D BRETFBRLHNERY)
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Carbon emission

Our carbon emissions are mainly due to the consumption of
electricity. During the reporting period, the relevant carbon
dioxideM°® 2 emissions from the energy generated from our
business is as follows.

Year 2019 Year 2019
20195 20195
(intensity per

(Tonnes) square metre)

ltem HE (B) (B¥HKREE)

Carbon dioxide emission —&/LixHEHE 349,774.38 0.12

TRBE K

IR E RRBE M EHHFE
R|EHE RMNEHLERESE
M EEIRARRE — S CH R E I T
RFTR -

Year 2018 Year 2018 Change in

2018%F 20184 carbon
(intensity per dioxide

(Tonnes)  square metre) emission
&

() (BYAAEE) HBEED

314,993.16 0.1 11.04%

Note:  The total gross floor area for calculating carbon dioxide emission
intensity is 3.015 million square metres in the year 2019.

The total gross floor area for calculating carbon dioxide emission
intensity is 2.887 million square metres in the year 2018.

We have implemented various energy-saving measures to
reduce the corresponding carbon emissions. For details,
please refer to the section of “Use of resources” below.

A2 Use of resources

The Group is committed to becoming an environmentally
friendly enterprise by saving electricity and encouraging
the collection and recycling of office supplies and other
resources to save natural resources. Our stores also integrate
environmental protection publicity with marketing activities to
advocate green lifestyle, so as to strive to become a model
store for recycling economy.

We adhere to the preparation of analysis report on statistics
of water and electricity consumption, and continue to update
the standing book for equipment to enhance the management
level. During the reporting period, the energy saving
indicators was even included as the performance indicators
of the employees to reward outstanding model of energy
efficiency, as well as penalizing irregularities.

Note 2: The calculation of carbon emissions is based on the Greenhouse
Gas Protocol published by the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development (WBCSD) and the World Resources
Institute (WRI), Reporting Guide for Environmental Key
Performance Indicators and the Baseline Emission Factors for
Regional Power Grids in China issued by the National Development
and Reform Commission for the climate changes.
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Use of energy

Our energy consumption during the reporting period which
is mainly due to the electricity consumption of the 48 retail
department stores (excluding the electricity consumption that
are not directly controlled by the Group) is as follows.

Year 2019 Year 2019

20195 20195

(intensity per

(kWh)  square metre)

ltem HH (TRE) (BYHREE)
Electricity consumption HE=E 490,078,888.10 162.55

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HBREA

BEJFE
AEBRREPHEANEREEEE
#48[H f%é’%FEJJEE’Jm R (T
BEREELEEEENTEER)
TR
Year 2018 Year 2018
20184 20184 Change in
(intensity per electricity
(kWh) square metre) consumption
(FR®) (BFHXEE) EE2Y
467,019,188.00 161.77 4.94%

Note: The total gross floor area for calculating electricity consumption
intensity is 3.015 million square metres in the year 2019.

The total gross floor area for calculating electricity consumption
intensity is 2.887 million square metres in the year 2018.

The electricity consumption increased by 4.94% as compared
with the year 2018, which is due to the increase in store
operating area that led to the increase in consumption.

In order to strengthen the monitoring of the energy
consumption of the Group, a number of energy saving
measures were implemented during the reporting period
in addition to the preparation of statistical analysis reports,
namely:

e Enhancement of annual and monthly budget management
to continuously promote water and electricity saving;

e Strict implementation of the operating time for various
types of electrical equipment, with timely adjustment of air
conditioning temperature;

e Enhancement of inspection and examination, with
timely troubleshooting and repairs for failure in energy
consumption and prevention of waste of water and
electricity;

e Continuous innovation for upgrade of energy-saving
equipment and techniques, such as energy-saving
lightings, zone management on lighting, elevator
frequency conversion, energy-saving water valves and
use of energy-saving environmental protection materials;
and

e (Capital investment for optimization of environment of
stores to establish a model enterprise for clean energy
and environmental protection.

ek : 2019F st EREEREMALESER
EHI015EF Ko

018FFEREEXEMABEER
B H288.7TEF Ko
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R 2P JE AL & E AR IS hn - 18 FE 38
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Water consumption

The total water consumption of 48 retail department stores of
the Group during the reporting period is as follows.

Year 2019 Year 2019
20195 20195

(intensity per
(cubic metres)  square metre)
ltem HE (XFXK) BYAREE

Water consumption ke 4,323,688.07

1.43

FEkE

AEBNBEREANZBHEETE
PIEH B FE KB TR

Year 2018 Year 2018
20184 20184 Change in
(intensity per water
(cubic metres) square metre) consumption

(IhXK)  BYTAEER FKERE

4,587,461.94 1.59 -5.75%

Note: The total gross floor area for calculating water consumption intensity
is 3.015 million square metres in the year 2019.

The total gross floor area for calculating water consumption intensity
is 2.887 million square metres in the year 2018.

The water consumption decreased by 5,75% as compared
with the year 2018, which is due to the strengthened
awareness of cost control in the stores that led to the
decrease in consumption.

Some of the water saving measures implemented by the
Group during the reporting period are as follows:

e Regularly carry out water conservation education on
various departments of the Group to raise awareness of
staff on water conservation and conduct supervision;

e Send special personnel to check whether the water taps
are closed or pipelines are in a leakage condition;

e Promote water saving awareness by posting reminders of
water conservation in public toilets;

e |nstall sensor valves in public toilets to control the amount
of water used; and

e Reduce water consumption through regular water
management and strict control of waste.
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A3 Environmental and natural resources A3 RIERRXAER

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

The Group supports environmental protection and constantly
assess the effectiveness of the measures taken to minimise
the impact of our business operation to the surrounding
environment so that appropriate improvement actions could
be taken promptly. These measures include the use of
energy-efficient lightings, paper usage reduction, turning
off idle lightings, computers and electrical appliances
and other facilities and equipment to save energy. We are
also committed to promoting the use of recycle paper and
shopping bags made of recycle paper in our department
stores.

Appropriate actions are taken to manage and minimise the
impacts of our operations to the environment and natural
resources. We actively promote environmental protection and
emphasise green operation and green office. Policies and
measures are implemented to enhance energy conservation
and emission reduction management. Relevant policies and
measures taken during the reporting period are as follows.

e Enhance the DingTalk electronic office system, optimize
office procedures and streamline processes to reduce the
use of office paper and promote the Group's paperless
office operation;

e Implementing double-sided printing and reusing and
recycling toner cartridges, paper, envelope and paper
files; relevant forms will be printed according to actual
demand to facilitate the reduction of paper consumption
at our stores. At the same time, printing facilities are being
adjusted to reduce the consumption of consumables.
Centralised collection and disposal of used consumables
is adopted to minimise environmental pollution resulting
from improper waste disposal;

e To advocate environmentally responsible shopping,
the Group uses recycled paper bags instead of
traditional packaging bags. We provide customers
with recycled paper bags made of recycled paper to
enhance its recycliability. We take appropriate measures
to comply with “General Technical Requirements of
the environmental protection, safety and labelling for
plastic shopping bags” and “Notice on restrictions of
manufacturing and the sale of plastic bags” issued by the
government. Reduction on plastic bag consumption was
achieved through charging customers for plastic bags,
and provide plastic bags when necessary to lower waste
production; and
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e Encouraging the use of environmental friendly materials e FIEE ﬁmliﬁ'&‘? SEEEAR
and energy efficient equipment in our construction RERMBNESBEREE - ENHA
projects; incorporating environmental friendly concept ENEHESR +EE REH
and design into our office and stores, including HEARMARERREL AR
maximising the use of natural light and share lightings EFA Zﬁl\éﬁij‘z}ﬁ& LA RE
in common areas, and utilising and refurbishing B R ERh R R

existing furniture and resources where possible during

renovations.

A4 Climate change

With the growing effects from global warming, saving energy

Eﬁm%ﬁiﬂﬁLﬁ& £ &
o EREES

Ad RiZES

ERRIRC R S H A RE - B8

and minimizing greenhouse gas emission become our first BRAE AR E R EEBERUR A T B8

priority.

Our administration and engineering departments constantly
maintain all the policies to optimize energy consumption.

Egﬁfﬁ"

FAI TR R TAZ B0 A 2 i s B IR R
HeABILBEIRE A - B L e BIE A

These policies include daily maintenance and replacement of %fﬁﬂ“i?ﬁ% FREXRE BREZHHA

energy-inefficient equipment, switching-on of outdoor lightings
according to local sunset time and using fresh air to replace
hot air instead of air-conditioning in mild temperature. Other

R EIIER  RREEIREF
%EHHXE;HH?%JMHXR = HE o HAth
R ER AR T R AT

policies adopted in our shops and offices are as follows: i? :

Energy saving and emission reducing policies &7 & 3 18 i

Retail department store
BEZTEME

Office
MER

56 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % % BIB 2 i B IR 2 7)

Control the illumination hours of stores and maintain sufficient
lightings to provide quality shopping experience

EHlD ERARE RSEBRASTE URHEEEEYER
Enhance the maintenance of air-conditioning system to lower
energy consumption

INogZe B R BB E LU D BeIRIERE

Clean the ventilation system to enhance the cooling efficiency of air-
conditioning

BREERFIAR S OB ME

Adjust the operating hours of escalators to avoid wastage
AREBHEBNETRE NBER2TLERNRE

Remind employees to switch off non-essential lights and electrical
appliances

RESTIHEITVENEARERS

Remind employees to switch off lights and computers during lunch
hours

HREE B T A F ek M Bl #= 8 A AN E i
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B. &
B1 Ef&

B. SOCIAL
B1 Employment

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

The Group regards employees as the most important assets
and is committed to providing employees with a fair and
sound working environment having open space for personal
development to ensure that Maoye International keeps
company with its employees for advancement.

The Group has established the corporate values, which
employees are guided to recognise, so that attitudes and
behaviors of every employee will conform to and reflect
the corporate culture. We have established a sound
compensation system to provide all employees with
remuneration level and welfare policies that are competitive
in the market, so as to ensure that employees enjoy fair
remuneration and benefits.

For the recruitment and promotion, fair opportunity is provided
for each employee under a just and non-discriminatory
principle to ensure that employees are not affected by gender,
race and other factors in hiring and promotion. At the same
time, while ensuring the contribution of employees to the
Company, the personal ability and value are also promoted to
have a rapid improvement and development.

We also strictly adhere to national and local laws and
regulations in terms of working hours and holiday
arrangements. Apart from paid annual leave, the Group also
provides different types of leaves to employees, such as sick
leave, marriage leave, maternity leave and paternity leave
so that employees can enjoy their due leaves to maintain
physical and mental health after industrious works.

Furthermore, the Group takes steps and initiations to maintain
a harmonious labour relationship. We also work with labour
unions to organise a wide range of leisure and cultural
activities to express our care to our employees and promote
healthy lifestyle and strengthen their sense of belonging and
cohesiveness to the Group.

During the reporting period, there was no violation of the
labour related laws and regulations.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group has 6,374 employees B2019F12A31H  AEBE £ A
with its distribution is as follows. 6,374%EE ' BID BRI T RTR
Employee Demographics ESEX
Year 2019
(persons) Percentage

Indicator BE 20195 (A) Lt % (%)
Total number of employees EEBE 6,374 100%
By gender ZRIE 5

Female L8 3,801 59.63%

Male S 2,573 40.37%
By age group REWRABRE D

Under 30 308 A T 1,039 16.30%

30 to 50 3077 £505% 5,055 79.31%

Over 50 B IB505% 280 4.39%
By employment type ZRERRE S

Full-time e 6,374 100%

Part-time R 0 -
By location i@ & 5

Mainland China R B A B 6,367 99.89%

Hong Kong, China FEEE 6 0.09%

Others H A, 1 0.02%
By rank ZEERA

Senior =R 391 6.13%

Middle AR 657 10.31%

General — M 5,326 83.56%
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New hires EES
Year 2019
(persons) Percentage

Indicator BE 20194 (A) Lt 2 (%)
Number of new hires IS EE AR 1,540 100%
By gender ZERIE 5

Female 8 856 55.58%

Male 5 684 44 .42%
By age group BFRERIE D

Under 30 30BR A T 844 54.81%

30 to 50 305% £508% 675 43.83%

Over 50 B 38505% 21 1.36%
By location L= E 5

Mainland China R B A 3B 1,538 99.87%

Hong Kong, China FEEE 2 0.13%

Others HAb 0 -
By rank RESBR

Senior =R 42 2.73%

Middle AR 222 14.41%

General — 1,276 82.86%

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ & MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED X ¥ BIRIZRER AT 59



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE-HE2RER

|E

Employee turnover V=PES
Year 2019
(persons) Percentage
Indicator BE 20194 (A) Lt % (%)
Number of employee turnover EBERIAK 2,506 100.00%
By gender Z I RIE 5
Female 8 1,521 60.69%
Male = 985 39.31%
By age group REEAERIE D
Under 30 30 AT 1,399 55.82%
30 to 50 307% £508% 955 38.11%
Over 50 B #505% 152 6.07%
By location b= & 5
Mainland China R 2,505 99.96%
Hong Kong, China FEES 1 0.04%
Others HA 0
By rank ZIEEBR
Senior =2 51 2.04%
Middle AR 377 15.04%
General — 2,078 82.92%
B2 Health and safety B2 #EHEZZE

Maoye International provides employees with an ideal and
safe working environment. In addition to taking all appropriate
measures to protect the health and safety of employees,
the Group also pays attention to the balance of work and
healthy living among employees. Corresponding system and
measures for leaves and medical needs of employees in
special stages (such as pregnancy, illness, work injury etc.)
have been developed to ensure that there is a reasonable

guarantee for rights and interests of the employees.

To enhance employees’ safety knowledge and skills to prevent

accidents, the Group adopts the following policies:

e Maintaining proper lightings and ventilation systems and
a clean environment in both office and on sales floors,
and providing sufficient working space in the offices;

e Smoking is prohibited in office and store areas; and

e Following government guidelines relating to severe

weather warnings such as typhoons and rainstorms.
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At the same time, employee is expected to share the B AEBECEZREEBAH T
responsibility in the making and monitoring of procedures and BITREEBREEEET 2R 2B
arrangements in respect of safety and health. All employees T EEBERE:

will:

e identify, report and rectify hazards at work in relation to o Rl HWE RAIEEIIESFTE
health and safety and report such hazards immediately to EERZE2EENREE —BF
superiors or the security department; BEAEGENEE AIREHS L

RAIREREDPT

e participate in the investigation of any accidents or o ZHEEHEWMABEMFAELE
hazards to prevent any re-occurrence; and REWMBERER: &

e co-operate with management in adopting safe working o HRRAHERABNRERIIEERE
methods and procedures. ZENFERRIENE -
During the reporting period, there was no prosecution against REREERA - N5 B I A BL B 2 B
the Group in relation to occupational health and safety B2 EBHE R - 2017 E20194F [

matters. From 2017 to 2019 there was no fatal occupational REBERTIRTEH-

accident.

Year 2019

Indicator EiZ 20194

Total number of reportable occupational injuries\oe ' 78 T 2R 4 1) T {54z g1t 28

Percentage of occupational injury™oe 2 T {5t M2 0.44

Number of working days lost due to ETEEARIIERAE 1,388

occupational injury

Percentage of working days lost due to ETSEART{ER LR 21.78

occupational injuryMoe3

Absentee days TRE) H 8L 49,070

Absent rateNote 4 T8 Lt iz 3.08%

Note 1: Reportable occupational injuries refer to work-related accidents to Wil : BFRENTEREERIIEREER
employees resulting in incapacity for a period exceeding 3 days; SN B A TERB B3R

Note 2: Occupational injury rate is calculated based on the number M2 : T =R &200,000 T 1E/NEF (B
of occupational injury per 200,000 working hours (i.e. per 100 F100%E E 50/ - 5/F T1E40(E
employees to work 40 hours per week for 50 weeks per year); N TEREETE

Note 3: Working days lost rate is calculated based on the working days Wi5E3 - #BR T1EH L &3 200,000 T1E/ ) K
lost per 200,000 working hours; REKTIIER S E

Note 4: Absentee rate refers to the percentage of working days lost from Wiats - BRE)LL RIGE TE R E MK RAIERED
occupational injury and other sicknesses over the total number of AEt2RESRE ILIERBHMNE
pre-determined working days. paln i
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B3 Development and training B3 & KiEI

The Group focuses on the growth of employees and
establishes a scientific and effective training system to
formulate and implement training programs according to job
nature and needs of employees to promote their improvement
and growth. The training contents are divided into induction
training, business training, quality training and personnel
training program of “Maoye University”.

Induction training

In order to help new employees to integrate into the Company
as soon as possible and quickly adapt to job requirements,
regular new staff trainings are organised. Through these
trainings, employees can understand the development,
corporate culture and the rules and regulations of the Group.

Business training

In-service employees regularly receive different types of
trainings in accordance with the needs of their works. For
example, retail stores regularly held services etiquette
trainings, while financial department held skills training for
financial employees.

Quality training

Through arrangements such as “reading club” and online
learning platform, the Group provides employees with
personal quality training programs to enable them to obtain
personal growth and advancement.

Personnel training program of “Maoye University”

With deep integration of the Internet economy and
traditional industries, the transformation of department
stores is imperative. In order to meet the needs of talent
in the “new retail” era, the Group provides employees with
more systematic and rich personnel training programs. By
formulating comprehensive training plans, employees can
grow rapidly to realise personal value in the Company and
make contribution to the growth and development of the
Company.
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During the reporting period, the demographics of the Group's REBERAN AEBEEZBZIEES
trained employees are as follows. MIATRR
Year 2019
(persons) Percentage
Indicator BE 20194 (A) Lt 2 (%)
Number of trained employee EXIEIEE AS 4,842 100%
By gender ZERIE 5
Female L8 2,748 56.75%
Male S 2,094 43.25%
By employment rank EERERNE S
Senior =R 129 2.66%
Middle R 941 19.44%
General — 3,772 77.90%
During the reporting period, the Group's employees were REEBA - NEE B T1HFIRRE
trained for a total of 28,870 hours. Each employee was trained E28 870/ NI E - FZ B T AHEI
for 5.96 hours. I 20 /55.96/ N R
The distribution of average training hours among our REEEB FHEIINSE DB R
employees are as follows. TR
Year 2019
(Average
training hours)
20194
Indicator EZ (A F )
By gender RIERIE D
Female z 6.1
Male ES 58
By employment rank REBERE S
Senior =R 6.7
Middle 4 52
General — M 6.1
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B4 Labour standards B4 & T %8|

All of our departments and stores comply with local laws and
regulations and strictly prohibit the use of child labour and
forced labour. Maoye International pays special attention
to the verification of identity information of employees.
Comprehensive recruitment review procedures will be
conducted by the human resources department to ensure
that the information provided by the candidates is accurate.
In addition, the Group will regularly examine whether there is
existence of children labour or forced labour in the operation
of the business.

During the reporting period, there was no violation of the laws
and regulations relating to children or forced labour.

The relevant policies adopted by the Group are:

e Strictly prohibiting any departments to request and/
or employ any person who age below 16. The Human
Resources Department is responsible for the review of the
age during recruitment to ensure that no minors under the
age of 16 are employed; and

e All employment must be on a voluntary basis and we do
not allow forced labour, or using any form of deception to
allure employee to work.

B5 Supply Chain Management

The Group has been considering environmental issues from
various perspectives when negotiating the store leasing
with the suppliers. The Group will directly examine the
qualifications of the customers for new storage goods and
supply of new products, including environmental protection
indicators, and the quality of portfolio of regional and store
suppliers to provide consumers with a variety of choices. The
Group will directly interface with large suppliers to introduce
attractive products that comply with environment regulations
to promote the strategic cooperation between the two parties.
In addition, environmental information is also shared with
retail tenants and other visitors from time to time to promote
sustainable green business model.
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At the same time, all suppliers operating in our stores are
required to establish labour relations with employees in
accordance with local laws and regulations and provide
remuneration and benefits (such as social security, provident
fund etc.) that meet legal requirements. The aforesaid
requirements are clearly included in the “counter contract”
and cooperation agreement of the two parties. For the
employees of suppliers, we also require suppliers and their
staff to provide written supporting documents and records
to ensure that interests of the employees of the suppliers are
guaranteed.

During the reporting period, the demographics of number of
suppliers by location are as follows.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE #HEREA®RE

HE R AREBERMEHEMEZ
EOHEIER  BRRRE MERER
MEREES TRV S BRE WM
R AR BERKEF B E R (404t
R RELE) - AL ERKGAREFA
EHNEEARME ERE - EHE
BB THESE B EREER K&
HB TRHEEAOEAX M

NEERFEEENE T BRR
e

REREHIA - f e 8 55 60 4 e i 2L
BIERMTRATR

Year 2019

(suppliers)

Indicator BE 20194 (f&)

Number of major suppliersioe ! FEHpEEEHE B 26
By location i E 5

Mainland HE A, 26

Hong Kong, China FEEE 0

Note 1: Major suppliers refer to suppliers providing to the Group products
and/or services with total contract value of over RMB10 million.

B6 Product responsibility

Policy on product and service responsibility

The Group is responsible for the products and services and
pays attention to marketing ethics to ensure no engagement
in any form of unfair business practices. The procurement
and service processes of the Group ensure the transparency
and security of the information on products and services. The
policy on rights and interests of customers of the Group is
not only formulated and publicised, but also be implemented
in the operating activities to prevent products or services
from harming interests, health and safety of the consumers.
The Group complies with the relevant product and service
regulations and national standards, without any cheating,
misleading, deception or any other acts that undermine the
trust from customers and damage to their rights and interests.
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Customer service policy

Our business model is based on the needs of customers for
the premise, with an ultimate goal of providing customers
with the best quality services. We not only provide customers
with the best quality products to meet their needs, but
also implement relevant examination measures to fulfill
the commitment. In case a complaint about the service is
lodged, the Group will conduct an independent investigation
in accordance with its internal guidelines. The Group also
collects the satisfaction questionnaire from customers
regularly to gather valuable opinions from customers.

In addition, we are committed to establishing a deep
partnership with the tenants, shoppers and visitors by
understanding their needs and working closely with them.
In summary, we are committed to providing customers with
a unique and enjoyable experience. As such, we must fulfill
our commitment to excellence in quality of services and
sustainable value-added assets, creating a good place full of
life enjoyment, working joys and shopping leisure.

Practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

The Group understands brand equity is critical to our
success. We allocate resources to maintain and protect the
intellectual property rights of our brands.

° We value intellectual property and recognise
intellectual property is an indispensable element of
successful business;

o We manage and protect our intellectual property
through registration and maintenance and enforcement
of our intellectual property; and

° We respect intellectual property rights of others and do
not infringe their intellectual property rights.

During the reporting period, our customer services include
supports extended to customers before, during and after the
sales. All complaints were handled by professional personnel
of our customer service department. Details of the complaints,
monitoring and status, handling time and settlement were
properly recorded. In 2019, customer complaints received by
the Group were consistent with those of the industry.
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Data privacy policy

The Group strictly abides by the provisions of the law and
attaches great importance to the privacy of personal data to
resolutely maintain and protect personal information. Only
personal information needed for the business are collected
and used subject to purposes mentioned in the course of
collection unless with agreement from customers. We will
not transfer or disclose any personal data to any entities
other than the members of the Group without consent, unless
otherwise required by the laws or notification is given to
customers in advance. In addition, we maintain appropriate
safety systems and measures to prevent unauthorised access
to personal data.

During the reporting period, there was no violation of the
laws and regulations relating to the quality of products and
services.

B7 Anti-corruption

The Group has been committed to upholding the principle
of integrity and all employees are required to strictly abide
by personal and professional conducts. The internal
control and human resources centre of the Group have
standardized channels to accept internal and external reports
on corruption, bribery and other violations of professional
conducts, together with investigation and disposal of reports
having evidence. During the reporting period, there was no
violation of the laws and regulations relating to corruption.

B8 Community investment

We adhere to the concept of “Giving back to society” and
proactively participate in community and social services
to promote corporate social responsibilities and make
contributions to the society. In this regard, we actively invest
to support the community, especially to those less privileged
group as well as the young generation in terms of education,
growth and development. Through connecting and interacting
with the community, the Group aims to:

e support less privileged group and bring them love and
hopes;

e encourage employees to be compassionate and caring;

e strengthen our employees’ sense of belonging to the
society; and

e provide education to help them achieving better future.

B7

B8

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE #HEREA®RE

BRI EBR
AEBBREETENNRE SEE
BEANE R ALER - I BOR b 4 58 1
REBAZER - RAEREEBLE
EBMBNEAER RIFFIERP
RE  HAERNEAEREFAR
WA ARG - RIDEEE
RABRBHUEFBERN T RER
ERMATSERIWEBAERTIE
REEA B A A B - st Ih - A
TR BE N 2 R G MERIAR I
EANERR ARG TR

AREBNFREPET EEIREREE
mMREEERE 2 AR KRG 2@
;ﬁ( o

RES

AEE-EEHTMRETEEHRERN
RE BRI HFTEBEETEAR
BERT AEERZEHRNANER
LA AR REE XN INEDREE
KBS - BB EL A8 B ¥R <7 7T
RSB AHARENEHRETH
BB IE o AR BN ¥R & B I %
Rg RRESHEM AR FORGIZ @

R

AEBRARFEL G AFELS
MES BR2EYRMNTEAHE
X HEOFHGREM OBEHE R
o AEEBREGRALSRKER I
FrRlBERRE IR < 9B B M F E
—REOHE KEMER-FEEEY
BHBE AEERE:

o REME APBHEEXLFE
B HF
s TEEEEZUMBAUBRBL:

e BERENERBER N

o HERABMA-

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED & 2 BB ER AR 67



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HEREA®RE

CONTENT INDEX TO ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND EBBERIFERATNERE
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE OF THE STOCK ERERABRENR RS
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
Reference
A Environmental (Page Number)
B
=i (E8)

A1, Emissions

e
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant  Page 50-52
— B R laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.
BRARERIOBRERBERN  MKELHOEET AEREZEEY 5S0HE52H
MELZH  (QBK: R(o)ETHETABEATENBEERZR
RO E #Y o
KPI A1.1  The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Considered
immaterial
R ERIE R HERE A K R R WRATEKXR
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity. Page 52
BERBAINENTE - 528
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity. Considered
immaterial
MELAREEEMEERTE - WRATEKR
A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity. Page 51
MEABREZEZENRERTE - 518
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results ~ Considered
achieved. immaterial
HRE R EN R RTERR- WRATEKR
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes Page 51-52
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
MEEIBEENBEREYMN L REEESNERNLN S51EE528
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Reference
A. Environmental (Page Number)
2%
BIR (ES)
A2.  Use of Resources
EIRE R
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water  Page 52-54
—RRIEEE and other raw materials.
BRERER (BREEER K R EM R E) B9 EEK - 52EE54H
KPI A2.1  Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type and Page 53
BB B DR 1R intensity.
REASSNERER SEEEREEERTE- 538
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Page 54
HarEKE REE - 548
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results ~ Page 53
achieved.
il B IR (E A R e 5 8 R PSR R 538
A2.4  Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water  Page 54
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
i SR ERGE A KOR B AT BRI A SRR FE KR s T8l 548
RFrEmRR-
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products. Considered
immaterial
K mIABEMHNEE- WRBTEKR
A3.  The Environment and Natural Resources
RERIRAEIR
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’'s significant impact on the Page 55-56
—RRIE R environment and natural resources.
MEHETABRBERRARERENERTENBEK 55H £568
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the  Page 55-56
1 B B R environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
HEBFEBHRBLRRERNERTZEREKNEERE 55E%56H
BT ENTE-
A4.  Climate Change
P E g
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate- Page 56
related issues which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer.
— R E BRI REHE R RATREHETAEEATENEARIZIEBEEN 568
BUK -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which  Page 56
Bl B DR R have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer,
and the actions taken to manage them.
AR LARESHBITAEEXENEARZEHIEE 568

KEHTTE
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|E

Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
2%
e (ES)
B1.  Employment
(A
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant  Page 57-60
—RRIRER laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
BRAHI N RE BERE  TERE - RY - FERE Sk 57TAXE60R
Jiﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬂﬁk&%ﬁum (a)BR : R(b)ETHETABEKN
T ENREER LA ER -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group  Page 58
R EBIEE and geographical region.
RER - EERE FRAMNRMEEDHIESHBE- 588
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Page 60
geographical region.
BRI Fiedn M REI S EBRKL K- 608
B2.  Health and Safety
REEZE
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant  Page 60-61
— B EE laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
FRRMHLZ 2T ERERRBESRE2BEUREEN: QBEX: Rk  60HE61H
(D)ETHEITABERTENBBER LRI ER -
KPI B2.1  Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each  Page 61
of the past three years including the reporting year.
RSB RIE R BE=F (PRERFR)BFRAICTHNAB KL X 618
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Page 61
AT BERTIEBR- 618
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Page 60-61
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HIMPTER A B R R 25 U RIBBRMITRERS 608 X618
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Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
2%
de (E2%)
B3.  Development and Training
R KIE
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for Page 62-63
—RRIEEE discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BHRRMAEEBRITLIEFBENMBLRENBER -HltFIES 62EE63H
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Page 63
B B DUE R employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).
R NREEBER (NSRERE PREEE)EHHXI  63E
EEAD-.
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Page 63
gender and employee category.
BRUBIREEBMNED  FHEE KNI TFIHRE - 638
B4.  Labour Standards
8 TAER
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant  Page 64
—RRIEEE laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BREEDIEZE TGS TH : (BK: RO)ETHETABEAY 648
EHHEERNRROINER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to  Page 64
B 1 4B DB R avoid child and forced labour.
il s BEEMMEEARRE T RAHS T 648
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when  Page 64
discovered.
R R E R IB AR ERR A IS TR 28 - 648
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Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
2Z
e (E#)
B5.  Supply Chain Management
HrEgEE R
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply ~ Page 64-65
—MREE chain.
ERMHERNREI M GRBBUR - 64E F65H
KPI B5.1  Number of suppliers by geographical region. Page 65
BBE IR RipmE DO HERHEE - 655

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, Page 64-65
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

MG R BHEEHEN MERTEBENNHERSE 64E%65H
B URBEBERITRER -

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental Page 64
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

M ERAERIHEREERSNREREGRARNED LA 648
NABABAMAITRER A

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally  Page 64
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.
i ERERERREEZARRERMREHNED ARk 648
HEARITRER A
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Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
2%
de (E2%)
B6.  Product Responsibility
EmEE
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant  Page 65-67
—RRIEEE laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy

matters relating to products and services provided and methods

of redress.

EURFMRMHERMBRENERELS BE RELLBEEUR 65HZE67H

RITER - (BR : R(O)BTFHETABERZENEBERER

HROIE) E K o

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to  No related

BB DB R recalls for safety and health reasons. description
PEHREXEMREPEAL > HEREAMADNKNE S SABRER
Lt -

B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints  No related
received and how the yare dealt with. description
BEREANEmIRBHORFEE AREEH T AR

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Page 66
protecting intellectual property rights.

Tt B R ARIE AR EE B RVIE (] - 668

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Page 65-66
procedures.

HnBEERTHEREMLOKER - 65E F66H

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Page 67
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B EERMRERILBER  WRBERTRER /A 678
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Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
2Z
e (ES)
B7.  Anti-corruption
k&S
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant  Page 67
—RRIEEE laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
RN LBE PR HEERAREN: (BK: R(0)ETHETT 678
AEEAXENHEBERZRROINER -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Page 67
FARESIEE practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RERPAKETASEEEREST D EFLNETHART 678
BB RFAER
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing  Page 67
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.
R #BE MR REF  URAENITRER FE- 678
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors  No related
and staff. description
MilmESE R E TREMNREFE - E R
B8.  Community Investment
tERE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs  Page 67
— = of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
BRLMER2ERTREEMELRFENBREEBEHEER 6780
2 FI) %5 B9 UK o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental  Page 67
RAR B IE S concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
HIgREE (NHE REFE -SIHFR-EE Xt 678
BE)-
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus Page 67
area.
HEIBBABAER (WS EHERE) - 678
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRSE

The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated results of
the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 8 August 2007. The Group
principally engages in the operation and management of department
stores and property development in the PRC. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the
year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 99.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators, an indication of likely future developments in
the Group’s business and a discussion on the relationships with its
key stakeholders, are set out in the “Financial Highlights”, “Chairman
Statement”, “Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate
Governance Report” and “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of this annual report. Particulars of important events affecting
the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 45 to the financial
statements. The review forms part of this directors’ report.

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK1.98
cents in cash per share for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the
“Proposed Final Dividend”) (2018: HK3.64 cents), subject to the
shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on Thursday, 22 May 2020 (the “2020 AGM”). The Proposed
Final Dividend will be paid in cash on Tuesday, 16 June 2020 to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company as at the close of business on Tuesday, 2 June 2020.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
(i) Determining the eligibility to attend and vote at the 2020
AGM

The Company’s Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday,
19 May 2020 to Friday, 22 May 2020 (both days inclusive), during
which no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at 2020 AGM, unregistered
holders of shares of the Company should ensure all share transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 18 May 2020.
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(ii) Determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final
Dividend

The Company’s Register of Members will be closed from Friday,
29 May 2020 to Tuesday, 2 June 2020 (both days inclusive),
during which no transfer of shares of the Company will be
registered. In order to be entitled to the Proposed Final Dividend,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company should ensure
all share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 28 May 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 17 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 104 to 105 and note 36 to the financial
statements. The reserves are calculated in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution was approximately RMB1,728 million, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company. Pursuant to the
137 of Articles of Association, dividends may be declared and paid
out of the profits of the Company, realized or unrealized, or from any
reserve set aside from profits which the Directors determine is no
longer needed. With the sanction of an ordinary resolution dividends
may also be declared and paid out of share premium account or any
other fund or account which can be authorized for this purpose in
accordance with the law.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Movements of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 35
to the financial statements.

INTEREST BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Interest bearing bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2019 amounted to RMB16,119.9 million, details of which
are set out in the heading under “Interest-bearing Loans” above and
note 33 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company were
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhong Pengyi (Vice Chairman)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wang Bin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Chan Lum
Mr. Pao Ping Wing
Mr. Leung Hon Chuen

According to Article 87 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Huang Mao
Ru and Mr. Wang Bin, the existing directors of the Company, will
retire from office by rotation at the 2020 AGM. All the above retiring
directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
2020 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the 2020 AGM has
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.
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INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. The Articles of Association provide that the Directors shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by
or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices;
provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect
of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said persons.
Save for the above, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2019 and up to the date of this report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies
(Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong
Kong)) being in force for the benefit at any of the Directors (whether
made by the Company or otherwise) or any of the directors of an

associated company (if made by the Company).

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Secretary” in this annual

report.

PENSION SCHEMES

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required
to participate in retirement schemes administered and operated
by the local municipal government. The Group's subsidiaries in
Mainland China contribute funds to the retirement schemes to fund the
retirement benefits of the employees which are calculated on certain
percentage of the average employee salary as stipulated by the local
municipal government. Such retirement schemes are responsible for
the entire post-retirement benefit obligations payable to the retired

employees.

The Group’s contributions to retirement benefit schemes charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2019 were RMB55 million. Details of the pension scheme

are set out in note 8 to the finance statement.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements, no director
nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board with reference
to their duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. Details of the directors’ emoluments are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any director or their respective spouses or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of the directors of the Company
in the shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in the Listing Rules
were as follows:
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(1) Long position in the shares of the Company

(1) ARBARGBHEFRE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued share
Name of director Capacity interested capital”
AR E
BEERZ ERTRAH
BEEps 519 EERHEA OB
Mr. Huang Mao Ru Interest of controlled corporations 4,200,000,000 81.71%
BKMEE REHEE N ES (Note)
(FEE)
Beneficial owner 50,000,000 0.97%
BEREBA
4,250,000,000 82.68%

Note:  These shares were held by Maoye Department Store Investment
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of MOY International Holdings
Limited, which in turn was wholly-owned by Mr. Huang Mao Ru.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by
the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2019.

(2) Long position in the shares of associated corporations

(2.1) Maoye Department Store Investment Limited, the immediate
holding company of the Company

MisE:  ZZERHBEMOY International Holdings
Limited ) 2 & [fJ /& A F]Maoye Department
Store Investment Limited # 4 - MMOY

International Holdings Limited A & & 0%t 4=
2EHE-

- B IERKREBREEBRIARQRR2019
F1R2ASIAD BTN 288 -

(2 HESEEROZHRE

(2.1)7K 2 5] B #2823 G]Maoye
Department Store Investment

Limited
Percentage
of the issued
share capital
Number of in such
ordinary shares associated
Name of director Capacity interested corporation*
162 E
BERERZ ERTRAN
BEps &1 EERHE BRBEDL
Mr. Huang Mao Ru Interest of controlled corporation 2 100%
b REREE N ER (Note)
(&)
Note: These shares were held by MOY International Holdings Limited, MizE: % E R BMOY International

which was wholly-owned by Mr. Huang Mao Ru.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares
divided by the number of Maoye Department Store Investment
Limited’s issued shares as at 31 December 2019.
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(2.2) MOY International Holdings Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company

(2.2)7K 2 Bl R AR FE IR 2 GIMOY
International Holdings Limited

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

Number of in such

ordinary shares associated
Name of director Capacity interested corporation”
b 2 AR B A

BERERZ BRITRAN
BEps 280} EBEREE BRBRD
Mr. Huang Mao Ru Beneficial owner 100 100%

BRMELE BalAA

*

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by
the number of MOY International Holdings Limited’s issued shares as
at 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons (other than the
directors of the Company, whose interests have been disclosed in
the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
and its Associated Corporations”) had interests of 5% or more in the
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Long position in the shares of the Company KARRBZHER
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued share
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity interested capital*
EARDT
BERERZ ERITRAWN
TERRHSR =30} EBEREAE BABF D
Mrs. Huang Jingzhang Interest of spouse 4,250,000,000 82.68%
REF LT BB R (Note (a))
(Ffit(a))
Maoye Department Store Beneficial owner 4,200,000,000 81.71%
Investment Limited EnBEAA (Note (b))
(Hf&Z (b))
MOY International Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 4,200,000,000 81.71%
Ry EE N ER (Note (b))
(Hf&E (b))
Notes: (TR

(a) Mrs. Huang Jingzhang was deemed to be interested in these shares through the
interest of her spouse, Mr. Huang Mao Ru.

(b) Maoye Department Store Investment Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
MOY International Holdings Limited. Such interests were also disclosed as the
interests of Mr. Huang Mao Ru in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company and its Associated Corporations”.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person
(other than the directors of the Company, whose interests have
been disclosed in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company and its Associated Corporations”) had an
interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 6,374 employees.
Salaries, bonuses and benefits are determined with reference to
market terms and performance, qualifications and experience of
individual employees.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company
confirmed that based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company
had maintained sufficient amount of public float as required under the
Listing Rules and agreed by the Stock Exchange.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company has repurchased part of the outstanding notes in an
aggregate principal amount of US$27,850,000 (the “Repurchased
Notes”) via open market during the period from November 2018
to 10 May 2019. The Repurchased Notes represent 11.14% of the
initial principal amount of the Notes. The Repurchased Notes were
duly cancelled on 10 May 2019. (For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 15 May 2019, capitalised
terms used in this paragraph shall have the same meanings as those
defined in that announcement). The Company has repurchased in
an aggregate principal amount or US$1,200,000 on 27 September
2019, and were duly cancelled on 27 September 2019. After the
cancellation of the above Repurchased Notes, the outstanding notes
in an aggregate principal amount was US$220,950,000, representing
88.38% of the initial principal of the Notes.

The subsidiary of the Company Maoye Shangsha has redeemed
(1) the First Tranche of Bonds in the principal amount of
RMB1,076,354,000 with its accrued interest of RMB44,000,000 on
5 January 2018; (2) the remaining First Tranche of Bonds in the
principal amount of RMB23,646,000 with its accrued interest of
RMB945,840 on 7 January 2019; and (3) the Second Tranche of
Bonds in the principal amount of RMB1,696,969,000 with its accrued
interest of RMB76,500,000 on 7 January 2019 (the “Redemption”).
Upon completion of the Redemption, Maoye Shangsha has Second
Tranche of Bonds of RMB3,031,000 in issue as at the date of the
announcement. (For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 7 January 2019, capitalised terms used in this
paragraph shall have the same meanings as those defined in that
announcement).

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries

had purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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COMPENSATION ARISING FROM ACQUISITION OF
SHARES OF NON-WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY AND
NOT MEETING PROFIT GUARANTEE

Baotou Maoye Dongzheng, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, has acquired shares in Maoye Commercial (representing
approximately 1.86% of Maoye Commercial) on the market in a series
of transactions conducted between 23 March 2018 and 20 February
2019. In addition, according to supplementary terms of the agreement,
on 23 May 2019, other shareholders of Maoye Commercial gave
certain shares of Maoye Commercial to Baotou Maoye Dongzheng
at no costs. On the date of this announcement, Baotou Maoye
Dongzheng' s shareholding in Maoye Commercial was 1.90% and
Maoye Shangsha’s shareholding in Maoye Commercial was 80.90%,
therefore, the Group's shareholding in Maoye Commercial was
82.80%.

Maoye Commercial is entitled to repurchase the Compensation
Shares from Maoye Shangsha, Demao and Hezhengmao (together
as the “Vendors”) at a total consideration of RMB1 in accordance
with the terms of the Compensation Agreement. As the 2018 Profit
Guarantee was not met, the Compensation Shares would instead
be transferred from the Vendors, respectively, to the shareholders of
Maoye Commercial as listed on the shareholders’ register of Maoye
Commercial as of the close of trading on 27 March 2019, in proportion
to their then shareholdings in Maoye Commercial, for no consideration.
On 23 May 2019, the Vendors respectively completed the transfers
of the Compensation Shares to the Transferees. Upon completion of
such transfers, Maoye Shangsha's shareholding has decreased from
1,406,857,724 shares to 1,401,135,188 shares (For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 14 March 2019 and
23 May 2019, capitalised terms used in this paragraph shall have the
same meanings as those defined in the announcements).
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Under the deed of non-competition dated 17 April 2008 given by Mr.
Huang Mao Ru, Maoye Holdings Limited and Richon Holdings Limited
(collectively known as the “Controlling Shareholder Group”) in favour
of the Company, details of which were stated in the prospectus of the
Company dated 21 April 2008 (the “Prospectus”), the Controlling
Shareholder Group had undertaken to use its best endeavour within
three years to (i) resolve the existing litigation between Chongging
Jiefangbei Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. (EERAEKXE B EH
R 2 A]) (“Chongging Jiefangbei Store”) and Chongging Xin Long
Da Real Estate Development Company Limited ( 25 B £2[% 2 = 1 2= 5
ZAEMR A A) (“Xin Long Da"); (ii) obtain all necessary consents and
approvals for the transfer of the interest of the Controlling Shareholder
Group in Chongging Jiefangbei Store and Wuxi Maoye Department
Store Company Limited (f&# X% B8 & HR 2 7) and Wuxi Maoye
Baifu Supermarket Company Limited (E$X¥BBBATHEER A
7)) (the latter two collectively known as “Maoye Wuxi Store”) to the
Group; and (iii) obtain all necessary consents and approvals for the
transfer of the Controlling Shareholder Group’s interest in Guiyang
Friendship Group Holdings Company Limited (E[5&:E (£ 8)
B BR2AF) (“Guiyang Friendship Group”), to serve a notice on
theGroup within ten business days of any of the issues in clauses (i) to
(iii) above having been resolved, and to use his/its best endeavour to
transfer the interest in Chongqging Jiefangbei Store, Maoye Wuxi Store
and Guiyang Friendship Group to the Group as soon as practicable
once the relevant issues impeding such transfer have been resolved.
The Controlling Shareholder Group had further undertaken to keep the
Company informed every six months from the Listing Date as regards
the progress on the matters described above.
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Since the Supreme People’s Court has adjudged that the leasing
agreement entered into between Chongging Jiefangbei Store and Xin
Long Da was valid and binding, the litigation between Chongging
Jiefangbei Store and Xin Long Da has been resolved. However,
the Group is still considering as to whether to acquire the interests
of the Controlling Shareholder Group in the Chongging Jiefangbei
Store and Maoye Wuxi Store. As the original master management
agreement has expired on 4 May 2017, the Company entered into the
new master management agreement (the “New Master Management
Agreement”) with Maoye Holdings Limited on 4 May 2017 to govern
the terms upon which the Group will provide store management
services to the Controlling Shareholder Group with respect to the
Maoye Wuxi Store and/or department stores owned by the Controlling
Shareholder Group in order to avoid conflict of interests between
the Group and the Controlling Shareholder Group. The New Master
Management Agreement has a term of three years with effect from
5 May 2017. As Maoye Holdings Limited is a connected person (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company, the entering into of
the New Master Management Agreement constituted a connected
transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. However, as all the applicable percentage ratios in relation
to the New Master Management Agreement were less than 0.1%,
the New Master Management Agreement was fully exempt from the
reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules. As Chongging Jiefangbei Store has ceased
operation since February 2011, the Group did not manage Chongging
Jiefangbei Store thereafter. Approval from the relevant government
departments has not been obtained in relation to the Group’s
application for transfer of interest in Guiyang Friendship Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted the following transactions
with certain connected persons of the Company. These transactions
constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions and are subject to the disclosure requirements under the
Listing Rules.

Profit Guarantee concerning the discloseable and
connected transactions in relation to the reorganization

On 12 June 2015, Maoye Shangsha, Shenzhen Demao Investment
Enterprises (Limited Partnership) and Shenzhen Hezhengmao
Investment Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (collectively, the
“Vendors”) entered into a framework agreement (as amended by
a formal agreement) and a compensation agreement with Maoye
Commercial that the Vendors agreed to sell the entire issued share
capital of Shenzhen Maoye Department Store Company Limited
(“Shenzhen Maoye Department’), Shenzhen Maoye Department
Store Shennan Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Maoye Oriental Times Department
Store Co., Ltd., Zhuhai City Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd.
and Shenzhen Maoye Department Store Huagiangbei Co., Ltd.
(collectively, the “Target Entities”) to Maoye Commercial at a total
consideration of 1,161,542,889 shares of Maoye Commercial.
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According to the compensation agreement, the Vendors promised
to Maoye Commercial that the total audited net profits of the Target
Entities for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018
would be not less than RMB711,011,000, RMB779,222,200 and
RMB839,703,400, respectively (the “2018 Profit Guarantee”).
According to the special audited accounts of the Target Entities for
the year ended 31 December 2018 audited by Ruihua Certified Public
Accounts the total net profits of the Target Entities was approximately
RMB827,507,000, without taking into account the effect of non-
operating gains and losses. The amount was lower than the 2018 Profit
Guarantee by RMB12,196,400. Therefore, the 2018 Profit Guarantee
has not been met. According to the compensation agreement, Maoye
Commercial shall be entitled to repurchase 6,080,270 compensation
shares from the Vendors at the cost of RMB1.00, representing
approximately 0.52% of the total consideration shares (“the
Repurchase”).

On 23 May 2019, pursuant to the terms of the compensation
agreement, the compensation shares of 6,080,270 will be transferred
from the Vendors, respectively, to the shareholders of Maoye
Commercial (other than the Vendors) as listed on the shareholders’
register of Maoye Commercial as of the close of trading on 27 March
2019, in proportion to their then shareholding in Maoye Commercial,
for no consideration. Upon completion of such transfers, Maoye
Shangsha’s shareholding in Maoye Commercial has decreased from
1,406,857,724 shares to 1,401,135,188, representing a decrease in
percentage shareholding from 81.23% to 80.90%.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are of
the view that the Vendors have fulfilled their obligations under the
compensation agreement, and the transfer of 6,080,270 compensation
shares in Maoye Commercial by Maoye Shangsha to the shareholders
of Maoye Commercial is fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

For more details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 23 May 2019, 14 March 2019, 17 May 2018, 15 March 2018,
18 July 2017, 23 March 2017, 21 March 2017, 29 February 2016, 15
October 2015, 17 September 2015, 7 July 2015, 14 June 2015 and 15
April 2015, and the circular of the Company dated 31 October 2015.
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Update on Loan to a Connected Person

Pursuant to the relevant terms of a loan agreement made on 12
December 2017, Shenzhen Department Store (the “Lender”), a
subsidiary of Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd, agreed to provide a term
loan to Mr. Zou Zhao Bin (the “Borrower”), in the principal amount of
RMB399,933,400, bearing interest at a rate of 10.5% per annum. The
loan is secured by a share pledge agreement dated 29 December
2017 executed by Victory Investment Holding Co., Ltd in favour of the
Lender with respect to a 15% equity interest in Victory Commercial
(the “Share Charge”).

The maturity date of the loan was 31 December 2019. As of the
maturity date, the Borrower has not repaid the principal amount and
interest of the loan in the amount of RMB483,804,365.

According to the valuation report issued by the valuer on 11 March
2020, the value of 15% equity interest in Victory Commercial amounts
to RMB585 million, which is enough to cover the principal and interest
of the loan.

On 16 March 2020, the Board announced that Maoye Commercial
Co., Ltd (the “Purchaser”), Victoria Investment Holding Co., Ltd (the
“Vendor”) and the Borrower have entered into the supplemental loan
agreement, pursuant to which the Vendor will repay the obligations
under the loan together with the Borrower to the Purchaser, and the
maturity date of the loan agreement had been further extended from
31 December 2019 to 16 March 2020.

On 16 March 2020, the Board announced that the Purchaser entered
into the acquisition agreement with the Vendor and the Borrower,
pursuant to which the Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell and the
Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase 15% of the equity
interests in Victory Commercial, for a consideration of RMB577.5
million. Meanwhile, the Purchaser entered into the fee settlement
agreement with the Lender, the Vendor, the Borrower and Victory
Commercial, pursuant to which the consideration of RMB577.5 million
will be paid as follows: (i) RMB491.7 million will be set off against
the principal and interest of the loan owed by the Borrower to the
Purchaser (and its subsidiaries); (i) RMB37.7 million will be set off
against the amount due from the Vendor to Victory Commercial; and
(iii) the remaining RMB48.1 million, after negotiation between the
Purchaser and the Vendor, does not have to be paid by the Purchaser.

On 3 April 2020, the Board announced that all the conditions
precedent in the acquisition agreement has been fulfilled, and that the
terms and conditions of the acquisition agreement have taken place.
Upon completion, the Company shall indirectly hold 85% of equity
interests in the target company.

For more details, please refer to the announcements of the Company

dated 3 April 2020, 16 March 2020, 2 January 2020, 28 December
2018, 29 December 2017 and 12 December 2017.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Master Leasing Agreement

As the 2013 master leasing agreement entered into between the
members of the Group and Mr. Huang, any of his associates and
companies majority-owned or controlled by Mr. Huang and his
associates (the “Controlling Shareholder Group”) has expired
since 31 December 2015, and the Company expected to continue
the continuing connected transactions thereafter, the Company
entered into the new master leasing agreement (the “Master Leasing
Agreement”) with Maoye Holdings Limited on 29 December 2015,
which has a term of three years and is effective from 1 January 2016.
Pursuant to the Master Leasing Agreement, the maximum aggregate
rent and miscellaneous expenses to be payable by the Group to the
Controlling Shareholder Group for each of the year 2016, 2017 and
2018 are RMB177 million.

On 28 December 2018, the Company entered into the New Leasing
Framework Agreement with Maoye Holdings Limited to govern the
terms upon which the Group will lease the Premises for office use
and operational use from the Controlling Shareholder Group. On 14
March 2019, the Company entered into the Supplemental Agreement
with Maoye Holdings Limited to amend the duration with respect
to the lease of the Premises, and the cap for the aggregate rent
and miscellaneous expenses (but excluding utilities payable by
the Group to the Controlling Shareholder Group) during the term
of the New Leasing Framework Agreement. On 29 May 2019, the
Company entered into the Second Supplemental Agreement with
Maoye Holdings Limited to extend the duration with respect to the
Premises for an additional three months, and to amend the cap for the
aggregate rent and miscellaneous expenses (but excluding utilities) to
RMB108.74 million as a transitional arrangement.

Pursuant to IFRS 16, entering into of a leasing agreement with a
term of more than 12 months as a lessee will require the Group to
recognise its right to use the Premises as the right-of-use assets,
thus the entering into of the New Leasing Framework Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder will be regarded
as an acquisition of assets by the Group in accordance with the
Listing Rules. As the lessor is a connected person to the Company,
the recognition of such right-of-use assets pursuant to the terms
of the New Leasing Framework Agreement will constitute a one-off
connected acquisition transaction of the Company.

According to the Master Leasing Agreement, the Group paid leasing
fees of approximately RMB102.6 million as at 31 August 2019.
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed and confirmed that such continuing connected transactions
were:

(i) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) entered into on normal commercial terms or on terms better than
the normal commercial terms; and

(iii) carried out in accordance with respective agreements that
regulate such transactions on fair and reasonable terms and in the
interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Group have confirmed in a letter to the Board that,
with respect to the aforesaid continuing connected transactions:

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Board,

(ii) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes the
auditors to believe that the transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(iii) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to

believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all material

respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions; and

(iv) with respect to the aggregate amount of the continuing connected
transactions, nothing has come to their attention that causes the
auditors to believe that the continuing connected transactions
have exceeded the relevant caps as mentioned in relevant
agreements and announcements of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2019, save as disclosed below, none of the
Directors or their respective associates had any business or interests
in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group:

(i) Mr. Huang Mao Ru held interests in Chongging Jiefangbei Store,
Maoye Wuxi Store and Guiyang Friendship Group. Details of these
companies and Mr. Huang’s interests in these companies are
set out in the Prospectus. As mentioned in the Prospectus, the
Controlling Shareholder Group has granted the Group an option to
purchase the whole or part of the interest of these companies.
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(iiy Mr. Zhong Pengyi held interests in Shenzhen Friendship Trading
Centre Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Friendship Department Store
Company Limited. Details of these companies and Mr. Zhong's
interests in these companies are set out in the Prospectus. As
mentioned in the Prospectus, to manage the conflict of interest
arising from Mr. Zhong's interests in these companies, Mr. Zhong
is required to abstain from participation, deliberation or voting
at Board meetings where matters involving these companies are
discussed or resolved, and he will not be counted for purpose of
determining quorum for such Board meetings.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Since the Group mainly engages in retail business, for the year ended
31 December 2019, none of its customers or suppliers accounted for
more than 5% of the Group’s revenue or purchases. In addition, for the
year ended 31 December 2019, none of the directors, shareholders
or their respective close associates who owned 5% or more of the
Company's issued share capital had any interest in any of the five
largest customers and the five largest suppliers of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the corporate governance practices of the Company are set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmental-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural resources.
The Group strives to minimize the environmental impact by saving
electricity and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials. Details of the environmental policies of the Company are
set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out in the Mainland
China while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange.
Our establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with the
relevant laws and regulations in the Mainland China and Hong Kong.
As far as the Directors are aware, during the year ended 31 December
2019 and up to the date of this report, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on its business and operations.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period are set out in note 45 to
the financial statements.
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AUDITORS

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed
at the 2020 AGM to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the
Company.

By order of the Board

Maoye International Holdings Limited
Huang Mao Ru

Chairman

24 March 2020
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To the members of Maoye International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Maoye
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 99 to 254, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

BEETER

BRFITSEE (&)

BPICERBIT T ARE [RGB Fi 4757
FHAAZME ] — BB BFER
ELRRER FEMABOR T FIL - I
B TEBERTAERYFHEEPBRE
Y ES A BE ¥R E B T AR AT O B AHIZ Fr o FPIBRAT
BIEFHER  BERY MR ERESFE
FTITIVE  RERA M B RRBERETER
TG T AR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANBSTOAHARETSHETREE

Goodwill — impairment

B — el

As at 31 December 2019, the Group reported
goodwill of RMB1,339,782,000 as a result of previous
acquisitions. Management performs as impairment test
for the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired, by comparing the
carrying amount of the unit, including the goodwill, with
the recoverable amount of the unit. The impairment test
is complex, and significantly relies on management’s
judgement and estimation about the discount rate and
the expected future operation results, such as the long-
term growth rate, purchase price inflation, revenue and
margin development which are affected by future market
and economic conditions.

R20195F12A310 - EXERLAMKEEEMZ WA
[R#1,339,782,0007C M B & - B IR [E @A L B BRE
EBE(REER)HEEGKOEE BEXABEATRA
T B R BRER  HESKEHENReEEEN
ETRENR REAAEEAFEETE YR XA
STARRKEEE (WWRAERE BEE R BWAKE
MEE R ) B HER R fhEt - R F R =X AR T5 R A EIR

B2 488
A=

The accounting policies, significant estimates and
related disclosures are included in note 2.4 Business
combinations and goodwill, note 3 Impairment of
goodwill and note 20 Goodwill to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

SEBOR EXMEF RBEREEHA EEEGESHK
RN 4K BE 0T R EE M 3m B RE LM T20
2,

We evaluated the key assumptions used in cash flow
forecasts, such as the sales growth and gross margin,
through comparison with historical performance and
business development plan. We involved our internal
valuation specialist in the assessment of the discount
rate and long-term growth rate with reference to general
market indicators and comparable companies. We
also tested management’s sensitivity analysis of the
impairment test.
BBAEBERRUEBLEBERAEFERSRE
TR E AR ER  WHEERLENE - HFER
BEEZEFRBB2E —RTSEE LA LERQF NG
BERREERE - J TR E IR E R E RSB SU%
B3 H e

We also assessed the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

BATF SRR BERRTOERBERLS RS -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HEETER

Investment properties — valuation

REYFR—14E

BRFITEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANEANMYERETSHETER

The Group is engaged in the operation and
management of department stores and property
development in Mainland China. The underlying
investment properties in operation, investment
properties under construction and lease incentives are
recognised as investment properties and measured at
fair value. Management engaged external appraisers
to evaluate the fair values of the investment properties
annually. As of 31 December 2019, the Group’s
investment properties amounted to approximately
RMB19,692,166,000. The fair value measurement of
investment properties is complex and highly dependent
on a range of estimates made by management, such as
the rental value, rental growth, vacancy rates, discount
rate, budgeted construction cost, remaining percentage
to completion and profit margin.
ERERPEAEREAEELEREEEMERRE
B REhMEBREYE EREREMELESEER
RR/REMEN R A AEBENE - EREZIEIN B LER
BFAEREMENRABE-R2019F12A310 &
SEMREMELN R ARKE19,692,166,0007T © 1 & W%
WARBESEEMEGEEREBELN— R 0
HeEE HeEk ZE8X MAX BEEEKRA B
BER TR T ED L RAER-

The accounting policies, significant estimates, fair value
hierarchy and related disclosures are included in note
2.4 Investment properties, note 3 Estimation of fair
value of investment properties, and note 18 Investment
properties to the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

EHHRE BEAGH AABEBRAREEREDH
A BEEBEGAVBBRRMT24EME WHAMKEY
EWRAEBEMT  ARMT18EREDE -

We assessed the objectivity, independence and
expertise of the external appraisers, as well as obtained
an understanding of the external appraisers’ scope of
work.

BARHE TN R ERTEY R B B R B R E - A
KT ERHNER (L ERD TS E -

With the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
we obtained an understanding of the valuation
process and techniques adopted by the external
appraisers to assess whether they are consistent with
the requirements of industry norms. We obtained the
detailed work of the external appraisers and assessed
the reasonableness of the significant unobservable
inputs and the accuracy of the source data adopted
by the management of the Group and the external
appraisers by comparing them, on a sample basis, to
existing tenancy profiles, publicly available information
of similar comparable properties and our knowledge of
the real estate industry. We also evaluated the sensitivity
analysis prepared by management on the significant
unobservable inputs to evaluate the magnitude of their
impacts on the fair values.
EHRMNBEEZROWET - BT8R T HEBRRE RS
B ERDPTER A AN A AR T BT REIRERTE —
e MG SN EM O A TIEE K M@ B B A 7
EMR - BUR LB ENRFENLRMEFETE
BT BRETTELE IS A EA T A B R R AEN
RN BEEEEIEE RN E NPT SRR R BUE K
REVERY - BMENE T EREEREE T HRRAE
RENBREDTUATHERFERAABENTEIRZE -

We also reviewed the adequacy of the disclosures of the
fair value of investment properties in the consolidated
financial statements.

BT EEREMBERRTREVELABENRER

BIRD e
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is LAW KWOK KEE.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEBEER

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31H EFE
2019 2018
20194 20184F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

ihg=3 ARMT ARBEF T
REVENUE WA 5 6,267,393 6,117,247
Other income HAto g A 6 1,673,168 1,731,664
Total operating revenue N PN L 7,940,561 7,848,911
Cost of sales 6 AR 7 (2,443,639) (2,225,826)
Employee expenses BEMX 8 (569,122) (608,096)
Depreciation and amortisation e T 5 (1,107,135) (801,432)
Operating lease rental expenses KEHSRX 10 - (440,542)

Payments for short-term leases and

RHEHEREEEEERESEM 10

leases of low-value assets (31,821) -
Other operating expenses Hg e 11 (1,378,609) (1,265,784)
Other gains and losses Hih W= & E51a 12 291,750 499,944
Operating profit K A 2,701,985 3,007,175
Finance costs BhE AR 13 (1,320,614) (1,010,188)
Share of profits and losses of: JEMRAT & 78
a joint venture M (1,429) (1,218)
associates FrA/N] (266,648) 29,082
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B A A8 1,113,294 2,024,851
Income tax expense Fristif 14 (642,248) (897,630)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REFHE 471,046 1,127,221
Attributable to: LA A s
Owners of the parent SBARIEZREEA 186,262 799,403
Non-controlling interests AR IR R M i 284,784 327,818
471,046 1,127,221
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRAREBERESEEEA 16
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EBEERER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic AR
— For profit for the year —REMEES RMB3.62 cents RMB15.55 cents
AR¥3.627  AR®15559
Diluted e
— For profit for the year —RERHEEE RMB3.62 cents RMB15.55 cents

AE#3.62% AR¥1555%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SeEZHEBRER

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARBTT

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REFHE 471,046 1,127,221
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hip 2 H Wz
Defined benefit retirement plans AERNKEFFE (551) (683)
Exchange differences on translation of BINEBREEENEL Z5E

foreign operations 9,257 (3,259)
Other comprehensive income that will not LM%:HHF'EJH#TQE%)T;} HE

be reclassified to profit or loss in B E M2 :

subsequent periods:
Net loss on disposal of equity investments HEEEBUAAEEER

designated at fair value through other HEFHir AL 2mEEmD

comprehensive income HEREEEFE - (95,856)
Changes in fair value on equity investments EEBURA LFTE?EH%

designated at fair value through other & BEhEt AE M2 E W H)

comprehensive income EERENALBEEE 188,629 (444,516)
Income tax effect Stz & (47,158) 111,129
Gains on property revaluation S E gy 796,133 1,594,911
Income tax effect St e (199,033) (398,728)
Net other comprehensive income that will not be LMQHH A rTeERsEE

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 182§ K E b 2 M W 25 F 48 738,571 766,940
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FERBEEMGEEKE

THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 747277 762,998
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FERBZ#ZEKZEE

THE YEAR 1,218,323 1,890,219
Attributable to: JJAT/\iJT’éTﬁi

Owners of the parent NEIE: ﬁ?&%ﬁ A 928,766 1,502,772

Non-controlling interests 3H 1% 5 R 4 2 289,557 387,447

1,218,323 1,890,219
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEPBRRR

31 December 2019
201912A31H

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
20194 20184
12A31H 12A31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M e ARE T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- WE RRE 17 8,380,692 9,918,778
Investment properties mEYE 18 19,692,166 16,334,049
Right-of-use assets CREEE 19(b) 6,874,493 -
Prepaid land lease payments T FE E T IR 19(a) - 4,417,142
Goodwill EES 20 1,339,782 1,395,097
Other intangible assets HimpEE 21 46,165 50,611
Investment in a joint venture RELEDTEKRE 22 1,274 1,703
Investments in associates N /NS B 23 1,868,366 2,129,808
Equity investments designated at BEANAAEBEITERR 24
fair value through other et AHME2EKER
comprehensive income R E 1,497,212 1,312,915
Financial assets at fair value NAREEFEBEZEEHT A 24
through profit or loss B emEE 206,000 208,080
Prepayments TEfT 5RIE 29 623,248 424,646
Deferred tax assets BETIBE B 25 637,270 587,435
Total non-current assets EMBEERT 41,166,668 36,780,264
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 26 205,299 234,870
Completed properties held for sale BESEEEAME 1,751,103 1,371,672
Properties under development BERPYE 27 6,099,155 5,686,270
Financial assets at fair value WRAREBEFZEEEZEHTA 24
through profit or loss BamapEE 3,001 144
Trade and bills receivables JEUE I8 M B 28 8,598 6,800
Prepayments, other receivables and TEAT5RIE - EAb FEUGRIE & 29
other assets EmEE 3,155,399 3,382,845
Pledged deposits EHEBER 30 208,265 201,948
Cash and cash equivalents RehREeEEY 30 1,232,571 3,304,911
Total current assets ME)EEBLE 12,663,391 14,189,460
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEPBRR R

31 December 2019
201912A31H

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
20194 20184
12A31H 12A31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T AR T T
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEEE
Trade and bills payables ENESFHIEBERER 31 2,633,692 3,757,829
Deposits received, accruals and Bz EFTEAK 32
other payables E iy pES 708 11,224,625 9,254,049
Interest-bearing bank loans and STERITER R HALE K 33
other borrowings 9,274,381 7,083,421
Lease liabilities HEBE 19(c) 259,977 -
Income tax payable JEB TS TR 435,167 529,953
Dividend payable FEAT IR B 19,317 433
Total current liabilities mB) B EAEE 23,847,159 20,625,685
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REAEFE (11,183,768) (6,436,225)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BMEERTHERS
LIABILITIES 29,982,900 30,344,039

102 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 2 BB =R 5 R A &)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 [E 3§ &



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEPBRRR

31 December 2019
201912A31H

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
20194 20184
12H31H 12A31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR%T R ARBFT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkREBERE
Interest-bearing bank loans and FTEIRITER R EALE K 33
other borrowings 6,845,531 11,158,502
Lease liabilities HEaE 19(c) 2,597,508 -
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEAE 25 4,238,263 3,882,199
Other long-term liabilities EMmEHEE 138,483 204
Provision for retirement benefits IRIRTE R B 34 8,086 8,248
Total non-current liabilities FEmBEERRE 13,827,871 15,049,153
Net assets EEFR 16,155,029 15,294,886
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of B RAREDEE ARGER
the parent
Issued capital EEITRA 35 460,153 460,153
Equity component of convertible bonds — A] &35 A 25 285 55,538 55,538
Other reserves Hih e 36 12,514,655 11,784,317
13,030,346 12,300,008
Non-controlling interests IR AR R i 3,124,683 2,994,878
Total equity M AR 16,155,029 15,294,886
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2019

BZE2019F12A31B L FE
Attributable to owners of the parent
SRAEEHEARE
Disposal
of partial
interest in a Equity
Acquisition  subsidiary - component Defined
Share  ofpon- without of  Capital Statutory Asset  benefit  Exchange Non-
Issued  premium  controling losing ~ convertible redemption Contributed ~ surplus revaluation  retirement  fluctuation  Retained controling Total
capital  account interests control bonds  reserve  suplus  reserve  reserve plans  reserve profits Total  interests equity
LE—H
HEAA
BoEs  WER
R WEEER WEXE ERER BX £ BE AEEN  SNERD R
BEARE  HBR  RRER g B BEEE ETHER RHLE  EHER R BB 2REA A BREER Ba4E
RMB00O  RMB000  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB000
ARETT ARBTH ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETn ARETT ARETR ARSTn ARETT ARETR ARSTR ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2018 H2018F1A18 460,153 1,575,001 (32312) 352871 55538  (381,069) 28191 699,119 2,501,006 (82)  (97,480) 5916838 11,077,774 2736191 13813965
Profit for the year TEHE - - - - - - - - - - - 799408 799403 327818 1,127,221
Other comprehensive income for the year: A £t 2ERE:
Changes in fair valug of equity EEANALER
investments designated at fair value HEEAEY
through other comprehensive income, st AE 2T
before tax eatal 3
RELAER
29 (i) - - - - - - - - (416,128) - - - (416128)  (28388) (444516)
Exchanges differences on ranslation of S EHEEEEY
foreign operations ERER - - - - - - - - - - (3.259) - (3.259) - (3259)
Defined benefit retirement plans REEHIRKHE - - - - - - - - - (563) - - (563) (120) (683)
Revaluation gains on properties upon 1% R R
transfer from property, plant and SEEEE
equipment to investment properties, RENZH
before tax NEERNE
(Btan) - - - - - - - - 1488052 - - - 1488052 106859 1594911
Tax effect of components of other H2EkE
comprefensive income AnFsn
Bhye - - - - - - - - e e) - - o (GT98T) (19618 (287599)
Disposal of equity investments HEREAN
designated at fair value through RhEETE
other comprehensive income BERHA
Ef2ERE
nERRE - - - - - - - - (96752 - - - (%675 896 (95,856)
Total comprehensive income for the year  AF2EREEE - - - - - - - - 707,191 (563)  (3259) 799403 1502772 387447 1890219
Compensation shares fransferred fo BRBFARRR
non-controlling interests ERNBERD - - - - - (455%) - - - - - - (455%) 4559 -
Disposal of partial interest in subsiciaries (£ EHBAFHS
without losing control BafELE
il S - - - (T3 - - - - - - - - (57394 5739 -
Purchase of non-controlling inferests BEFRERES - - - - - - - - - - - - - (119922) (119922
Profit appropriated to reserves BieGBaTE - - - - - - - 3086 - - - (3085%) - - -
Final dividend for 2017 NITERERS - - - - - - - - - - - (1TI5)  (177549) - (1T758)
Dividend paid by a subsidiary to ~HHELRR
non-controling shareholders FERRRER
ERNRS - - - - - - - - - - - - - (111828)  (111,828)
At 31 December 2018 H2018F12A31R 460,153 1575001 (32312 206477 55538 (426665 28191 7200975 3208197 (645" (100739)" 6507837 12300008 2994878 15294886
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEESEBER

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31H L FE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BRARBREARE
Disposal
of partial
interestina  Equity
Acquisition subsidiary component Defined
Share  ofnon-  without of  Capital Statutory Asset  benefit Exchange Non-
Issued  premium controlling losing convertible redemption Contributed  surplus revaluation retirement fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  account interests  control bonds  reserve  surplus  reserve  reserve’ plans  reserve  profits Total interests equity
HE-F
WEAE
BIEE  TER
Rt WBEER ME%E &SER &x EE B RERA NERD FER
BRARA  HER RREE  BUE 32 RERE REBR BHOR EMGR EiGHE @ BrEA & RREE BEAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTZ ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARETZ ARMTR
At 1 January 2019 H01951 518 460,153 1575001  (32312) 295477 55538 (426,665 28,191 729975 3,208,197 (645)  (100,739) 6,507837 12,300,008 2,994,878 15,294,886
Proft for the year RERE - - - - - - - - - - - 186262 186262 284,784 471,046

investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income,
before tax

hags
RENAEE
28 (B - - - - - - - - 188929 - - - 188929 (300) 188,629

Disposal of equity investments
designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income

. = . = = . = ) = - 26 = . =
Bxchanges differences on ranslationof BN EBREEE
foreign operations HERES - - - - - - - - - - 9,257 - 9,257 - 9,257
Defined benefit retiement plans RERMRHE - - - - - - - - - (455) - - (455) (%6) (551)
Revaluation gains on properties upon 1% FER
transfer from property, plant and BGERES
equipment to investment properties, RENEN
before tax NEERNG
(BHa) = = = = - - - - 78934 - - - 78934 6,792 79,133
Tax effect of components of other B2 EREER
comprehensive income BANEBTE - - - - - - - - (o4,568) - - - (44568)  (1623)  (246,191)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AF2ENEEE - - - - - - - - 731,084 (455 9257 188,880 928766 289,557 1,218,323
Compensation shares transferred o ERTHIRRR
non-controling interests BENBERRD - - - - - (32586) - - - - - - (3258 32890 304
Purchase of non-controlling inferests BEFIRERES - - - - - - - - - - - - - (60327) (60327
Profit appropriated to reserves BiEcBnAE - - - - - - - 127865 - - - (127865) - - -
Fineldividend for 2018 NiERERS - - - - - - - - - - - (165842) (165847 (103019 (268.861)
Dividend paid by a subsidiary to ~BNELRAR
non-controling shareholders FERRRES
EftRe - - - - - - - - - - - - - (92%)  (2929)
A3t December 2019 ROOERANE M0 ASBONT (2310 T 5556 (925 28001 ST 3O (L1007 (148 GACROID 1303036 124683 16166009

*  The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from property, plant ¥ BEEGHEREDE HE REMREAKRE

and equipment to investment properties carried at fair value and changes ME - RARBERKEERAAABENEAR
in fair value of equity investments designated at fair value through other BETAELMEEREMNEREENAAEEY
comprehensive income. AR

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of * REHEREBESGAVERRIRTOELSH

RMB12,514,655,000 (2018: RMB11,784,317,000) in the consolidated statement ftb {4 5 A R #512,514,655,0007T (20184 : A R #E
of financial position. 11,784,317,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
nv_\éiﬁﬁﬁii

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B & ARMT AR T T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHELENREERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax IR e 1,113,294 2,024,851
Adjustments for: AT BIEFE:
Interest income FE WA 6 (60,915) (64,395)
Depreciation and amortisation of W RE R R H At
property, plant and equipment and BILEAEITER#E
other intangible assets 600,161 618,347
Depreciation of right-of-use assets/ 1 A% ﬁ?ﬁ%/ ( HER 19
(recognition) of prepaid land THEE AR
lease payments 506,974 183,085
Gain on deemed disposal of shares RIEHE —EHE R F) 12
in an associate B 19 By = - (48,269)
Loss on partial disposal of shares in HE—MEEAaEo 12
an associate ‘e EE 116 -
Foreign exchange loss, net SNEE B 18 F 58 12 37,555 128,160
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) WA CRERR) 1
of trade receivables BUE 518 9 (839)
Impairment of other receivables E R W B R E 11 49,577 10,459
Impairment of goodwill EEEAE 12 55,315 14,477
Impairment of an amount due from JE U5 B Bk 5 RRIBDRUE 11
related parties 54,540 -
Impairment of equity investments HERAABEENER
designated at fair value through EJM‘)\?@ R )R
profit or loss =9 - 2,000
Impairment of property, ﬁ&%% 5 k&R E 12
plant and equipment - 48,649
Loss on disposal of investment HEREYEEE 12
properties 14,620 -
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of ﬁ&%% W E RFEEE 12
property, plant and equipment (Wa) B8 (3,734) 3,560
Gain on disposal of financial assets at ﬁ’iLA’A Lfﬁfﬁ.ﬁriﬂ/\ 12
fair value through profit or loss % BEE ABEN
TREE WS (815) (7)
Dividend income from financial assets & E L/\’D\/"METEEJFEHEI 12
at fair value through profit or loss FFAEZNEREE
H& A (2,070) (6,551)
Fair value gain on investment KEMELANBEYS 12
properties (442,987) (525,887)
Dividend income from equity BERUNRALBEENERN 12
investments designated at fair m@]d‘)\ﬁﬁiﬁqﬁl =)
value through other comprehensive R E R EWA
income (22,544) (36,362)
Finance costs A& AR 13 1,320,614 1,010,188
Share of profits and losses of JE(REEE AR
associates 266,648 (29,082)
Share of loss of a joint venture B —EeghERE 1,429 1,218
3,487,787 3,333,602
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

2019 2018
20195 20184
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
P& AR® T ARMF T
Decrease in completed properties BESECERMERD
held for sale 660,790 570,502
Additions of properties under BRERAPYFEIEM
development (888,371) (1,073,351)
Decrease in inventories FERL 29,571 1,233
Provision for retirement benefits paid BRI AR A B e 34 (965) (919)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and JEWE S5 I8 R EE
bills receivables (), mb (1,807) 393
Increase in prepayments and A FRIE B H fth R U5 R IE 1 0
other receivables (441,532) (223,412)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and ENESZFEREE
bills payables (R A) /38 hn (1,124,138) 804,338
Increase in deposits received, Bz EFEAR
accruals and other payables E At JE S BRI S 00 257,882 2,017,233
Cash generated from operations LEFRE 1,979,217 5,429,619
Interest received A 60,915 64,395
PRC tax paid B EBIE (676,123) (598,688)
Net cash flows from operating activities &% EBELENB S REFE 1,364,009 4,895,326
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

:nv_\éiﬁﬁﬁié‘%

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT AR T T
CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/FROM BREEH (AR EBEN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERE
Purchase of items of property, BEWE WMELEZEER
plant and equipment (313,024) (468,932)
Purchase of items of investment EEIREYMEIER
properties (138,699) (26,818)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEMF - WEREHIEE
property, plant and equipment F{S 5E 8,744 4,732
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEIAALEETZBEEEH)
through profit or loss FFABENESREE (3,168) -
Purchase of debt instruments at fair value & B A A BETE B H & F)
through profit or loss FFABEMEB LA (205,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of financial HENAREBEFZEHE
assets at fair value through profit or SFABENEMEEMSHIE
loss 759 540,455
Proceeds from disposal of debt HEURAAREEFTEEEED
instruments at fair value through FFABEMEB T AMSHRIE
profit or loss 207,080 -
Proceeds from disposal of equity HEETAUNAAEBETEREE
investments designated at fair value FEgnt \EME2E N ErER
through other comprehensive income "EFTSFIA 4,332 401,239
Proceeds from disposal of partial HE— M E QRO ERE
interest of an associate A 4,000 -
Purchase of land lease prepayments BEAEREMNTE - (23,068)
Purchase of other intangible assets BEHEMEREE (183) (838)
Loans to a related party m— AT ER - (399,933)
Repayment of a loan by a related party — % @B H(EEE R - 399,933
Loans to an associate m—EBERTNER - (120,000)
Repayment of a loan by an associate ~ — & QA FEEER - 66,000
Repayment of a loan by a third party —ZE=-FEEER 9,300 60,000
Increase in an investment in an associate & 17 — R & A FIHIEE (39,874) (193,445)
Acquisition of interests in a joint venture UEEN —MA S D ERMER (1,000) (2,000)
Dividend paid by subsidiaries to i A Al M FEIE IR AR R A AR B
non-controlling shareholders (28,993) (111,828)
Dividend received from an associate rE—EEEARNKRE 5,720 5,569
Dividend received from financial assets KEUAAEBEFEAHE
at fair value through profit or loss FFABENEREERSEWA 2,885 -
Dividend received from equity REEEBAAAEBEFEEE
investments designated at fair value FEst AR E RN ER
through other comprehensive income &R B A 26,143 36,362
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank  (#&41) /B4 B EIFRITER
deposits (6,317) 108,374
Net cash flows from investing activities & EBEENR K= F5E (467,295) 275,802
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARMT ARBTT
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING FARBETHNERSRE
ACTIVITIES
Loan from a third party RE—RBRBEZFHER 200,000 -
Repayment of loan from a third party BE—RZFE=FHNER (60,000) -
New bank loans and other borrowings — #3E84R 1T E R M E M E R 7,189,686 8,032,128
Repayment of bank loans EBIRITER (9,311,697) (9,531,097)
Interest paid BAF B (1,219,813) (1,214,756)
Principal and interest elements of Tﬂ‘é?ﬁ(lﬁz}iﬁﬁ FEE D
lease payments (436,851) -
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KERRKBRARIHER 1,137,311 429,139
Repayment of loans from fellow BEREWBA TET\%’(
subsidiaries (213,000) (609,640)
Purchase of non-controlling interests BEIEERR R ER (60,077) (119,922)
Final dividend paid RERE: T ¥5) (165,842) (177,548)
Net cash flows used in financing ARBEESNREREFRE
activities (2,940,283) (3,191,696)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) RERBEEEMEM
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (;ﬁd‘) FE (2,043,569) 1,979,432
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREEHHTE FE
changes, net (28,771) (131,304)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYNReRREEEY
beginning of year 3,304,911 1,456,783
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERRERALEEY
AT END OF YEAR 1,232,571 3,304,911
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERREEENERIN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITTHEREH 30 1,232,571 3,304,911
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RenERMERE R
in the statement of cash flows BLEEY 1,232,571 3,304,911
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Maoye International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 8 August 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised). The Company’s registered office
address has been changed to P.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion,
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1205 Cayman Islands with effect from 1 October 2016 and the
head office and principal place of business of the Company
is located at 38/F, World Finance Centre, 4003 Shennan East
Road, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the operation and
management of department stores and property development in
Mainland China.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
and the ultimate holding company of the Company are Maoye
Department Store Investment Limited and MOY International
Holdings Limited, respectively, which were incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

RAREEHEHR

EEBEBERERAA([RAT]RA
200758HBHIEHEHERIEFREHS
EPIE22F A RE (1961 E3RIEAR -
LAE & B RAERT B A2 MK L AE %
BREFERTE  ARR) 2 M EE it
D& E AP.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion,
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1205 Cayman
Islands * B2016F10 A1 A% W&
REVRMEE N T ZEE BRI A EE
ARFZME ([FE])FYRFER 4003
SRt RE R 038 - RAB REWB LR
A (G [ NEB]) TEZRPRHRERS
BEERER B Y EERER -

EEZR5 AR ERERARMERL
ERARDRERINABEBRES
AIMaoye Department Store Investment
LimitedAMOQY International Holdings
Limited °

FRNEARNER
AAREIBMBARNEENT

Place and date
of incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued and

Percentage of

registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AR R BERTRAR LN
DAER AHRERBE RAEE ZMER EEEZELL  TEED
Direct Indirect
=8 5k
% %
Maoye Department Store Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$2/US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
RERERRAERAA 11 September 2007 2%7T,/50,000% T REER
RBRBRES
2007594118
Maoye Department Stores (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Investment holding
(“Maoye China”) 7 December 1993 100,000/ 7 REZER
KERE(PE)BRAA ([HXPE]) /519935 12A7H
Zhongzhao Commercial Market PRC/Mainland China HK$1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Development (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 18 June 2004 1,000,0007% 7T REZR
PkEETSRE (RIDFRRE e/ B AR
200456 A 188
Zhongzhao Investment Management Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(“Zhongzhao’) 28 October 1997 AR 50,000,0007T REZR
PAREEBERAR (k) /B AR
19974107287
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019

BZE20194 128318 16 E
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AAREBER (@)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EBEMBLATNER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: AABEEZMBRARIMNEBNOT: (8)

(continued)

Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
SRR MR R BRTRAR NG
NAER AHREXLHY RAEE/ZMER EEEzESE  TEED
Direct Indirect
ER &
% %
Dahua Investment (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$100/HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
RERE (hE)BRAA 28 May 2008 100%7T.,/10,000/8 T REER
&/5200855 4288
Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China US$445,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
(“Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha’) 31 January 1996 445,000,000 70 operation of department
AEEEEERAR ((RYIKEHE]) ~ &/ HEAE stores
1996%1A31H REERREERRE
Shenzhen Maoye Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Shennan Co., Ltd. 20 April 2000 AR #1,000,0007 store
ATEREEERIBERAA e/ REIAR KEBEE
200044 A208
Shenzhen Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB536,869,782 - 82.8  Operation of a department
RIKERERRAA" 20 April 2000 AR #536,869,7827T store
e/ B AR BRERER
2000944208
Shenzhen Maoye Department Store Huagiangbei PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Co., Ltd 31 March 2003 AR%1,000,0007T store
AITEEBRERLBR A /B AR B2RERE
2003F3A31H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration and

1. RRAIREEER (#)

FENBATNESR (8

Nominal value
of issued and

Percentage of

paid-up share/ equity attributable

ARBEIEZMBARMFBNOT : (&)

Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
SRR MR ERARMR VNG|
NEER PHREELH BROEE/EMER EEEZEAL EEH
Direct Indirect
EE B &
% %
Shenzhen Maoye Oriental Times Department ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB1,200,000 - 828  Operation of a department
Store Co., Ltd. 8 August 2005 AR4 200,0007T store
RTRERAERAEFRA A P/ REIARE KERERE
200548 A8H
Zhuhai City Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB4,800,000 - 828  Operation of a department
HETKEBERRAR 24 August 2001 AR #4,800,0007 store
P/ REARE KEBEE
200148H248
Chongging Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
BEEXF¥BEARDA" 27 August 2004 AR #30,000,0007 store
B/ REIARE BERERE
200458 A27H
Taiyuan Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB1,005,000,000 - 100 Operation of a department
ARKEREBRAR 11 April 2008 AR %1,005,000,0007C store
B/ hE AR KEREE
2008447118
Chongging Baifule Business and PRC/Mainland China RMB102,481,500 - 828  Operation of a
Commerce Co., Ltd. 16 September 2008 AE#102,481,5007T supermarket
ERAREHEARD A P/ REIARE BEEm
200849168
Shanxi Maoye Land and Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (“Shanxi Real Estate”) 18 November 2008 AR 100,000,000 FUERR
AKX EESEHEREARAA P/ REARE
((LERLE]) - 20085114188
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31H IEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEIREEER (&)

(continued)
EEMBRARNER (8)
ARG FEMBRARINFENT : (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value
of issued and

Percentage of
paid-up share/ equity attributable

Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
S TR ER BRTRAR NG
NEER REREXBH ROEE/EMER EERZEIL  FEED
Direct Indirect
ER GF:3
% %
Changzhou Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100 Operation of a department
EMNXEREER A 21 May 2009 ARH5,000,0007T store
B/ EAR KEREE
2009F5A218
Shenzhen Maolehui-commmerce Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 98  Operation of a department
MNEEESFEREREELA 26 July 2019 AR H5,000,0007 store
B/ E AR KRk
201957H26H
Tianjin Detai Zhengda Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100 Business services
REEREEREFRAA™ 8 April 2018 AR 100,000,000 BERE
e/ B AR
201854 /8H
Shenyang Maoye Times Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB8,000,000 - 100  Property development
ABEXERREZERAR 24 September 2007 AR %8,000,0007T EHERR
/B AR
2007F9A 248
Shenzhen Municipal Maoye PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 - 100 Provision of advertising
Advertisement Co., Ltd. 25 December 2002 AR#2000,0007T services
AP EEEERRAA B/ EARE REE SRS
2002412 A 25H
Taizhou First Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB18,950,000 - 8057 Operation of a department
ENE-BEREROHERR D" 20 May 1994 AR #18,950,0007 store
e/ E AR KERSE
1994554208
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration and

1. RRAIREEER (#)

FENBATNESR (8

Nominal value
of issued and

Percentage of
paid-up share/ equity attributable

ARBEIEZMBARMFBNOT : (&)

Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
SRR BRTRER NG
NAER PHREELH BRAEE AMER EEEzEIE  TEEH
Direct Indirect
B 5k
% %
Wuxi Yibai Property Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB202,500,000 - 90  Property development
BHEREXRBRAA 15 April 2008 AR 202,500,000 FHEER
B/ EARE
200854 A 158
Shenyang Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB155,000,000 - 100 Operation of a department
KBEFREBRAR" 13 May 2010 AR 155,000,007 store
e/ E AR BERERE
2010654138
Jinzhou Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China HK$193,000,000 - 100  Property development
BMEEERBERAF 9 July 2010 193,000,000 ¢ BEHERR
e/ B AR
201057 A9A
Baoding Maoye Department Store Co., Lid. PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100 Operation of a department
(“Baoding Maoye") 20 September 2010 AR%5,000,0007T store
REXZEBEERLA ((RERERL]) > HB/HEKE K2RERE
201099A 208
Huaian Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB206,000,000 - 100  Property development
ERKXEEEERAR 30 September 2010 AR #206,000,0007C FUHERR
B/ EARE
201069 A 308
Shandong Zibo Maoye Department Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB143,887,180 - 80  Operation of a department
IWREHBTREBEROHERLA 7 January 1999 AR #143,887,1807C store
e/ E AR KERERE
199951 A7H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31H IEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration and

1. REAIREEER (#)

FEMBARNER (8

Nominal value
of issued and

Percentage of
paid-up share/ equity attributable

ARBEZMBARMFBNOT : (&)

Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
S TR ER BRTRAR NG
NAER AHREXLHY RAEE/ZMER EEEzESE  TEED
Direct Indirect
ER GF:3
% %

Baoding Maoye Land and Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (Formerly Baoding 18 December 2006 AR 50,000,0007T BiHEERE
Lingchuang Land and Real Estate P/ REARE
Development Co., Ltd.) 20064124 18H
(“Baoding Lingchuang’)

REXXEHEREARAA
(FBRT R EHEREERAR)

(MREEA])

Chengdu Chengshang Industrial (Holdings) PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 82.8  Investment holding
Co,, Ltd. 12 July 2005 AR #5,000,0007C REEKR

KBRAEE (BR)ERAF B/ E AR

200557128
Linyi Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100 Operation of a department
BrkEAEERAF 3 November 2010 AR #5,000,0007 store
e/ E AR BRERER
201011A38

Taizhou Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China HK$124,800,000 - 100  Property development
(“Taizhou Maoye”) 8 November 2010 124,800,000/ 70 EHERR

FMNEEREXBRRA ([RMNER]) /B AR

201011H8H

Hong Kong Maoye Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB64,643,046 - 70 Operation of a department
(Yangzhou) Co., Ltd. 16 May 1996 AR 64,643,046 store

BRAKRAE (BN ARAF" B/ EARE BERERE

1996554 16H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥ R B

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration and

1. RRAIREEER (#)

FENBATNESR (8

Nominal value
of issued and

Percentage of

paid-up share/ equity attributable

ARBEIEZMBARMFBNOT : (&)

Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
SRR MR ERARMR VNG|
NAER PHREELH BRAEE AMER EEEzEIE  TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE B &
% %
Zibo Maoye Shangsha Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB81,800,000 - 80  Operation of department
MEXEREARRA 25 June 1994 AE%81,800,0007C stores and supermarket
HE/ R E AR chain stores
1994464250 GERgEREHED
Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB1,731,982,546 - 828  Investment holding and
(“Maoye Commercial’) 31 December 1993 AR #1,731,982,5467C operation of department
KEBERNBBAR ([KEFE]) P/ REARE stores
1993%12A31H RELRRBZAERE
Chengdu Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB48,000,000 - 7935 Investment holding
RBXEEXBRDA 18 March 1998 AR %48,000,0007C REER
B/ REIARE
199843 A 18H
Chengshang Group Nanchong Maoye Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
(“Nanchong Maoye") 20 November 2001 AR %20,000,0007T store
KEEEEAXEREBRAA B/ hE AR KEREE
(MEzEsxl)" 2001511 A20H
Nanchong Zefu Trade Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB21,500,000 - 828  Operation of a department
BRREREBRAR 5 November 2014 AE#21,500,0007C store
P/ REARE KERERE
2014511 A58
Nanchong Zhimei Trade Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB3,800,000 - 828  Operation of a department
HREEBHEARRA" 17 November 2014 AR #3,800,0007C store
P/ REIARE BERERE
2014511 A17H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31H IEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration and

1. REAIREEER (#)

FEMBARNER (8

Nominal value
of issued and

Percentage of
paid-up share/ equity attributable

ARBEZMBARMFBNOT : (&)

Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
SRR MR R BRTRAR NG
NAER AHREXLHY RAEE/ZMER EEEzESE  TEED
Direct Indirect
ER &
% %
Chengshang Group Holdings Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB1,378,417,349 - 82.8  Property leasing
(‘Chengshang Group") 9 March 1998 ARHE1378,417 3497 NERE
KEEERRERAR ([HEKE]) ~ B/ EARE
199843 A9H
Leshan E'mei Shan Chengshang PRC/Mainland China RMB33,730,000 - 66.24  Operation of a hotel and
Phoenix Co., Ltd. 11 March 1997 AR 33,730,0007T provision of ancillary
2 mEELRRENBHBERERAR  RE/PEAE services
199743118 B2k LR R E RS
Chengdu People’s Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
(Group) Mianyang Co., Ltd. 13 September 2007 AR 5,000,000 store
KBARES (£E)®HEERRE B/ B AR BRERER
200794138
Chengshang Group Chengdu People’s PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 828  Investment holding and
Department Store Co., Ltd. 21 August 2009 AR #20,000,0007T operation of department
KESERBARESERAF RE/REARE stores
2009%8A21A REBRREEEERE
Chengdu Maoye Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB8,000,000 - 82.8  Property development
KBREHERR R A 15 July 2008 AR %8,000,0007C FHEZR
B/ EARE
200847158
Heze Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 7452  Operation of a department
HEXXAEARRA" 29 December 2008 AR #5,000,0007C store
e/ E AR BRERERE
2008412 A429H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REIREEER (&)

(continued)
EEMERARNER (8)
AABIFEMBRARINFENT : (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value
of issued and

Percentage of
paid-up share/ equity attributable

Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
SRR MR BRTRER NG
NAER PHREELH BRAEE AMER EEEzEIE  TEEH
Direct Indirect
B B &
% %
Jiangsu Maoye Department Stores PRC/Mainland China RMB325,000,000 - 100  Property development
THXXASAERRA" 9 May 2012 AR #325,000,0007C FHEER
B/ EARE
201245 A9H
Baotou Maoye Dongzheng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 26 October 2011 AR #10,000,0007C FUERR
(“Baotou Maoye Dongzheng’) hEl/ B ARE
BRAMKEREFHERERRAF 20114107268
([BERERE]) "
Laiwu Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of a department
REXZEZXARAA" 25 December 2012 AR %20,000,0007 store
B/ hE AR K2RERE
2012412 4 25H
Shenzhen Maoye Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB545,465,800 - 100 Investment holding
(“Shenzhen Maoye Investment”) 24 August 2012 AR #545,465,8007T REER
RINKERERRERAR (FRYIBERE]) ~ B/ REKE
201248248
Shenyang Anli Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB133,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
(“Shenyang Anli") 4 August 2005 AR 133,000,0007T property management
EERUEEREAREALR ([BBRY]) ~ vB/HEAKE REBREMEFER
20054848
Shenyang Maoye Hotel Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 99  Hotel business
BEXEEERRAR 30 August 2007 AR #10,000,0007C EEE
e/ B AR
200748 A30H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31H IEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration and

1. REAIREEER (#)

FEMBARNER (8

Nominal value
of issued and

Percentage of
paid-up share/ equity attributable

ARBEZMBARMFBNOT : (&)

Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
SRR MR R BRTRAR NG
NAER AHREXLHY RAEE/ZMER EEEzESE  TEED
Direct Indirect
ER &
% %
Liaoning Logistics Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB78,000,000 - 9994 Investment holding and
(“Liaoning Logistics") 12 May 2003 AR 78,000,0007T property development
EENMRERDA ([RENR]) B/ EAR REBRREHEER
2003F5A 128
Shenyang Zhanye Property Co., Ltd. (“Zhanye”) PRC/Mainland China RMB245,000,000 - 5094  Property development
RERFENERLA ([RE]) ™ 2 September 1999 AR #245,000,0007 FHELR
B/ E AR
1999F9A2H
Shandong Weizhou Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100  Property development
\WRAMEZFRAE 11 August 2009 AR 50,000,000 FHERR
e/ B AR
2009F8A118
Qinhuangdao Maoye Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB515,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. 4 January 2012 AR #515,000,0007 operation of a
FEBRERMEREARAA" hEl/ R AR department store
201291748 FHEZRREZRER
Qinghuangdao Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB8,000,000 - 82.8  Property development
REBRREXFHEREERLA" 19 May 2016 AR #8,000,0007T FHEZR
B/ EARE
2016F5A 198
Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB135,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 8 August 2000 AR 135,000,000 FUERR
ZEEMEREHEREER A B/ E AR
200058 A8H
Zibo Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100  Property development
HBREERERAA 29 November 2013 AR 20,000,007 FHERR
e/ E AR
2013411 429H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration and

1. RRAIREEER (#)

FENBATNESR (8

Nominal value
of issued and

Percentage of
paid-up share/ equity attributable

ARBEIEZMBARMFBNOT : (&)

Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
SRR MR BRTRER NG
NAER PHREELH BRAEE AMER EEEzEIE  TEEH
Direct Indirect
B B &
% %
Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Housing Decoration PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Property leasing
Market Co., Ltd. 20 November 2003 AR #1,000,0007T NEHE
FERCRFEEMHHARL A B/ hE AR
2003F11 7208
Qinhuangdao Maoye Department Store Co., Lid. PRC/Mainland China RMB342,301,588 - 100 Operation of a
RERKEXBRARAA™ 26 June 2001 AR 342,301,5887C supermarket
P/ REARE BERERE
200146268
Qinhuangdao Maoye Property Management PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100  Property leasing
Co., Ltd. 26 June 2001 AR %5,000,0007C NxEHEE
REBKENERBERAF e/ B AR
2001964268
Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Business Management ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB140,000,000 - 100 Property management
Co., Ltd. 14 April 2001 AR 140,000,0007T MEER
FEETERAZERAREAL A" B/ hE AR
2001F4A148
Anhui Guorun Investment and Development PRC/Mainland China RMB294,330,000 - 100 Investment holding and
Co., Ltd. (“Anhui Guorun’) 4 October 1998 AR #5294 330,0007T property development
ZHERREERERAR ([RBEE]) ~  +E/PEAKE REBRREHEERR
199810 H4H
Chuzhou Maoye Investment and PRC/Mainland China RMB70,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 25 April 2003 AR #70,000,0007C FUERR
BHEEREERARA A P/ REARE
20034 A258
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31H IEFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration and

1. REAIREEER (#)

FEMBARNER (8

Nominal value
of issued and

Percentage of
paid-up share/ equity attributable

ARBEZMBARMFBNOT : (&)

Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
S TR ER BRTRAR NG
NAER REREXBH RAEE/ZMER EEEzESE  TEED
Direct Indirect
ER GF:3
% %
Wuhu Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB110,000,000 - 100  Property development
BRXFERBRRA" 16 May 2002 AK#110,000,0007 FHEZR
B/ EAR
200265A 168

Huainan Maoye Investment and Development ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB31,600,000 - 100 Property development
Co,, Ltd. 26 March 2002 AR#31,600,0007C FHEZR

EEXEREERARR A B/ E AR

200263 A 268

Chengdu Maoye Renhe Spring Department PRC/Mainland China RMB40,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Store Co., Ltd. (‘Chengdu Renhe Spring’) 29 October 1997 AK#40,000,0007T store

KABTXECHERBEERAR e/ E AR BRERER
([RBLAEX]) - 1997410 29H

Chengdu Qingyang District Maoye Renhe PRC/Mainland China RMB185,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Spring Department Store Co., Ltd. 29 November 2007 AR #185,000,0007 store
(“Chengdu Qingyang Renhe Spring’) hEl/ R AR BEREE

RBTEFRXECNEREEARAR 2007411 4298
([REBEFX-NEX])

Inner Mongolia Victory Commercial (Group) PRC/Mainland China RMB170,000,000 - 5796 Investment holding
Co., Limited 12 June 2002 AR ®170,000,0007T and operation of a
(‘Victory Commercial’) HE B AR department store

NEL#SNER (RE)BRAF 200246 A 12A REERREEREE

([ESHEE]) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration and

1. RRAIREEER (#)

FENBATNESR (8

Nominal value
of issued and

Percentage of
paid-up share/ equity attributable

ARBEIEZMBARMFBNOT : (&)

Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
SRR BRTRER NG
NAER AHRERBE BRAEE AMER EEEzEIE  TEEH
Direct Indirect
B 5k
% %
Inner Mongolia Victory Xincheng Commercial ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB140,000,000 - 5796  Operation of a department
Management Co., Limited 15 January 2008 AE#140,000,0007T store
REGESNHEXERERAF" B/ hEAR BERgE
20085 1A 158
Inner Mongolia Jinweili Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 5796  Operation of a department
Management Co., Limited 24 March 2015 AK%10,000,0007T store
REHEENBEERERR A e/ E AR BERERE
201563248
Baotou Maoye Victory Business Management ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Co., Limited 14 November 2019 AR 10,000,000 store
BRAMKEASNBEEERRAF e/ E AR RERER
2019F11A14H
Baotou Victory Mall Co., Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 57.96  QOperation of a department
BETELHEEERAR" 14 April 2009 AR #10,000,0007T store
e/ HE AR R2RERE
20094 A 148
Inner Mongolia Victory Supermarket Chain PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 5796 Operationof a
Co., Limited 6 March 2003 AR #20,000,0007T supermarket
REG@SNBTERERA T B/ EARE f2wEm
2003F3H6H
Baotou Victory Commercial Management PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 - 5796  Operation of a department
Co., Limited 28 October 2013 AK%3,000,0007T store
BEMASNERERARAR" e/ E AR KERERE
2013510A28H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31H IEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration and

1. REAIREEER (#)

FEMBARNER (8

Nominal value
of issued and

Percentage of
paid-up share/ equity attributable

ARBEZMBARMFBNOT : (&)

Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
SRR MR R BRTRAR NG
NAER AHREXLHY RAEE/ZMER EEEzESE  TEED
Direct Indirect
ER &
% %
Baotou Victory Supermarket Co., Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 - 5796 Operationof a
PEM&SFIRTERLA™ 30 December 2013 AR500,0007 supermarket
P/ REARE wagm
2013F12A30H
Hohhot Victory Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 57.96  Property development
Co., Limited 29 November 2001 AR 30,000,000 FUERR
WRERTESNEEREERD A e/ E AR
2001114298
Hohhot Victory Property Management LLC PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 - 5796 Property leasing
WRESTASNDERBERRERA™ 25 January 2008 AR #500,0007 NEHEE
e/ B AR
200814258
Baotou Victory Property Management PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 57.96  Property management
Co., Limited 21 May 2014 AR%1,000,0007T mEERE
BENASNNEERERAA /B AR
2014F5A218
Maoye Data Intelligence Information Technology PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 98  Investment holding
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited 23 January 2017 AR #10,000,0007T REER
KEHEBSE LRI (RI)BRR A P/ REIAR
201751 A23A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration and

1. 2EREEER (#)

FEMBRRANER (8)

Nominal value
of issued and

Percentage of

paid-up share/ equity attributable

ARABEEMBRARNFENOT: (&)

Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
EMAYLEMBHER ERITRARE NG
RS EHREELH BRAEE/ZAMEL EEEzZEIE  EEIH
Direct Indirect
B B
% %
Shenzhen Maoye Commercial Factoring PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 82.8  Investment holding
Co., Limited 17 December 2017 AR %5,000,0007T REER
R EREFHEREBRRA" B/ hE AR
2017412 717H
Baotou Maoye Property Co., Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 828  Property management
PBEKEEEERLA™ 20 September 2019 AE#10,000,0007T MEEE
B/ E AR
20194694208
Maoye Technology Retails Co., Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 828  Investment holding
KEMBZERRAA 16 December 2019 AR #10,000,0007C REAR
hE/REARE
201951274168
Chengdu Maoye Hotel Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 828  Hotel business
RBXEEERRRR™ 12 November 2019 AR %10,000,0007 BEE
/B AR
2019411 12H

* A subsidiary with its A shares listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in the

PRC

*%

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

Companies registered as limited liability companies under PRC law

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

*%

—HARERBE LBEFZ S EWANE

2

RETEZEEMAEREERFANAF]

RITK e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31H IEFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

21 fRBE%E

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"),
which comprise standards and interpretations approved by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and
International Accounting Standards and Standing Interpretations
Committee Interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Committee, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL"), equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB11,183,768,000. The Group’s ability to repay
its debts when they fall due relies heavily on its future operating
cash flows and its ability to renew the bank loans and other
borrowings. The directors have carefully assessed the Group's
liquidity position having taken into account:

(1) the Group’s expected cash inflows from operating activities in
2020;

(2) the directors of the Company are also confident that bank
borrowings, which will expire during the next 12 months,
could be renewed upon expiration based on the Group’s past
experience and credit standing;

(3) the unutilised credit facility of the Group amounted to
RMB627,600,000 as at 31 December 2019; and

(4) subsequent to 31 December 2019, the Group has obtained
new banking facilities with an aggregate amount of
RMB2,626,500,000 with maturity of five months to fifteen
years.

The directors of the Company believe that the Group has
adequate resources to continue operation for the foreseeable
future of not less than 12 months from the end of the reporting
year. The directors of the Company therefore are of the opinion
that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

I 2 B 75 ¥R R R AR IR B R B 5 e o E
(BB BHREER]) (BEHEERS
AEREEE (BT EREEE])
HEMZERI N2 E  ABREG T EAPES
SHENBEREF LR EHRELZER
SRBUNBERRGRINRERE) -
WL A KRB R B R R AR
EBEAELEZHFABRENTREE
BERSAAABEFEAEZEHTAR
o2 E RS ESR IR EARA AR EE
AE-BRRAEAEIN WEHBHERERIN
ARE (AR 25 MAESEHY

BEESEAOTTe

R2019F 128318 AEBMREBAEF
B4 B AR H11,183,768,0007T ° AN &
EEIHEENENRRKEE LERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 21 RBEE (@)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31H IEFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures
Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11,

IAS 12 and IAS 23

Annual Improvements to
2015-2017 Cycle

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Except for the amendments to IFRS 9 and IAS 19, and Annual
Improvements to 2015-2017 Cycle, which are not relevant to the
preparation of the Group’s financial statements, the nature and the
impact of the new and revised IFRSs are described below:

(a) IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining

22 ETHENEHRINE (@)

B BN B 75 3R 5 2R RN SE 95 ((BRTAN)
RERTERIFA95E (BRI A) R2015F F
20174 18 B 1) 4F JZ 24 £ B 1w BN 5% (B B
BT BN 7] RARIEFT BRI 5 3R

SEBIMME R ERIIMT

(@) BFR B 75 3R 5 7 RIS 16557 AU B B

whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-
balance sheet model to recognise and measure right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, except for certain recognition
exemptions. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors continue to classify leases
as either operating or finance leases using similar principles
as in IAS 17.

The Group adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
method of adoption with the date of initial application of 1
January 2019. Under this method, the standard has been
applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings at 1 January 2019, and the comparative information
for 2018 was not restated and continued to be reported under
IAS 17 and interpretations.

New definition of a lease

Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of the
identified asset. The Group elected to use the transition
practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied only
to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 at the date of initial application. Contracts
that were not identified as leases under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4
were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition of a lease under
IFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts entered into or
changed on or after 1 January 2019.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31H IEFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 222 BERNEBHRIKE (&)

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a) (continued) (@ (&)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases
Nature of the effect of adoption of IFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land
and buildings. Under IFRS 16, the Group applies a single
approach to recognise and measure right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for all leases, except for two elective
exemptions for leases of low value assets (elected on a lease-
by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less (short-term leases) (elected by class of underlying asset).
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for (i) leases of low-value assets; and (ii)
leases, that at the commencement date, have a lease term
of 12 months or less. Instead of recognising rental expenses
under operating leases over the lease term commencing from
1 January 2019, the Group recognises the lease payments
associated with those leases as “payments for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets” on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised based
on the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 January
2019. The Group elected to present the lease liabilities
separately in the statement of financial position. The right-of-
use assets were measured at the amount of the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognised in the statement of
financial position immediately before 1 January 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based on
IAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present the right-of-
use assets separately in the statement of financial position.

For the leasehold land and buildings (that were held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation) previously
included in investment properties and measured at fair value,
the Group has continued to include them as investment
properties at 1 January 2019. They continue to be measured
at fair value applying IAS 40.
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a) (continued)
Financial impact at 1 January 2019

The impact arising from the adoption of IFRS 16 as at 1

(a) (&)

22 ETHENEHRINE (@)

RO0194E1 5 1H 8951 76 5 £

R2019F1 A1 MBI BR B 7S 3 &

January 2019 is as follows: ERIE16HI BN -
Increase/
(decrease)
g, CRL)
RMB’000
AR T T
Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use assets ERAREELM 7,813,189
Decrease in prepaid land lease payments AN T E FUIE R D (4,417,142)
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables TERT 3R W I R B & ER
and other assets (337,577)
Increase in total assets B E BRI 3,058,470
Liabilities afE
Increase in lease liabilities HE&FEEM 3,058,470
Increase in total liabilities BERTEIEM 3,058,470
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
(a) (continued)
Financial impact at 1 January 2019 (continued)

The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to the
operating lease commitments as of 31 December 2018 are as

22T RSB RIE (1)

(a) (&)

RO019F 1 H1H A8 7557 25 (4E)
MR2019F1A1TENHEEEE R
2018%F 12 A31H MK L H E & H Y

follows: BRI
RMB’000
ARBFTT
Operating lease commitments as at R2018F12A31 BN E A E&AH
31 December 2018 3,844,503
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as 7201941 51 B #9318 8 {& F Fl =&
at 1 January 2019 6.76%
Discounted operating lease commitments at M20195F1 A1B W E MR A& & HH &R
1 January 2019 3,147,270
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases & : L5 HATAE & #4210 & Ef
and those leases with a remaining 15 1E2019412 A31H 5
lease term ended on or Z BRI ERBER A
before 31 December 2019 (129,028)
Commitments relating to leases of low- HKEBEAEMEMBEN AR
value assets (9)
Add: Payments in optional extension periods A 201812831 H R HER
not recognised as at 31 December 2018 ALEELERAATR 40,237
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R2019F1B1EHMBEEARE 3,058,470
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31H EFE
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2B BRNEHREE (8

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) Amendments to IAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of (b) BIRR & ar R 5285% (5T A) BB
IFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or joint venture B0 R B 75 ¥ 5 2RI RO MY SB [E FA 2
to which the equity method is applied and does not include EEEERERENBEARHEE
long-term interests that in substance form part of the net TtENER BETREEE FHEKRE
investment in the associate or joint venture, to which the ERENAEEREREFE—HOE
equity method has not been applied. Therefore, an entity I M fE AR AR R EIRE RS - Bt -
applies IFRS 9, rather than IAS 28, including the impairment RZERAERNGITEES B8
requirements under IFRS 9, in accounting for such long- JE FR B PR B 755 e & 2 R BB 05% (B 4E
term interests. 1AS 28 is then applied to the net investment, B B B 7% R 5 E B SE09R T AR E AR
which includes the long-term interests, only in the context E) M IEBIRR & 5 A 52855 - R
of recognizing losses of an associate or joint venture and ERERBE NG ECENEER
impairment of the net investment in the associate or joint AT keEhbREREFERME
venture. The Group assessed its business model for its long- HERT TEREREFE(BRER
term interests in associates or joint ventures upon adoption of HAREzR ) I PR B R & 5T 4R B 58 2855% -
the amendments on 1 January 2019 and concluded that the AEBBR2019F1A1HERMZE
long-term interests in associates and joint ventures continued BRI AR AR E AR a St
to be measured at amortised cost in accordance with IFRS 9. FORBABZNEBEL  SERAR
Accordingly, the amendments did not have any impact on the e A REECENRARRES
financial position or performance of the Group. 1R 15 (B B 7 7 ey o 28 R 055 1 85

ARG & o B It - RS RT AN 0
IRE BB ISR R R B AE A A 52
5,

(c) IFRIC 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current (c) B BmEABEE®F23RHA
and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty ERBRELS R g EEE g 2R
that affects the application of IAS 12 (often referred to B12REANTETCMERE (FHEA
as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not [TREERBIBR])BaFTEH (AD
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor HSRRE ) 5T IE I o iZ 2 B N E
does it specifically include requirement relating to interest PP BIRR & 5t 2RI 551255 #305 LAY
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. WIS E TR ARSHAE T
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an MEREEMANE REFRERK %
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the REAEHPBO)ERELERERT
assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax EEHRFRIE : (EEMH IR E
treatments by tax authorities; (i) how an entity determines TR BEEFAEEDORE: (i)
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, ERETERTRMNIBHBER W
unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity E - KRBABBEER RBAHBKE
considers changes in facts and circumstances. Upon ERHMENTR M(VWEREEEE
adoption of the interpretation, the Group considered whether MBEREBH T c NEECRER
it has any uncertain tax positions arising from the transfer ZEZRERERARTETMESE
pricing on its inter-group sales. Based on the Group's tax WA HEE/EREEE M B
compliance, the Group determined that the interpretation did THEEBRBMRNA - ERAEBTES
not have any impact on the financial position or performance B AEERASNIGHBARA LN
of the Group. HEEEERE B ZEZREL

AR BB AR S RIRERE
mEe-
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31H IEFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

2.3 G EME R AE R BEIR M H R E
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING 22|

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective in these financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to IFRS 9,
|AS 39 and IFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

Amendments to IFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets

|AS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current*
Definition of Material’

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IAS 8

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

ESEE A

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that
for an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without including
all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs.
The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration
test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020.
Since the amendments apply retrospectively to transactions or
other events that occur on or after the date of first application, the
Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 C BB 8 R A M BRI BR B S 3R o5

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address the effects
of interbank offered rate reform on financial reporting. The
amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge
accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty before
the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark. In
addition, the amendments require companies to provide additional
information to investors about their hedging relationships which
are directly affected by these uncertainties. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
Early application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion
of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint
ventures. However, the amendments are available for adoption
NOW.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend
on the nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T ESHBEME
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POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest or generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in its associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made
to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may
exist. The Group’'s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealized losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or
joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or joint ventures.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group. Liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-
measured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previously held
equity interests, over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other
items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBOREE (#)
POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill EBaHREE
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HZE2019F12A31H IEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T ESHBERBE (@)
POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued) EBREHREE (&)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment loss. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units
or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
takes place either in the principal market for the asset, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBOREE (#)
POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued) AAEBEE (&)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T ESHBEME (1)
POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets FeRmEERME

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets and
investment properties and non-current assets/a disposal group
classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs to disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person (i) has control or joint control over the
Group; (ii) has significant influence over the Group; or (iii) is a
member of the key management personnel of the Group or of
a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the Group (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,

provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Q4T EEHBEME (@)
POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation NE BEREEUARTE

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost (or valuation) less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalized in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the
fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its
carrying amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and
equipment are dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation
reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit,
on an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to the statement of profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to the statement of profit or loss to the extent of
the deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the asset
revaluation reserve to retained profits is made for the difference
between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount
of an asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s original
cost. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the
asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations
is transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T ESHHERBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

ME BERREURITE (&)
WEDNEME BER&EHEB NEF
AFERATHANEREHEEERAET
HBEEFESH R EROEBEY
ExmT:

Annual depreciation rate

FIER

Land and buildings T REF
Machinery and equipment g N

Motor vehicles AE
Furniture, fittings and other equipment
Leasehold improvements MEMERE
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sale proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents properties under construction,
which are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X ESHBERE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties REWE

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change
in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”, and
any difference at that date between the carrying amount and
the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from
inventories to investment properties, any difference between the
fair value of the property at that date and its previous carrying
amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost, which include all
development expenditures, including land costs, interest charges
and other costs directly attributable to such properties.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the normal
operating cycle.

Properties under development are valued at the lower of cost and
net realizable value at the end of the reporting period and any
excess of cost over the net realizable value of an individual item of
properties under development is accounted for as a provision. Net
realizable value is based on estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business as determined by management with reference
to the prevailing market conditions, less further costs expected to
be incurred to completion and selling and marketing costs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T ESHHERBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life
of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a
lease component and non-lease component(s), the Group adopts
the practical expedient not to separate non-lease component(s)
and to account for the lease component and the associated non-
lease component(s) (e.g., property management services for
leases of properties) as a single lease component.

144  MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 % BB 2 2 /5 R A 7

BEEE (BERMD)

ST O BT B 1) 2 HE AR B 1R X
REE -REBAHEUBNELEENX
AHERWEBRNARBE BEE
H R B FH BN R B R ER - F 5
BIROELEEREZN A ERKEAY
N BB RBNELEER BERE
AR EA S HBERE - AERFHAER
MEVEENBHEFHRBHETEZED
AREFRFE R — R

A {£ A 4 HR AR IR 00 B T B E R B 4 (A
SRR EE BN ARRETRER B - 1t
HE|IVEENTHE - A FHERD
BIVEENR £ AFHASFETR
NEE fERFHERNFELEIDHA
EE-MNEE  RIRBEHRELEKRER
FHNFEHEREERARAK-

HE (B2019F1A1HBER)
AREFBEAYHABBFTHEANRE A
EyERSHE MENEETE—TH
fa] PO 11 E 58 Bl B 2= {5 FA Y 4 1) DA #R BY
HE AZANWAHESEREHEE-

A E B E AN

AREBELPAARERAE —HALTET
wo R REERMEEEEEHEERI -
AEEERAUANBENKOEERE
EREEREEEERMNNEREEE -

ERRREFFERHEANE D K IE
HEHEKI DG O - NREEERM AT
REDFEETOIIFEEEARE D -
ERHEEAKBO MEEEENIEEE
AR ERE—THEAKE D AfKe

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 [E 3§ &



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31H IEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date of the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities is recognised, initial direct costs, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the asset as
follows:

Land use right
Buildings

20 to 40 years
2 to 15 years

If ownership of leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.
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HZE2019F12A31H EFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of office equipment (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases
of low-value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop

computers that are considered to be low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an

operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease term and is included in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which

they are earned.

Lease that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are

accounted for as finance leases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T ESHBEME (&)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under captalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the statement of profit of loss so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially are the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings, as finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group's business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual
cash flows are selling. Financial assets which are not held within
the aforementioned business models are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 T EETTHBERE ()
POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets REGHMERMEE
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HZE2019F12A31H ILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T ESHBEME (1)
POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued) RERHMEBMEE (&)
Subsequent measurement BEE

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debts investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in
other comprehensive income is recycled to the statement of profit
or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost
of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.
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Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group
had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
also recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms and the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out
of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirely as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

— the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBOREE (#)
POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued) RERHMEBMEE (&)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Q4T EEHBEME (@)
POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued) ﬁ%tﬁﬁ%ﬁmﬁlﬁé (#&)

— the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates, if and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

AEEEEWREEMGRERAEN
RER| Sk ARIE—T8 [ 881 | HERIE
ET EWESERERNBERLT #
SR eRE28NTFE=F: H(@a)
AEBEEZEENBRNIS D RAR L
o] ¥R ; ﬁ(b)$%ﬁﬁ%§§§ﬂ%%ﬁ
ERBERIoRER &R BEEE
BEENE %‘J%"

A EEREWINE EMSR T IMENE
MBI BN HE AIASEGN AR
BIRE % EE AR E R KB H®IA K
E%:—J‘ R R SR B ER R ARED
o kR K B - R AR R A A R
Zli’gll?yt ii@@iﬁiaﬁq%é%ﬁjﬁfﬁﬁ
*H?ﬁ’é\ﬁaoELE%EF&*HE@EEE&@%
REBAREENMEBHELTE -

SEWRAENER YD WRAERR
MERBESE FAREERANER
FUES LR PP R WA
Bt &

SRIEERE
AEEGRFABELIENAABEFEREER
BEHABGMNESIARREHEE
EERE BEEEEBEERBRESLNT
/HHE)‘] ’Jfﬁimiéﬁizﬁilﬁﬁﬁ%@yﬁﬁ
rEREREZEMNEBMTE  WHR
BERMEG R MERMR -FEHR N2 K
BREHEMBFEANRRENENE
MR EMEERARE -

—HE

TEHR = E B8 0 MBS R TR - i 412
LX?K%EELBMI?%K%?MEMD%MEl
MEs @ARKI2EAALEENENS
HEEANEEEE (12@AEBEEE
BHRTEHEE B BEE LY ER
LREERBAEEMNNEEROMS
/,\?ﬁﬁiﬂ;ﬁEAMDE’]ﬁ%TEHHFEE’H*%ES
Bt RBERE (THENNER) (2
HTEHEEEE)

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED & ¥ B IR A R A 7

151



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY

Year ended 31 December 2019

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

152  MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 2 BB =R AR A &)

HE2019F 128318 L FE
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T ESHBEME (&)
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POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach (continued)

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
amounts due to related parties and interest-bearing loans and
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial
assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics
of a liability is recognised as a liability in the statement of financial
position, net of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible
bonds, the fair value of the liability component is determined
using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and
this amount is carried as a long term liability on the amortised
cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option
that is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option
is not re-measured in subsequent years. Transaction costs are
apportioned between the liability and equity components of the
convertible bonds based on the allocation of proceeds to the
liability and equity components when the instruments are first
recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X ESHBERE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Inventories FE

Inventories comprise merchandise purchased for resale and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of
merchandise is determined on the moving weighted average
method basis. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realizable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment
of the total land and buildings costs attributable to unsold
properties. Net realizable value is estimated by the directors
based on the prevailing market prices, on an individual property
basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have
a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Coupon liabilities

Coupon liabilities are recognised based on the fair value of bonus
points or coupons granted to customers in accordance with the
announced bonus point scheme and the Group's past experience
on the level of redemption of coupons and are recorded in other
payables. The revenue of the Group is deducted when the coupon
liabilities are recognised.

FEEERBEMBANEY  WiKMKA
KA HRFEE(AREERE)IK-&
IENPS Ik B S S C Rk
BEREAEERBEE XK MHERET
EERMERMEFT KA E -

RERECEBME
RBEFECRITY XL AL A &R F
B (AEBEESE)IIR - KAEREY
KB i MABF BRI
o AR FEMERRBITMENER
WMER/EEMET

RERREEEY

IEERERERMNE REMREFE
MEBFRBAE AR IR A MEFER
T BEZPHEARSMANIISE B
—EAREIHEERER  BEBERER
REZNRITESMAK  SAKEREE
BAR RIS -

REAMBMRAENS BeRASSE
WeIERRL MR HNFEES RRT
R

B

FBEREMELNRE B OXEE
B BRI RE BB BB EN L ERNETT
BREME YrAABAFEENSRE
AFE A

EURNTEBEAR BEBRANEES
BARNEREMRUBETEEMGAH
MRS IRE - BERERAMELENE
MRBEENEEFARBBRROR
BRAS ©

RERHNHEE

Rz EERECD AMEDEE
G TEPMNESRESR ST NS
MAREBEARNEEBERBRRST
SR ERTER - Wt AH MBI FIR -
AEENBARRSITINSF B ERRE
it

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED & ¥ B IR A R A 7

165



@

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥ R B

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X ESHBERE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued) RSB ()

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group a
significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in IFRS 15.

(a) Direct sales of merchandise and sales of properties
Revenue from the direct sales of merchandise and sales of
properties is recognised at the point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer.

(b) Commissions from concessionaire sales
Commissions from concessionaire sales are recognised upon
the sale of merchandise by the relevant concessionaires,
which is taken to be the point in time when the control of the
asset is transferred to the customer.

(c) Management fee income from the operation of department
stores is recognised when management services are
rendered.

(d) Administration and management fee income, promotion
income and credit card handling fees from suppliers and
concessionaires are recognised when services are rendered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X ESHBERE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued) WATERE (%)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

Retirement benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are covered by government-regulated
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes under which
the employees are entitled to a monthly pension. The Group
contributes to these retirement benefit schemes on a monthly
basis at a percentage of the employees’ salaries. Under these
schemes, the Group has no legal obligation for retirement benefits
beyond the contributions made. Contributions to these schemes
are expensed as incurred.

Other employee benefits
Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan which requires
contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The
benefits are unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.
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Re-measurements arising from the defined benefit pension plan,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability) and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability)
are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of
financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
profits through other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:

e the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
e the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the
net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under
“‘employee expenses”, "other operating expenses” and “finance
costs” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss by function:

e service costs comprising current service costs and past
service costs

e gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements
e net interest expense or income

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation rate of
8.12% has been applied to the expenditure on the individual
assets.
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POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued) HittgSEF (&)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X ESHBERE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Dividends e

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The Company and other investment holding subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin Islands and
Hong Kong use the Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") as their functional
currency. The functional currency of the PRC subsidiaries is
RMB. As the Group mainly operates in Mainland China, RMB
is used as the presentation currency of the Group. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.
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The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of subsidiaries outside Mainland China are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of subsidiaries outside
Mainland China which arise throughout the year are translated into
RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

e  Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased
out and accounted for the contracts as operating leases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

e (Classification between investment properties and owner-

occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are
attributable not only to property but also to other assets used
in the department store operations. Some properties comprise
a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for use in the supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
could be sold separately or leased out separately under a
finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately.
If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
use in the supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions
and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond
the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

e Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Management will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives are different to previously estimated,
or will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2019 was RMB1,339,782,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB1,395,097,000). Further details are given in note 20.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and other receivables. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by
letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix
to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of
a customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables and other
receivables is disclosed in note 28 and note 29 to the financial
statements, respectively.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate
of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions)
or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates)
when available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(a) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and
timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31
December 2019 was RMB19,692,166,000 (31 December
2018: RMB16,334,049,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity
analysis, are given in note 18 to the financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December 2019 was
RMB93,603,000 (31 December 2018: RMB81,918,000). The
amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2019 was
RMB2,695,151,000 (31 December 2018: RMB1,972,479,000).
Further details are contained in note 25 to the financial
statements.

Net realizable value of inventories and completed properties
held for sale

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling
expenses. Net realizable value of completed properties held
for sale is estimated by the directors based on the prevailing
market prices. These estimates are based on the current
market conditions and the historical experience of selling
merchandise of a similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste or competitor actions.
The Group reassesses these estimates at the end of the
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial asset (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-
of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite
life intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and
at other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs
of disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. Further details, including a sensitivity analysis
of key assumptions, are given in note 43 to the financial
statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based
on a market-based valuation technique as detailed in note
42 to the financial statements. The valuation requires the
Group to determine the comparable public companies
(peers) and select the price multiple. In addition, the Group
makes estimates about the discount for illiquidity and size
differences. The Group classifies the fair value of these
investments as Level 3. The fair value of the unlisted equity
investments at 31 December 2019 was RMB573,967,000
(2018: RMB474,105,000). Further details are included in note
24 to the financial statements.

Recognition of deferred tax liabilities for withholding taxes

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for withholding tax
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprise established in Mainland China.
Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax liabilities that can be recognised,
based upon the likely dividends declared. Further details are
contained in note 25 to the financial statements.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on the nature of their operations and their products
and services and has three reportable operating segments as
follows:

(a)

(c)

the operation of department stores segment comprises
concessionaire sales, direct sales of merchandise and the
leasing out of commercial properties for the operation of
department stores by third parties;

the property development segment is principally engaged
in the development and sale of commercial and residential
properties as well as the leasing out of commercial properties
other than for the operation of department stores; and

the “others” segment comprises, principally, operations of
hotels, and the provision of ancillary services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss
attributable to owners of the parent.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

3.

4.

EREah Al R A ()

BT EERZE (#)

o I FTEBIRENASLIEE
JE LTSI EER Y B RE M 42
Pl iy h S BRI EI T E - 3%
FHEEXRAEBBEEIELERARA
A (B17) RBUREREH - 1IN &K
EEGHFIERDESRBEEZENE
BT A EEBZERENARE
EDBEAE =M -1H2019F12H31H
FELEMEREENAALBEAA
R ¥573,967,0007C (20184 : AR¥E
474,105,0007T ) ° # — 2 FF B E A B
TSR KM 5124,

o HHEIEWEMZELHERE
EERIRREHENPBEARERYZ
SMEHRBERERAIINBEREE DS
P TaIR IR IR MR - EIEENE
FE AR RIA R BN SRR AR
TR AL B B A th BRI o HE —
R BEN M SRR M L5 -

RETHER

BHEEE FEENCEEHREEL
M A T 9 4 R B PR AL )
R - = A ok 8 5 SR S
mT

EEDRNEEBRREEEHE
REmEFEN R HEERY RS
TREBREE:

(a)

|11 I I
Bo

MEZRDA TENEABRHEE
EAEEEDE URLEERYE
MIEKEBEE: R

[Hf] 2&f TERFBBEELER
RHUEERS -

(c)

EREHASESEE D ABEEA D BIE
TTER ¥R LA SL B R 2 B S 48 RGRH AR 1R R
Ko HERTENRBNE R RIEER
BAZ A& D BRI, B RE TR

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED & ¥ B IR A R A 7

167



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4,

Intersegment revenue and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.

2«( r’:é‘. PaN ﬁﬁﬁﬂ

“*BFW&U\&EE%%& RIZERTEM
BHETTHY

BHERF=TMERNE

Operation of Adjustments
department Property and
stores  development Others eliminations Total
&g Az
BEE  MEER Hft R &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETR AR%TR ARETr ARETx
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE019512ANALERE
Segment revenue: AHYA:
Sales to external customers BEFHIRP 4639415 1437762 190,216 - 6267393
Intersegment revenue AEHERA - 6,304 - (6,304) -
Other income £l 1,604,076 39,156 29,936 - 1,673,168
Cost of sales HERA (1,586,641)  (836,824) (20,174) - (2,443,639)
Employee expenses EEMY (444,554) (46,312) (78,256) - (569,122)
Depreciation and amortisation HERES (921,170)  (147440) (38,525) - (1,107135)
Payments for short-term leases and REREREREEERERR
leases of low-value assets (29,356) (1,133) (1,332) - (31,821)
Other operating expenses EtEERR (1,159,048)  (156,040) (68,925) 6,304  (1,378,609)
Other gains and losses EtlaREE 224210 58,326 9,214 - 291,750
QOperating profit LERE 2,326,032 353,799 22,154 - 2,701,985
Finance costs BERA (873,698)  (446,916) - - (1,320614)
Share of profits and losses of associates and BUEBELFARAELERR
a joint venture (266,648) (1,429) - - (268,077)
Profit(loss) before tax WHAHE/ (B8) 1,185,686 (94,546) 22,154 - 111320
Income tax expense FERR (#14438)  (223,924) (3,886) - (642,248)
Profit(loss) for the year RENE/ (BE) T8 (318470) 18,268 - 471,006
Attributable to: W/\ﬂé K
QOwners of the parent NG T%E)\ 444,787 (217042) 18,517 - 186,262
Non-controlling interests 3H“Hxﬂx% 326,461 (41,428) (249) - 284,784
771,248 (318,470) 18,268 - 471,046
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, REFEER (

i

Operation of Adjustments
department Property and
stores  development Others eliminations Total

AEE  NX3R it RHH #it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR

Other segment information: AtpHEs:
Impairment losses recognised in the BRRPERNHESEFE
statement of profit or loss, net 96,879 1,247 - - 104,126

Losses on disposal of shares in an associate HER-REERARBOER 116 - - - 116

Goodwill impairment BERE 55,315 - - - 55,315

Investments in associates RELRRRE 1,868,366 - - - 1,868,366

Investment in a joint venture REELERE - 1,274 - - 1,274

Capital expenditure* ERET 2778 2,121,210 86 - 2,144,074

*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, * BARXBEREYE BERREE T
prepaid land lease payments, investment properties, properties under ETEMNFIE  IREE  ERPYE - EMER
development, other intangible assets and completed properties held for BERFBEFHEDERDE AR REWEN
sale including assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries. BRRINEE-

I
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, BREDHER (#|)

Operation of Adjustments
department Property and
stores  development Others  eliminations Total
BEE  MEER 2 REH E
RMB00O ~ RVMB'000  RMB000  RMB00O  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETE
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ018F12A3ALEE
Segment revenue: AHYA:
Sales to external customers HETHNIEP 4820945 1115408 180,894 - 617,247
Intersegment revenue AEHEBA - 6,864 - (6,864)
Other income EtA 1,656,034 - 75,630 - 1,731,664
Cost of sales BENR (1583376)  (624431)  (18,019) - (2,205,826)
Employee expenses EEMY (501,199) (41,478) (65,419) - (608,09)
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH (643,714)  (113,139)  (44,579) - (801,432)
Operating lease rental expenses BERSRY (439,245) (1,137) (160) - (440542)
Other operating expenses AEER% (1,098249)  (92504)  (81,895) 6,864  (1,265784)
Other gains and losses AERER 501,324 (1,052) (328) - 499,944
QOperating profit ek 2712520 248531 46,124 - 3007175
Finance costs BERA (717,992) (292,196 - - (1,010,188)
Share of profits and losses of associates and EEBERTRAE0EER
a joint venture 29,082 (1,218) - - 27,864
Profit/(loss) before tax BRAFE/ (BR) 2,023,610 (44,883) 46,124 - 2024851
Income tax expense FERAY (689,908)  (206,984) (738) - (897,630)
Profit/(loss) for the year KERE/ (BB) 1333702 (251,867) 45386 - 1127221
Attributable to: MUTALRER:
Owners of the parent DRERBEA 973586 (219,691) 45508 - 799,403
Non-controlling interests ERRERER 360,116 (32,176) (122) - 307818
1333702 (251,867) 45386 - 1127221
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31H EFE
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, BREDHER (80
Operation of Adjustments
department Property and
stores  development Others  eliminations Total
me i

BEE  MEER Hy  RAH fact
RMBOOD  RMB000 ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBI00D
ARBTTL ARETT ARBTT ARBTR ARETR

Other segment information: Hitn HER:
Impairment losses recognised in the BERPEINAEEE
statement of profit or loss 4,965 5,494 - - 10,459

Reversal of impairment losses on accounts receivable  FEYR Z R B E B & (839) - - - (839)

Gain on deemed disposal of shares in an associate ~ BEHE— B S A ARH Y (48,269) - - - (48,269)

Property, plant and equipment impairment nE BERIBEOAE 48649 - - - 48,649

Goodwill impairment BERE 14477 - - - 14,477

Investments in associates REERRRE 2,129,808 - - - 2129808

Investment in a joint venture REERERE - 1,703 - - 1703

Capital expenditure* EART 92308 1,490,326 420 - 1583054

*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, * BAHEZBEAEYME BERZE T
prepaid land lease payments, investment properties, properties under ETEMNFIA  REWE  ERPYE  EMER
development, other intangible assets and completed properties held for BENRSHFECERYE  EReEREN
sale including assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries. BRARIMNEE -

The Group’s entire revenue is attributable to the market in REER 2 EBUAK B F B R EER TS -

Mainland China. No analysis of geographical information is Bl bt NI #1227 S e i R o A

therefore presented.

The Group has a large number of customers. However, no sales REBBEBRERF AT WHMAES

to a single customer amounted to 5% or more of the Group's total —HREPHEEEANEEFRS5%K A

revenue. WA -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

5. REVENUE 5.
2018
2018%F
RMB’000
ARBFTT
Revenue from contracts with customers BFEEHWA
Commissions from concessionaire sales BHEREEME 1,770,789 2,022,848
Direct sales HiH 1,750,291 1,794,280
Sale of properties V¥ HE 1,332,818 1,001,608
Management fee income from the KEAEENERERA
operation of department stores 755 755
Revenue from other sources REHMEBEIWA
Rental income from investment properties & WEH WA 611,534 412,928
Rental income from the leasing of AR FE R ES KA
shop premises 612,166 710,026
Others Ef 189,040 174,802
6,267,393 6,117,247
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEHBRA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) ZIFWAEH
The Group’s entire revenue of goods and services transferred REEMBEEBHEY RRBEIA
is recognised at a point in time. No analysis of timing ME—RREIEER Bt E251E
information is therefore presented. A B T B R AT o
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised TRETTARSHUEHEER
in the current reporting period that were included in the B iR 7 BRFATEBK B B 4 B PTRERR Y
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and ARERAN D ER KR S
recognised from performance obligations satisfied in previous
periods:
2019 2018
2019 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBFT
Revenue recognised that was FAREBYIAHNAERN
included in contract liabilities BRI

at the beginning of the
reporting period:
Sale of completed properties HEERTIWE 86,367 1,828

86,367 1,828
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

5. IR (#&)

EFARABA (&)
(i) EXIA T

5. REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Performance obligations

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Direct sales of merchandise and commissions from
concessionaire sales

The performance obligation is satisfied at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customers.

Sale of properties

For contracts entered into with customers on the sale of
properties, the Group does not have an enforceable right
to payment prior to transfer of the relevant properties to
customers. Revenue from the sale of properties is therefore
recognised at a point in time when the completed property is
transferred to customers, being at the point that the customer
obtains the control of the completed property and the Group
has the present right to payment and collection of the
consideration is probable.

The Group receives deposits from customers when they sign
the sale and purchase agreements. The Group considers that
the advance payment contains a financing component which
provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, and revenue recognised under the contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method.

Management fee income

The performance obligation is satisfied at the point in time
when management services are rendered.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
as at 31 December are as follows:

EAREERBRAOEBTHERG M
T

BmBEHNMEEERERE

EEEAFRBBREERPK BHA
FERFE—REHENX-

SLIHEMEERTPFIUNANMmE -
EEZERENETESA AEEW
3 LGB AN R B BT 5 Y A 7T R A
t HEMENRARCRTYEE
ETEPHNRRMER NEPERS
B T E e Gl m AR E A UK
B 3R 2 30 B 1 ) % m] R U B AR (B A
SGEE

AEBEREFPREEE MR REP
UCER R 5 » AR B 52 /% - iR TR 3R IR
BEAAKERHEE —FAR B
mEELE B B - AIIRIR A KO FER
WABRRERANELAENEGHNE
B PR ANEY A B RIS

BEERA
BHEERREREEREH DK -

R12A31B D EEEZH% TEHNET (K
ERSEDRER) MR ZERSE
N

2019 2018

2019 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Amounts expected to be recognised  FBEiMER AWZHESHE:

as revenue:

Within one year —F N 3,596,292 3,134,634

After one year —F1& 30,169 164,767

3,626,461 3,299,401
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R R Y &

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

5. REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Performance obligations (continued)
Management fee income (continued)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be recognised
after one year relate to the sale of properties with a significant
financing component, of which the performance obligations
are to be satisfied within two years. All the other amounts of
transaction prices allocated to the performance obligations
are expected to be recognised as revenue within one year.
The amounts disclosed above do not include variable
consideration which is constrained.

6. OTHER INCOME

5. WA (&)

FEFEHWA (8)

(i) EXIE A (&)
EEBEHA(E)
EHS R —FRERSWANDEE
HRTENEENRXZERSEILE
BEARBAKBONMEHE H
BHEBEESRMFEANRER - DEEH
TEORENMEEMRZERS
BIEAHN —FRERBKRA - £X
PIBENSRNERERG A ZK

6. HAbA

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREF T

Income from suppliers and concessionaires & B & /& & & B F BRI IR A

— Administration and management fee —ITHERE R B A
income 839,617 845,658
— Promotion income — (B A 530,326 545,359
— Credit card handling fees —EBFFEE 194,264 200,622
Interest income FIEHA 60,915 64,395
Others HA 48,046 75,630
1,673,168 1,731,664

7. COST OF SALES

7 HERAX

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARET T

Purchases of and changes in inventories BE S LiFEE 1,586,641 1,583,376
Cost of properties sold BEEWEKR 836,824 624,431
Others HA 20,174 18,019

2,443,639 2,225,826
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

8. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES

8. EEMX

2018

20184

RMB’000

ARET T

Wages and salaries TENFHSE 501,868 517,243
Retirement benefits RIRIER] 55,016 66,359
Other employee benefits HigE8EF 12,238 24,494
569,122 608,096

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) (a), (b), (c)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

FRNEERTBTHAENFTHEE -
mARE BB A FEHEE383(1)(a) (b) -
CEMEAR AT (HEEEFEER)

B F oM AEENT

2018

20184

RMB’000

ARETIT

Fees we 692 668
Other emoluments: H A& -

Salaries and allowances e MoRBh 1,282 1,320

Retirement benefits RIKAE T 27 42

1,309 1,362

2,001 2,030
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R R Y &

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

8. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES (continued) 8. EERMX (&)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BYFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FAENBYHENTESNER N
the year were as follows: T
Total
Fees remuneration
e 48 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREEFIT
Year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE2019F12831A LEE
Mr. Pao Ping Wing IR SRS A 213 213
Mr. Leung Hon Chuen REREAE 160 160
Mr. Chow Chan Lum MR E 319 319
692 692
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE20185F12831B I 5 /&
Mr. Pao Ping Wing RS S A 206 206
Mr. Leung Hon Chuen RERIHE 154 154
Mr. Chow Chan Lum R E 308 308
668 668

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors for the year ended 31 December

2019 (2018: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

8. EEMX (8
(b) FITES —BFYUTEERERE
HTE

8. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES (continued)

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and the
chief executive

Salaries and Retirement Total
allowances benefits remuneration
FeRER BIKEF B 48 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AR¥T AR®T R
Year ended 31 December 2019 EZ2019512A310 L EE
Executive directors: WITESE:
Mr. Zhong Pengyi 21 -F B 120 - 120
Mr. Liu Bo 2% & 802 18 820
Non-executive director: FEHITES:
Mr. Wang Bin Ttk 240 9 249
Chief executive: BRHTE:
Mr. Huang Mao Ru HERMEE 120 = 120
1,282 27 1,309
Salaries and Retirement Total
allowances benefits remuneration
e Rz BRI BNt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Year ended 31 December 2018 BZ2018F12A31ALFE
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Zhong Pengyi i -F B 120 - 120
Mr. Liu Bo IR 840 23 863
Non-executive director: ERITESE:
Mr. Wang Bin L E 240 19 259
Chief executive: BRERITE:
Mr. Huang Mao Ru X EE 120 = 120
1,320 42 1,362

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration for the year ended 31

December 2019 (2018: Nil).
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B R R R Y &

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included one
director (2018: one director), details of whose remuneration are
set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of

9. ZIREREHESR

FALERRFEERRE—RES (2018
F—REF) HFMER EXHES -

FAHEMME (20185F B ) R HE

the remaining four (2018: four) highest paid employees who are B(WFARFEEHEZTHAE)N
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company for the year FENFEIBT
are as follows:
2018
20184
RMB’000
ARMEF T
Salaries and allowances e e 2,312 1,810
Retirement benefits ROKAEF 58 68
2,370 1,878

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose

HHBEATRENEEESHFEEA

10.

remuneration fell within the following band is as follows: HT
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 %1,000,000/%8 7T 3 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%8 7T £1,500,000/8 7T 1 -
4 4
OPERATING LEASE RENTAL EXPENSES/ ?&%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁsﬁ/ EHHEREEE
PAYMENTS FOR SHORT-TERM LEASES AND EEHEERX
LEASES OF LOW-VALUE ASSETS
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Operating lease rentall wEBE - 429,130
Operating sublease rental wESHES = 11,412
Payments for short-term leases and EHHEREEEEEHEER
leases of low-value assets 31,821 -
31,821 440,542
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B RS R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

11. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

1. H&&EpEx

2018
2018%F
Notes RMB’000
B 5 ARBTT
Utility expenses NRARERY 391,094 411,141
Promotion and advertising expenses =& I E &5 52 130,403 132,654
Repair and maintenance expenses ##EFX 106,753 97,011
Entertainment expenses HERX 5,690 6,992
Office expenses FiN 5 47,481 44,368
Other tax expenses HnFi e 375,433 364,265
Professional service fees HERGE 105,928 71,054
Auditors’ remuneration ZHEN BN & 4,900 4,900
Bank charges RITFEE 69,481 64,536
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) JEUZ 5 BE 28
of trade receivables A, CRERR) 9 (839)
Impairment of an amount due JE U B 3 5 BB R (E 29
from related parties 54,540 -
Impairment of other receivables H b e W FOR B 29 49,577 10,459
Impairment of an equity investment AR EEE B HE
at fair value through profit or loss ~ FF ABZAEFIEERE - 2,000
Others Ht 37,320 57,243
1,378,609 1,265,784
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B R R R Y &

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

12. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

12. HhR B R EE

2018
2018%F
Notes RMB’000
B 5E AREF T
Loss on disposal of items of HEREMEEBEMNEBE
investment property (14,620) -
Gain/(loss) on disposal of other HEWE -HEX
items of property, plant and HEIE R E e
equipment Wz, (B18) 3,734 (3,560)
Gain on deemed disposal of shares {74 1 &5 2 Q5 k5 M K
in an associate - 48,269
Loss on partial disposal of shares ~ HEBZ N E 25 kDA EE
in an associate (116) -
Foreign exchange loss, net SN B 18 F 58 (37,555) (128,160)
Fair value gain on equity investments A AL BB =2 B E# &) A
at fair value through profit or loss BaiERREAAEAERKS 427 -
Gain on disposal of financial assets HEN AR EBEIFEAHES
at fair value through profit or loss ~ sF ABZASREE E RS 815 7
Fair value gains on investment BEWEADEEKE 18
properties 442,987 525,887
Dividend income from financial KEUNAREBEFEEHES
assets at fair value through FFABENESREEDN
profit or loss R B U A 2,070 6,551
Dividend income from equity REBEAARAAEBESER
investments designated at fair HEHT ALMEEIED
value through other REHIRE B IR B WA
comprehensive income 22,544 36,362
Impairment of property, M WE REERE
plant and equipment - (48,649)
Impairment of goodwill EEERED 20 (55,315) (14,477)
Penalty accrued JEETEI & 32(b) (54,871) (46,273)
Provision for a litigation case — R AR RE 38 (25,000) -
Others Hi 6,650 123,987
291,750 499,944
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

13.

14.
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FINANCE COSTS

13. @& K A

2018
20184
RMB’000
ARBTT
Interest on bank loans RITERFE 1,289,894 1,234,426
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEBEFE 196,542 -
Interest expense arising from BEOBABNFIERX
revenue contracts 3,957 22,626
Total interest expense on financial liabilities 3FIZ A LB E AB R
not at fair value through profit or loss cREENERYRE 1,490,393 1,257,052
Less: Interest capitalised B EERMEFE (169,779) (246,864)
1,320,614 1,010,188
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FTERHMAX
The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits REBEGEKE QNG IR REER T

arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the
Group are domiciled and operate.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands and accordingly, is exempt from the
payment of the Cayman Islands income tax.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin Islands,
the Group is not subject to any tax in the British Virgin Islands.

ERE S E SRR R R
AP -

ARAKBERERERARDERFERE
M AR RBEREERR it
ARAERCHRASEHEMER-

RIBRABHERRBFESHERESR  AKE
BEABNEMEBERRESHE-
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14, FR 8B X (&)

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax was calculated at
16.5% of the estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: 16.5%).

Under the relevant income tax law, the PRC subsidiaries are
subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a statutory rate of 25%
(2018: 25%) of their respective taxable income.

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value,
being the proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including land use rights, borrowing costs and all
property development expenditures. LAT of RMB77,299,000 was
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB49,219,000).

BEF SR B E B ZE E2019F 12 A 31
B FE A ERBRFEA16.5% (2018
F:165%)5TE -

RIS RE FENBARARE
HH 8 B AR R Uk A 3E25% (2018%F 1 25% )
FUEERM BB EMEH ([REMB
Bl o

AR R E R ([ b E R ) %30%
E60% N E R RER Rt T E(EIE S
o (B ETS IR B IE LR
BERKARAEYEERRAIEANN
AT 08 R S2) Bl - A R 77,299,000
B E R E RN £2019F12 A31H
I FEEGABEANIER (20184 : A
R #49,219,0007T) °

2019 2018

20195 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T ARET T

Current — CIT BNER— 1SR 504,892 686,316
Current — LAT BN ER— + 3 IE(E T 77,299 49,219
Deferred (note 25) IERE (MI5E25) 60,057 162,095
Total tax charge for the year FAMBH B 642,248 897,630
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Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31AILFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the
income tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation
of the statutory tax rates to the effective rates, are as follows:

14. TSR X (@|)

KT

BARBRETEWBERQARMEN DA
R ATE MR E 2B A F @A AT
BREAYBRERMEGHRRAE 2
BEHASHWER AT/
¥R -

BB

2019 019F Cayman Islands BYI Hong Kong Mainland China Total
REHE AREAREE B HE AR @it
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000
ARETT % AEETT % AEETT % AEETT % AEETT
(Loss)/profit before tax Bal (B8) /78 (322,822) (5) 88,807 1347314 1,113,204
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEREHENHE - - - - 14653 165 336,82 25 351482 32
Effect of withholding tax at 5% o~ REEFEHEL AT
the distributable profs of PR B RER%H
the Group's PRC subsidiaries RERRRBELNTE - - - - 28763 32 - - 28763 3
Lower tax rates for specific districts #EHEIERHHERE
or countries - - - - (577 (6) (23,889) (2) (29,661) (3)
Profits and losses atributable to ~ BERAR-HALLE
associates and a joint venture FiEOHEREE - - - - - - 66,18 5 66,186 6
Income not subject to tax EHERROMA - - - - - - (21,375) @ (21,375) @)
Expenses not deductible for tax AT HI# % H - - - - - - 22462 2 22462 2
Tax losses not recognised FERDOTERE - - - - - - 213209 16 213,209 19
LAT TSGR - - - - - - T1299 6 77299 7
Tax effect of LAT THEERNTEYE - - - - - - (19,32%) (1) (19,325) @
Adjusiments in respect of current ~ HB A BRMEHENRE
fax of previous periods - - - - - - (20815) 2 (20815) (@)
Others Ly - - - - (32m) (@ (22,700 2) (2597 ]
Tax charge at the Group’s EAEEERHRAHE
effective tax rate HRERX - - - - 34367 39 607881 45 642,248 59
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Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31H EFE
14.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. i8S BB X (&)
2018 0185 Cayman Islands BVI Hong Kong Mainland China Total
REHE ZERARES B EARE @it
RMB'000 % RMBO00 % RMB000 % RMB000 % RMB000 %
AREBTT % \NRETT % \NRETT % \NRETT % NRETFTL %
(Loss)proft before tax Hinl (BR) /I (334,365) (80) 137,824 2201472 2,024,851
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEREHENHE - - - - 24 165 555,368 % 578109 2
Fffect of withholding tax at5% on ~ A£ERENBAFHA
the distrioutable profts of PR ERRo %R
the Group's PRC subsidiaries REBRNEEENTE - - - - 2005 2 - - 200 1
Lower tax rates for specific districts  #EHEHEFRHEHERE
or countries - - - - (8959) (7)  (12.755) (1) (21.714) (1)
Profits and losses atributable to ~ BERAR-HA4LE
associates and a joint venture iR B REE - - - - - - (6960) - (6.966) -
Income not subject to tax ERBHENUA - - - - - - (1) S ) -
Expenses not deductible for tax AR HIH T H - - - - - - 49,007 2 49,007 2
Tax losses not recognised AEERNTEES - - - - - - 108,246 5 108246 6
LAT TSR - - - - - - 49219 2 49219 3
Tax effect of LAT THEERNREYE - - - - - - (12.305) (1) (12,309 (1
Adjustments in respect of curent  HBE BENHHENHE
fax of previous periods - - - - - - 59,588 3 59588 3
Others £t - - - - (8482) (6) 83224 4 74742 4
Tax charge at the Group’s BAEEERNRHE
effective tax rate HHER X - - - - R 24 865,195 39 897630 4
The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to GFERAFENBREBESEAAR
RMB10,341,000 (2018: RMB14,757,000) is included in “Share of 10,341,000t (20184F : AR
profits and losses of associates” in the consolidated statement of 14,757,0007T) " EireBm kP EEE
profit or loss. [FE(LEEE RR Bl e
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15.

16.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

DIVIDENDS

15.

3N

2018
20184
RMB’000
ARET T

Proposed final FRFREIR B
— HK1.98 cents (2018: HK3.64 cents)

per ordinary share (20184F : 3.6478 1)

— S EmAR 1,981

159,881

93,131

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent of RMB186,262,000 (2018: RMB799,403,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 5,140,326,000
(2018: 5,140,326,000) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

16.

REZHRIR KRR B ALRARRBRR
FEIERRIBFEREG LHE

AR ERERFAARGERE

2

5 B
A
(

EREBMDIZB AR ERAEDRE
FEAG F R FE A R 186,262,000
20185 : AR #799,403,000
T)NMFARAB BITEBRKRDIEF
¥ 815,140,326,0000% (20184 :
5,140,326,0000% ) 5t & o

o1t &

A& B E 220184 20194128318
HFEEVESETEEE ST AR
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Year ended 31 December 2019

HE2019F 128318 L FE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. NE-BERRZE
Furniture,
Machinery fittings and
Land and and Motor other  Leasehold Construction
buildings  equipment vehicles  equipment improvements in progress Total
B %8
1#EEE  HERRE RE  RHEtERE RENERE HRIE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTn AR¥Tn AR¥Tn  ARETrn ARETr ARETR
31 December 2019 2019128318
At 31 December 2018 and R018F12A31B ]
at 1 January 2019: 019F1A18:
Cost A 9,950,247 606,470 15,572 213,508 1,540,686 991,889 13,318,372
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment 23T HERAE (2,200,860) (334,697) (3,691) (178,734) (675,000) (6,612)  (3,399,594)
Net carrying amount EEFE 7749,387 21,773 11,881 34,774 865,686 985,277 9,918,778

At 1 January 2019, net of accumulated 201951518

depreciation and impairment (MB2HHERAE) 749,387 21,773 11,881 34,774 865,686 95277 9,918,778
Additions HE - 2,163 824 2,795 14,956 405,109 425,847
Disposals e - (2412) (285) (1,159) (760) - (5,010)
Depreciation provided during the year EMTERE (423,951) (27753) (787) (18,796) (89,347) - (560,634)
Transfer from properties held for sale HEERENZEN 5,258 - - - - - 5,258
Transfer o invesiment properties (note 18) ~ EEZHEME (Hiz#18) (528,951) - - - - (986,103)  (1,515,054)
Transfer to other intangible assets (note 21)  EEZEMERBE ([ix21) - - - - - (131) (131)
Transfer from construction in progress HERIREA 46,899 2,180 - 302 15,013 (64,394) =
Transfer from properties under fEERTEEA

development (note 27) (Frskr) 111,422 - - - - - 111,422
Exchange realignment Ejfz 238 (15) () ] - - 216

At 31 December 2019, net of accumulated  F2019F12A31H

depreciation and impairment (MBREHTERAE) 6,960,302 245,536 11,628 17920 805,548 339758 8,380,692
At 31 December 2019: 20195127315

Cost AR 9,564,223 586,062 15,594 200588 1,580,115 36,366 12,202,948

Accumulated depreciation and impaiment 2341 E REfE (2603921)  (340,526) (3966)  (182668)  (774,567) (6,608)  (3912,256)

Net carying amount EHFE 6,960,302 245,536 11,628 17920 805,548 339758 8,380,692
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

17 W% B ERKE (&)

Furniture,
Machinery fittings and
Land and and Motor other Leasehold  Construction
buildings ~ equipment vehicles ~ equipment improvements  in progress Total
i RE
1HEEF BEREE G REtEE REVMEES ERIE @
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
31 December 2018 2018%12A31A
At 31 December 2017 and at 1 January 2018: 120175127318 &
0181818
Cost Ak 10,638,584 608,758 17,067 219,913 1,534,822 837,048 13,896,182
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment 23T ER(E (1825557)  (311371) (4319 (175773 (594:867) (6613 (2918500)
Net carrying amount EHFE 8,813,027 297,387 12,738 44140 939,955 830,435 10,937,682
At 1 January 2018, net of accumulated 20181418
depreciation and impairment (i ZarrERAE) 8813027 297,387 12738 44140 939,955 830435 10,937,682
Additions RE - 7736 407 13,061 28,059 474,030 523,293
Disposals e - (1,879) (272) (5,765) (376) - (8,292)
Depreciation provided during the year ERRERE (422,114) (31,888) (992) (18418)  (127,144) - (600,556)
Transfer from properties held for sale BHERENEEA 12,849 - - - - - 12,849
Transfer to investment properties (note 18) ~ BEZRENE (Fiz1s) (555,506) - - - - (o128%2)  (828398)
Transfer to other intanghble assets (note 21) ~ EEZEMEREE (Hz21) - - - - - (18827) (18827)
Transfer from construction in progress ftEEIREA - 593 - 1,684 25,192 (27 469) -
Transfer to properties held for sale BRCRERENE (50,280) - - - - - (50,280)
Impairment B (48,649) - - - - - (48,649)
Exchange realignment EiSE 60 (176) - 7 - - (44)
At 31 December 2018, net of acoumulated  72018%12A31H
depreciation and impairment (HEB2ERERRE) 7,749,387 21,7713 11,881 34,774 865,686 95277 9918778
At 31 December 2018; R2018E128317:
Cost A 9,950,247 606,470 15,572 213,508 1,540,686 991889 13318372
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment 5 HE RAE (2,200,860) (334,697) (3,691) (178,734) (675,000) (6,612)  (3,399,59)
Net carrying amount FEFE 7,749,387 21,773 11,881 34,774 865,686 985,277 9918,778

1
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Amortisation of land lease payments of approximately
RMB5,096,000 during the construction period was capitalised
as part of the construction cost of the department stores under
construction of the Group, and was included in the above
additions.

The Group's land and buildings are held under medium term
leases and are situated in Mainland China. Details of the Group’s
land and buildings pledged to secure the Group’s interest-bearing
bank loans are set out in note 33.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings
of the Group with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB180,479,000 as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018:
RMB186,100,000) have not yet been issued by the relevant PRC
authorities. The Group is in the process of obtaining the relevant
certificates.

17.

M BB RRE (E)

BIEHEE E AL TEN T E R
4 A R #5,096,0007T 2 5t AR EBEZE
BEENZERA BEELMAES -

AEEH L RIEFTIRED PHLOE
B WA E AR - REEABIREBHET
BIRITERMEE RN L RIEFFHS
BB FE3S ©

AEBRBNE TEFNEERDARR
A B ERPIERS - A E DR I IR AR R
ENTFE  EREFENR20194F12 831
H#4) A A KR #¥180,479,0007T (2018412
A31H : AR #186,100,0007T) °

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. BEWE
2019 20194
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties at construction
fair value at fair value
ERTRENE EEREWE
(BRDAEHE) (RDAEHRE)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥TR
Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 20191 A1 M BREE 10,672,363 5,661,686 16,334,049
Additions NE - 138,700 138,700
Transfer to properties under HREZERPYE
development (note 27) (KFzxa7) (24,633) - (24,633)
Transfer from construction in progress {72 Ti2E A
(note 17) (Bf&E17) 986,103 — 986,103
Transfer from property, plant and ez WELEEEA
equipment (note 17) (B3%17) 528,951 - 528,951
Recognition of change in fair value of ~ BREHZEHEMEN
property, plant and equipment upon ME- BB KRS
transfer to investment properties N EEZE 796,133 - 796,133
Transfer from right-of-use assets ERAREEEA
(note 19 (b)) (KIzE19(b) ) 504,496 - 504,496
Transfer from investment properties R EMEEA
under construction 722,753 - 722,753
Transfer to completed investment BREEERIREDE
properties - (722,753) (722,753)
Net gain from fair value adjustment ARBEFHR TR 378,577 64,410 442,987
Disposal HE (14,620) - (14,620)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 A2019F12 4318 &Y
FEE 14,550,123 5,142,043 19,692,166
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HE2019F12A31H IEFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. RE W= (#)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

2018 20184
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties at construction
fair value at fair value Total
BERTREME EEREME
(RRAEE) (RRAEE) et
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARBFT ARBTT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 R2018F1 A1EMEREE 7,350,050 5,540,329 12,890,379
Additions NE - 42,580 42,580
Transfer from completed properties MEHERFEEEMMEEAN
held for sale 204,285 - 204,285
Transfer to properties under BREEERPYE
development (note 28) (Pi5E28) - (9,671) (9,671)
Transfer from construction in progress I ERIREDEE A
(note 17) (fg&E17) 272,892 - 272,892
Transfer from property, plant and Mz BEREEEA
equipment (note 17) (F3E17) 555,506 - 555,506
Recognition of change in fair value of ~ HEREEEIREY XN
property, plant and equipment upon M- BE REED
transfer to investment properties NAEEBEED 1,648,263 - 1,648,263
Transfer from prepaid land lease WA LA EZIEE A
payments (note 19(a)) (Mf§19()) 203,928 - 203,928
Net gain from fair value adjustment DNABEARF RS 437,439 88,448 525,887
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 72018F12A31H &Y
RHE 10,672,363 5,661,686 16,334,049

The Group’s investment properties consist of commercial
properties in Mainland China. The directors of the Company
have determined that the investment properties consist of
one class of assets, i.e., commercial properties, based on the
nature, characteristics and risk of each property. The Group’s
investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2019
based on valuations performed by Worldunion Appraisal, an
independent professionally qualified valuer, at approximately
RMB19,692,166,000. Each year, the Group’'s management
decides to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for
the external valuation of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group’s management
has discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results once a year when the valuation is performed for
annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 19 to the financial statements.

AEENREMERMUNPEXNENR
FRHE NRAREEEEARANEE N
YIER—EEEMEK NENBHEEERN
HE Y RREERKEAE--R
2019F12A31H » RAEBEIREMENEHN
HEL A ARA19,692,166,0007T * :Z 18
BT AR B A B M T A B ST (4 3
THHEAKE -BF AEBNERE
ZRMNFHEN B EEEEENIN BT
EItE-ZERZEQEMBANHZ 8-
BUMMEGERFTEEN -EHFEH
HERRETHER AEEEEESEH
HERE M EELEREAGEMH K-

BREMEDINRZHEEAHETE=
77 FHIFE R B B R M 19 o

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED & ¥ B IR A R A 7




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R R Y &

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group's investment properties are held under medium term
leases and are situated in Mainland China. Details of the Group’s
investment properties pledged to secure the Group’s interest-
bearing bank loans are set out in note 33.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain investment
properties of the Group with a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB3,057,454,000 as at 31 December 2019 (31
December 2018: RMB2,919,338,000) have not yet been issued
by the relevant PRC authorities. The Group is in the process of
obtaining the relevant certificates.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s investment properties:

18. REW = (8

AEBAIKEMETBEFEHAOETS -
WA R B ARE - NREEAHFBIRTE
T EN D IR EWENFBEY
MM EE33 ©

AEBRBNE THEDENNEEE
ARV R B BEIPIES - ANE BN
EHEEENTFE EREFEM2019
F12H318 % & A R¥3,057,454,0007C
(2018128318 : AR #2,919,338,000
JL) °

DPRAEBEER

IR B IR A Y D A (B RS R
mF -

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2019 using
20195 12A31A A A BEGTE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

AEEH RABREH

EB T RE BERWAE E-N DN
(£-%&) (B=&) (=) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
Commercial properties ERE - - 19,692,166 19,692,166

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2018 using

2018F12A31ARREEHE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

AEEN PABED

BB SHRE BABWAE BARAE
(F—4) (B=®) (B=&) @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBEFT AREFT ARETT ARETT
Commercial properties PRt E - - 16,334,049 16,334,049

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil).
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key
inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

18. REW % (®|)

TR EYRETHEMBGEER
Mk RSt e AEMNBE :

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs Range
fEER M EXATAEENBAE gE
2019 2018
20195 2018
Commercial properties Discounted Estimated rental value RMB14-RMB284 RMB14-RMB680

B AE
REREREE

Residual method

R EEE

Comparison method

BB

cash flow method

(per sq.m. and per month) AR¥147 AREE147T
fhEtfe (B FAK/8A) - AR¥284t  — AR¥6807T
Rent growth (p.a.) 2%-5% 3%-5%
MeFERE

Long term vacancy rate 1%-12% 1%-20%
REFEEX

Discount rate 6%-7% 6%-7%
B =

Budgeted construction cost

to be incurred

(per sq.m.)

RELNBAEIRA (BF7K)
Remaining percentage to completion
FpTIA W

Anticipated developer's profit margin
BRERAAMNEER

Market unit sale rate

(per sq.m)
M EANEER (5F7K)

RMB14-RMB408

RMB85-RMB314

AR¥147 ARSI

- AR¥4087T —AR#3147T
4%-51% 3%-50%
10%-35% 12%-35%
RMB9,180- RMB9,400-
RMB48,100 RMB48,900
ARE%9,180T AR#94007C

- AR¥48,100t — AR®¥48,9007T

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal value.
This method involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a
property interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to the
projected cash flow in order to establish the present value of the
income stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally
separately determined and differs from the discount rate.
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HZE2019F12A31H EFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. RE W= (#)

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows
and outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews, lease
renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or refurbishment.
The appropriate duration is driven by market behaviour that is
a characteristic of the class of property. The periodic cash flow
is estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable
expenses, collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance
costs, agent and commission costs and other operating and
management expenses. The series of periodic net operating
income, along with an estimate of the terminal value anticipated at
the end of the projection period, is then discounted.

A significant increase in the market rent growth rate per annum in
isolation would result in a significant increase in the fair value of
the investment properties. A significant decrease in the long term
vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation would result in a
significant increase in the fair value of the investment properties.
Generally, a change in the assumption made for the estimated
rental value is accompanied by a directionally similar change in
the rent growth per annum and the discount rate and an opposite
change in the long term vacancy rate.

The residual method of valuation is commonly used in valuing
development sites by establishing the market value of the
properties on an “as-if” completed basis with appropriate
deduction on construction costs, professional fees, contingency,
marketing and legal cost, and interest payments to be incurred,
anticipated developer’s profits, as well as land acquisition costs,
interest payment and profit on land.

The fair values of investment properties are determined using
the comparison method by making references to comparable
sale evidence as available in the relevant market. Comparable
properties of similar size, characteristics and location are
analysed and selected for each investment property in order
to arrive at a fair comparison of their fair values. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the market unit sale rate.
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

19. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land use right
and buildings used in its operations. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with
lease periods of 20 to 30 years, and no ongoing payments will be
made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of buildings
generally have lease terms between 3 and 15 years. Generally,
the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased

asset outside the Group.

(a) Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 January 2019)

19.fE

AEBERAEEA
AEBBEAREEKEENTIFERER
BFZEEENEESY - BRAEE—
RIERFAmEFWHEHEE L HEA
20E 304 MiREZ S T HER G
BTG EE S HERFIE - EFHHEEE
BASEISFE - — R s ANEB A [AA
EEUIATEZERDTHBEEEE-

(a) FEIT 1 EFE (R2019F 1A 1H

Ai)

RMB’000
ARBFTT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 2018F1 A1 B M EREE 4,979,491
Additions NE 2,068
Transfer to properties under development EREERPYE (13,391)
Transfer to investment properties EEREIEYE (203,928)
Recognised in profit or loss during the year ~ R REZEHER (183,085)
4,581,155

Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H MR A
Prepaid land lease payments — current THEERNRIEBE - RE 164,013

Prepaid land lease payments — non-current T E T8 E — IR B

(included in prepayments, other receivables (‘B FETE FUA « H ith JE UGB &

and other assets) HEihEE) 4,417,142

(b)

Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and

the movements during the year are as follows:

(b) EHEEE

rEBFRFEAREENERAELE
ElINE

Land use right Buildings

TR

RMB’000

AR¥ TR
As at 1 January 2019 2019F1A1H 4,581,155 3,232,034 7,813,189
Additions nNE - 39,324 39,324
Depreciation charge FERX (168,843) (338,131) (506,974)

Transfer from properties under feERPMEBA

development 33,450 - 33,450
Transfer to investment properties ~ EREREWE (504,496) - (504,496)
As at 31 December 2019 2019912 A31H 3,941,266 2,933,227 6,874,493
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31H EFE
19. LEASES (continued) 19. HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEEREBA (H)
(c) Lease liabilities (c) HEE[E
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements FAHEBENREBERESNT

during the year are as follows:

2019
2019
Lease
liabilities
HESE
RMB’000
AR%T
Carrying amount at 1 January M1A1AEREE 3,058,470
New leases WHE 39,324
Accretion of interest recognised FANEBARN SR
during the year 196,542
Payments (BN (436,851)
Carrying amount at 31 December M2 A31BEMEREE 2,857,485
Analysed into: DI
Current portion mENE D 259,977
Non-current portion JEREE D 2,597,508
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 43 HEABENIEBE D TIFERI ISR
to the financial statements. =MIFE43 o
(d) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (d) RiGzF MR E B E LT -

are as follows:

2019

20194

RMB’000

AR%T

Interest on lease liabilities HEBBNE 196,542

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEENERS 506,974
Expense relating to short-term leases and ERRG HATE & K g2 N HH BARR2019F 12 H31H 5k

other leases with remaining lease terms ZBIEMOEMEEEANFEZ

ended on or before 31 December 2019 31,031

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets E{RBEZEMEHBRX 790

Total amount recognised in profit or loss B ERARIBERRE 735,337
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

19. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 18) consisting of
35 commercial properties and shop premises in Mainland China
under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide
for periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during
the year was RMB1,223,700,000 (2018:RMB1,122,954,000),
details of which are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in the future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

19. A E (#)

AEBEALEA
AEERBEKEHETHEBEEREY
2 (MisE18) - B HE35E A R B A i B9 75
EVMERIEHR ZSHEMKRIE
kAP MIERIEE I BRIEESRNIBT
MRETERASHAE - RERNEKEERN
BEHERE L WA B A RE1 223,700,000
7T (20184 : A R #1,122,954,0007T )
BN S MR M 5ES -

M2019F12A31H HEAREERIFHE
MAEZ ARG EHENEIRLE
SEMEZHEMT

2019 2018
20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T ARBTF T

Within one year —FN 1,040,828 674,517
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EZFRF(EERAEN) 2,097,656 1,191,295
After five years AF#& 998,230 624,531
4,136,714 2,490,343
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31H EFE
20. GOODWILL 20. 8
2018
20184
Note RMB’000
B 5E ARBFT
At 1 January: M1A18:
Cost B AR 1,685,973 1,685,973
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (290,876) (276,399)
Net carrying amount BREEE 1,395,097 1,409,574
Cost at 1 January, 1 A1E 8K
net of accumulated impairment (HkEHRE) 1,395,097 1,409,574
Impairment provided during the year 4F A (B % 5 12 (55,315) (14,477)
Cost and net carrying amount at W12 A31HKIK A K BRHFE
31 December 1,339,782 1,395,097
At 31 December: M12A31H
Cost B AR 1,685,973 1,685,973
Accumulated impairment ZETRE (346,191) (290,876)
Net carrying amount BREFE 1,339,782 1,395,097
Impairment testing of goodwill AENRERNR
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated BAERSHBENEESRTU IR
to the following cash-generating units (“CGUs”") for impairment CELEN ((ReEEEN])ETREA
testing: AR, -
e operation of department stores s BAEELKE
e property development o UEER
e others o Hith
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31H IEFE

20. GOODWILL (continued) 20. HE (&)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by management. The discount rates applied to the cash flow
projections ranged from 12% to 13% (2018: 12% to 14%). Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%). The key assumptions
adopted on growth rates and discount rates used in the value in
use calculations are based on management’s best estimates.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, a decrease in the
growth rate by 10% to 15% would cause the carrying amount
of the cash-generating unit to be under its recoverable amount
by approximately RMB27,756,000 to RMB100,887,000, and any
reasonably possible change in the other key assumptions on
which the recoverable amount is based would not cause the
cash-generating unit's carrying amount to exceed its recoverable
amount.

The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the CGUs
are as follows:

Operation of

BENRENR (&)

B EABNM A LS EEIZERE
Bt EARET - Lt EAFRAEE B
EAMAFTNHEBE BEENR SR
2EA - BRARRESRETERMAIREN
M12%ZE13% (20184 : 12% 5 14% ) °
AFAENBESRERAETIEREI%
HEET (20184 : 3% ) 5T EF A EER AT
AR ERNBRRARANEEZRE

EREEEMNREMET-

AARBEERAE BEETHRI0%ZE
15% At e F S ReEABMNNEREE
ERE AT El &84 AR EE27,756,0007T
= AR #100,887,0007T © K a] Uy [@] 4 58
FIBEREMEZERENTMNEIER] B
BPIreFEReELEEMNNEDER
BMETUWE SEE-

SRETEREEEEUNEEREEN
T

department Property
stores  development Others Total
BEERE MERR Hitr @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARBEFT
At 31 December 2018 #2018 12A31H 1,393,544 - 1,653 1,395,097
At 31 December 2019 R2019512A31AH 1,338,229 - 1,553 1,339,782

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
CGUs for 31 December 2019 and 2018. The following describes
each key assumption on which management has based its cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — Management has determined the
budgeted gross margins based on past performance and its
expectations for market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are after tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the respective units.

Purchase price inflation — Management has considered the
possibility of increases in purchase price inflation ranging from nil
to 5% (2018: nil to 5%).

SFER2019F N2018F 12 A31HME &
EXBNFREERABZERR  UT
TEEREETHETAEERERAENRNIR
SREFERMKBENSEFEZRE:

REEF-ERBREBERRNIAAT
BERREEREERN -

A FE-PTAMBEIR XD MRHIA - WK
BR A B8 B i 0 5 E LB

EEEAK-ERERAEBEBRERL
FE AT e BO%ES5% (20184 : 0% &
5%) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 FE#H & MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED & ¥ B IR A R A 7

197



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

20. GOODWILL (continued)

21.

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The values assigned to the key assumption on market
development of CGUs, discount rates and purchase price inflation
are consistent with external information sources.

Management performed impairment testing of goodwill annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired. During the year ended
31 December 2019, due to the operating performance continuing
to decline among business units which affected the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating units of Chengdu Renhe Spring
Department Store Co., Ltd. and Chengdu Qingyang District Renhe
Chuntian Department Store Limited. Goodwill of approximately
RMB10,149,000 and RMB45,166,000 was impaired.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

20. & (@)

AEARERE ()
HREELBUMM SRR BBREXNE
BEBRNEZREMABERINGEE
FEAHR— 2

ERESTEHEITHEMENS  KKHIR
EHIEREE) - BBREREE A fE R ERF
RIS SRS TR - Bl Z= 2019512 5 31
BILFE REKBEMNNEER[IFET
B BRBmMEKECMERBEER A
AERKETEFREXECNEREES
RARIMNREELESBNUMATKREEEE Y
LA 49 AR E10,149,0007T R 4 A R &
45,166,0007T ©

21. HtEREE

Computer software

FrE e 4
2019 2018
20194 20184
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B ok ARETx ARET T
Cost at 1 January, net of 1 A1H B
accumulated amortisation (0B BETEEGY) 50,611 39,594
Additions NE 183 838
Amortisation provided FREEEE
during the year (4,760) (8,648)
Transfer from construction in FEREIRREA
progress 17 131 18,827
At 31 December »W12H31H 46,165 50,611
At 31 December: MK12R318
Cost R AR 110,029 109,715
Accumulated amortisation g 30 (63,864) (59,104)
Net carrying amount REEE 46,165 50,611

Computer software is amortised on the straight-line basis over five
years.
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

22.INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

22. A

X

BhENRE

AN LT T 31 December
2019 2018
R20195 FA2018%4F
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBTTT
Share of net assets L EEFE 1,274 1,703
1,274 1,703
Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows: AEEEELEFBITAT
Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of registration attributable Principal
Name issued shares held and business  to the Group activities
REBERS
BENE#T FARERESR
NEEW RS AR ARt B BOk TEER
Jiangsu Qinghehong Beverage Ordinary shares of PRC/ 50% Beverage industry
Management Co., Ltd. (“Qinghehong Beverage”) RMB1 each Mainland China REHTE
T#HBEMARmERER AR (EHAKRR]) AR¥IT L@k HE/RERE

23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

2. RBEQTNRE

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
20196 20184

128318 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETx ARET T

Share of net assets JEIHEEFE 875,423 1,136,865
Goodwill on acquisition LAy B ey g 992,943 992,943
1,868,366 2,129,808
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Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31H EFE
23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. R E A TN E (@)
Particulars of the material associates are as follows: BEBENRFEIROT:
Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of  registration and attributable Principal
Name issued shares held business  to the Group activities
rEBERL
BENE#T FrEERER
NEER RAFHE ERREELH Bl TEXK
Shenyang Commercial City Co., Ltd. Ordinary shares of PRC/ 24.22% Operation of
(“Commercial City") RMB1 each Mainland China department stores
BEREMBRNERAR ([BHH]) AR/ LRk  RE/hEAE KEBEE
Zhongjiabochuang Information Technology Co., Ltd.  Ordinary shares of PRC/ 22.49% Information
(“ZJBC’, formerly Maoye Communication Network RMB1 each Mainland China transmission and
Co., Ltd.) AR/ L@ PE/REAE IT services
FEBRIESRIMROGARAR ([REEA- FEBHE RITRY
A RXEREBRRRNHBRAF)
Shenzhen UGO E-Commerce Co., Ltd (‘UGO") Ordinary shares of PRC/ 58.83% Electronic
ANBEBEFEEERAA ([EKB]) RMB1each  Mainland China commerce
AR/ EBR HEl B AR EFEH
(i) Commercial City (i) BEHE
Commercial City, which is considered a material associate of EEPEREAREENEZH Z A
the Group, is a strategic partner of the Group engaged in the Al BRSBENETEENEMBN
retail industry and is accounted for using the equity method. MIRAEREAR
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(i) Commercial City (continued) (i)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Commercial City adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements:

23. REE N TINIRE (&)

IR ()
TRIVREEME B 5T BER AT
Z 7l K B A B TS R 0 BR (B 4Bk
FHABRRNPBENBE

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
20194 20184
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBTT
Current assets mENEE 1,193,640 1,379,805
Non-current assets EMBEE 2,111,672 2,197,021
Current liabilities mEBE (2,550,890) (2,702,982)
Non-current liabilities ERBELE (18,366) (11,111)
Non-controlling interests of the associate B & /A &) JEFE A% ISR M2 25 (308,529) (308,479)
Net assets BEFE 427527 554,254
Net assets, excluding goodwill BESE TREHE 427,527 554,254
Reconciliation to the Group’s CERNCSE T NN i
interest in the associate: EmETTHER:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NE B P15 BT #ELL B 24.22% 24.22%
Group's share of net assets of the AEBEEHEAREEFE"
associate, excluding goodwill TEEEE 103,547 134,240
Goodwill on acquisition LA B e g 32,412 32,412
Carrying amount of the investment HEMEREmE 135,959 166,652
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBF T
Revenue WA 334,424 338,814
Loss for the year FAEE (126,726) (139,319)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FR4RE E 18425 (126,726) (139,319)
Fair value of the Group's investment ~ AEBIRENAREE 245,476 274,381

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED & ¥ B IR A R A 7

201



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R R Y &

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
(ii) ZzJBC
ZJBC, which is engaged in the E-communication industry, is a

material associate of the Group and is accounted for using the
equity method.

Due to impairment of goodwill and long-term receivables,
ZJBC had a loss of RMB1,152,000,000 in 2019.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of ZJBC adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements:

23. R E QN TNRE (®|)
(i) PEEA

PRBAIETREEETBIERT T
AREB 2 EXBE N R REMREEX
N X

R R R H R MR 2 RE
F B AIR2019F B HRARYE
1,152,000,0007T ©

TRIRF R EAE RS HENE

(] 2 Bl b2 B4R & B 75 S s B AR T (B
RIFLFABRNBBENER

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
20194 20184
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTTT
Current assets MENE E 1,833,583 1,995,203
Non-current assets FEMBEE 3,643,006 4,911,806
Current liabilities mENBE (2,004,763) (2,246,504)
Non-current liabilities EmBBE (106,205) (226,440)
Non-controlling interests of an associate  Hf & A &) JEIE A IR M 25 - -
Net assets excluding non-controlling R FE 12 IR AR ER A 2 LA SN
interests BESE 3,365,621 4,434,065
Gooduwill of an associate /NS oSk (793,787) (793,787)
Net assets, excluding goodwill BESE TREHE 2,571,834 3,640,278
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the E2 7N £ [B R B 4 A &) HY
associate: e HETTHI AR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership N @ TG FT B R L B 22.49% 22.49%
Group's share of net assets of the REEEEHE AR EEFE
associate, excluding goodwill TEEEE 578,521 818,699
Goodwill on acquisition LA i e g 818,527 818,527
Carrying amount of the investment HEMEREE 1,397,048 1,661,902
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(i) ZJBC (continued)

23. REE N TINIRE (&)
(i) PEIEA (&)

31 December

31 December

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

2019 2018

20194 20184

12H31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T ARET T

Revenue WA 3,137,643 3,361,086

Profit/(loss) for the year FRFE (BE) (1,152,000) 213,074

Other comprehensive income H 2 mss - -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FREmMBELEE (BBE)

for the year (1,152,000) 213,074

Dividend received 2R B - 5,569

Fair value of the Group's investment REBKENANEE 1,407,277 1,535,211

(iii) EkEE

(i) UGO

UGO is a strategic partner of the Group engaged in the
electronic commerce industry. In 2019, Maoye Commercial
purchased 8.00% of the shares in UGO and Zhongzhao
sold 0.69% of the shares in UGO. Subsequent to the share
transaction, the Group directly and indirectly holds 58.83% of
the shares in UGO.

There is no change in the composition of the board of
directors subsequent to the share purchase. Management
determines that the Group does not have control over UGO.

UGO is still considered an associate of the Group and was
accounted for using the equity method.

BREBANEBENEEHITENER
B R20195 K EREWBEK
BE8% Az K P IR (B BE0.69% K]
B -RBRHRZkE AEBE
B K B A B KEE58.83% M %17 ©

WREEESHERTER L 58
TE T 7 4 A B 3 4 5 o

BERBIDRESNEENBE AT
NMIRAEEEARR-
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Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31AILFE
23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. R E QN TNRE (®|)
(i) UGO (continued) (iii) 248 (&)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of UGO adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements:

TRIREKBED LS5 BRI T
2= 7l K B A B TS R 0 BR (B 4Bk

FHABRRNPBENBE

KRR ETS oCT@ 31 December

2019 2018

20194 20184
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTT

Current assets mBEE 219,634 242,446
Non-current assets IERBEE 180,903 112,298
Current liabilities neBE (85,110) (68,017)
Non-current liabilities EmBAEE = (96)
Non-controlling interests of an associate B % /A &) FF 4% A% I SR A 25 - -
Net assets excluding non-controlling R4 SE 17 AR AR SR AEE 25 DA SN
interests BEFE 315,427 286,631
Goodwill of an associate BEANTNEE - -
Net assets, excluding goodwill EESE TPREmE 315,427 286,631
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest e TY N /N e g ey
in the associate: EITHER
Proportion of the Group’s ownership A& E BTG P A R L 58.83% 50.14%
Group's share of net assets of the AEEEEEBE AR EETFE
associate, excluding goodwill RS 185,576 143,717
Goodwill on acquisition Uy B8 e 149,783 142,004
Carrying amount of the investment HERREE 335,359 301,254
2019 2018
20195 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREEFIT
Profit for the year FRFE 34,538 25,057
Other comprehensive income H 2w s - -
Total comprehensive income FEWEERE 34,538 25,057
Carrying amount of the Group's REEREE RFIRER
investment in the associate FREE 335,359 301,254
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

24. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

24. EWIRE

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
20195 2018%F
12A31H 12H31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
e PGCIREE R%Tr
Equity investments designated BERNAAEERFZER
at fair value through other HEHFAAELMPEBRD
comprehensive income: BEmiIgE
Listed equity investments FhERIEE (i) 923,245 838,810
Unlisted equity investments FEMEREE (i) 573,967 474,105
1,497,212 1,312,915
Financial assets at fair value through AR 7o BEFTE B H& 8t A
profit or loss: BEaramEE:
Listed equity investments EERRE 3,001 144
Other unlisted investments HtdE EmiRE (i) 206,000 208,080
209,001 208,224
1,706,213 1,521,139
Notes: B 3E
(i) The equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value through () BERFTEERAZEREBNEEIERE -
other comprehensive income as the Group considers these investments to Fit R E NI HE I E R AR AEBE
be strategic in nature. FTEEESH ALMEEKE -
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group received dividends HE2019F12A31RIEFE AEBMED R
in the amounts of RMB18,016,000 (2018: RMB30,116,000) from invested &N E YR A B A R #18,016,0007T (2018
companies. 4 AR #30,116,0007T) °
As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s listed equity investments R2019%F 128310 AL E&E FHH#ER
with a carrying value of nil (2018: RMB103,036,000) and unlisted BEEARASEBEIRITERMHIKIF (2018
equity investment with a carrying amount of RMB361,426,000 (2018: F£: AR #103,036,00070) R EEMEE A
RMB762,660,000) were pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans as AR #361,426,0007T (2018F : AR
further detailed in note 33. 762,660,0007T) K FE LR R ECER
REBRITERAER (R FE33 — 5%
) o
(i)  The unlisted investments at 31 December 2019 were wealth management (i) 72019512318 HIFE L HIRE B B AR

products issued by banks in Mainland China. They were mandatorily
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as their
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest.

MIRTERITHENER ARESORER
ETEEAXNASRMNE HUZERE
WARBEHARARNABEFEAEZHFTA
BaferEE-

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED & ¥ B IR A R A 7

205



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R R Y &

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

25. DEFERRED TAX

25, IEERI 18

Movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year LTREFNELERIBEEEREENEE
are as follows: B
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEAE
Deemed
Revaluation disposal of
of equity equity
Fairvalue  investments investments
adjustment  at fair value at fair value Amortisation
arising from  through other  Revaluation of  through other Deemed Deemed  of prepaid land Capitalisation
acquisition of - comprehensive investment  comprehensive  disposal of disposal lease ~ Withholding of borrowing
a subsidiary income properties income  asubsidiary of an associate payments taxes costs Total
B RERE
EEAULA BEANDA
EEHEE EEEE
BERERT  EREHA -4 LEDA
EEH  Hb2EUS Hb2ENE RERE BRRE Rfft# B
MEEFE  HESRE EHRENE  NEERE KR BenE HENAEH BAGE EERA a5t
RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB100 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB(00 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At1 January 2018 H018E1 518 1370636 81374 1,336,032 7380 174,09 - 25,310 33,649 404374 3432851
Deferted tax debied(credted) &R/ (3tA)
to equity during the year EamEERE - (114207) 308,728 - - - - - - 284521
Deferred tax charged/(credied) ~ EARE
to the consolidated statement 18/ (3tA)
of profitor loss during EfEhE
the year (note 14) (Rzt1a) (65.724) - 133458 - - 12,067 - 21,175 57,851 164827
At31 December 2018 and ROIBF12A31B R
1 January 2019 01951418 1,304,912 (32,833) 1,068,218 7380 174,096 12,067 25,310 60,824 462,225 3,882,199
Deferred tax debited(credited)
o equity during the year - 47139 199,033 - - - - - - 246,172
Deferred tax charged(credited)
fothe consolidated statement of
proft or loss during EiEhE
the year (note 14) (Hsk4) (59,078) - 108,780 - - - - 21905 32,285 109,892
At 31 December 2019 12019512318 1,245,834 14,306 2,176,031 7380 174,096 12,067 25310 88,729 494510 4,238,263
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

25. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

25, JEFERLIE ()

Deferred tax assets ELEHEEE
Losses
available for Unrealized
Provision for ~ Impairment Expensed offsetting  intercompany
Provisions retirement of current contract Lease againstfuture  transaction Advance from
and accruals benefits assets liabilities liabilities  taxable profits profit customers Total
pLsis
BER RI6ER hBEE BXH# ARER AR
RRER BE HE AhaE HESRE AANER APHEENR EFBR Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB1000
ARBTR  ARBTR  AR¥TRT  ARETRT  ARMTRT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2018 H201851A18 55,942 2,251 19,894 - - 89,086 384,438 33,092 584,703
Deferred tax crediteci(charged) ~ £RIGABER
o the consolidated statement A/ (1B
of profitor loss during the year ~ EREHB
(note 1) (1) 14468 14 3131 5657 - (7,168) 13,486 (26,856) 2732
At 31 December 2018 and RO1BF12A318 R
1 January 2019 01951718 70410 2,265 23,025 5,657 - 81,918 397924 6,236 587435
Deferred tax crediteci(charged) ~ £RMGABER
to the consoldated statement it A/ (1))
of profit or loss during the year ~ EEHE
(note 14) (Wizk4) 34,252 (389) 8,219 (1,880) 24,293 11,685 (36,154) 9,749 49,835
At 31 December 2019 20195124318 104,662 1,876 31,304 31 24,293 93,603 361,770 15,985 637270

The Group had tax losses of approximately RMB3,069,563,000 as
at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: RMB2,300,151,000),
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future

taxable profits.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

KEBR2019F12A31BHE AN AR
3,069,563,0007T (2018412 H31H : A
R #2,300,151,00070) M IBEE B 25
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

25. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 25, IEAE B IE ()

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

ERERIRE EWER T 5 A B EITHER

31 December

31 December

Tax losses IR EE

2019 2018
20195 20184
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
2,695,151 1,972,479

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-
making for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised.

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
tax losses of approximately RMB7,039,000 in 2019 (2018:
RMB8,063,000), the utilisation of which is dependent on future
taxable profits in excess of the profits arising from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences. The amount of deferred
tax assets is based on the profit forecast approved by the
management of the Group.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the application rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2019, the deferred tax liabilities
of undistributed profits not provided for amounted to
RMB463,125,000 (31 December 2018: RMB396,010,000).
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WERZEEREDRERBEE  JIH
EEBEENNBARCEE —RER I
RATKA]BEE E L T A ERD A E
AR SHR TR B 18 -

REBR2019F s BB B ERIRLER
HEEA ANREE7,039,0007T (20184 : A
R #8,063,0007T) ' ZBELERIBEEELSS
FRABUAR KRR ERE A EBBIRSG
RERH TR Z BB MEENFIE B
EHRBEENGBEANEAEBEEE
HENRFITERGTE -

RIEFBEMZEMSRE  INRIEEE RN
RABAEMIERECERSNRE
FIRB10%M T RBUNTBIRFTSE - %R
TF 200841 A1 H #& 4 & 3 A 722007
F12A31BERZEF o {8 B ER AT B 52 51
RI&EEH TR Bl AR ER BB E - 7]
FRARETERMMEHRBRE - NREBEFEAR
R EE5% o At - AN B R B A RER S AY
B8 A BRI BLF2008F1 H1B 2 A EE R
Bk B R G AR TEIR TS L

MR2019F12A31H AT REEHH
AOoBABEEHBEEEAARE
463,125,0007T (2018412 H31H : AR
#396,010,0007T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

26.INVENTORIES 26. 7€

ERRDLTST T8 31 December
2019 2018

20194 20184
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T

Merchandise for resale AEER M 212,221 241,810

Provision against slow-moving inventories 17 & B (B & (6,922) (6,940)
205,299 234,870

Movements in the provision against slow-moving inventories are FENGKEREZSHNT

as follows:

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

At 1 January ®1A1H 6,940 6,940
Amount written off during the year FNIZE (18) -
At 31 December ®12831H 6,922 6,940

m
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31H EFE
27. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 27 BEPYHE
2018
2018%F
Notes RMB’'000
BisE ARBFT
Land lease prepayments, at cost TR EER I (R AE)
At 1 January M®1A18 1,854,694 2,268,788
Transfer from prepaid land lease WIEA T HEFRIBEA 19(a)
payments - 13,391
Transfer to right-of-use assets EREGRESE 19(b) (33,450) -
Transfer to completed properties ERERASECTERDE
held for sale (337,466) (437,156)
Transfer from investment properties NIZEMFEEAN 18 24,633 9,671
At 31 December M12A31H 1,508,411 1,854,694
Development expenditure, at cost P ()
At 1 January M1A1H 3,831,576 3,617,281
Additions NE 1,578,604 1,014,339
Transfer to property, plant and equipment E&ZE{EME  BME MR E 17 (111,422) -
Transfer to completed properties ERSRHASECERDE
held for sale (708,014) (800,044)
At 31 December MW12A831H 4,590,744 3,831,576
6,099,155 5,686,270
The Group’s properties under development are held under AEBMBEEFRMEDREBERABOE
medium term leases and are situated in Mainland China. B W ALR AR B R BE o
Details of the Group’s properties under development pledged to AEEBAEMBRITEREERENEE
secure the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans are set out in note RERBPYENF BRI
33.
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

28. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. B B 5 RKIE

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
20195 20184

128311 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARET T

Trade and bills receivables EUE 5 RIE 28,742 26,935
Impairment VERED (20,144) (20,135)
8,598 6,800

The Group’s revenue from the direct sales of merchandise are
mainly on a cash basis. The credit terms offered to customers of
the Group’s sale of properties are generally three months to one
year. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and
has a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view
of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade and
bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
and bills receivable balances. Trade and bills receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice dates, is as follows:

AEBEEEHEDmOBRAZTENR S
REE REBNMEHERHETELPH
EEH-BR=EAZE—F -BURFY
BEREEEERE AEESFEREER
Y B SRR HF BRARIE ) - WER B (E B2 51 BD
FIAREEERR sRERESTHR
BB ER - B0 SCPT I e AN 5 B R UK
BORBERERBSRARESHILTPH
FE - BYBEASHEEAR AKH
VERAEBKEZFRBARERSERTE
EAER R E MG R EEE G BIRE
HHRBARZETE

R IR R BEA R R R R
AEIAOER B A AT 0 T

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
20194 20184
128318 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARBFIT
Within 60 days 60H A 3,356 3,836
61 to 90 days 61Z90H 998 1,464
91 to 180 days 91Z180H 1,838 445
181 to 270 days 18122708 202 531
271 to 360 days 271%360H 290 532
Over 360 days HBiE360H 22,058 20,127
28,742 26,935
Impairment BB (20,144) (20,135)
8,598 6,800

The balance of trade and bills receivables mainly relates to the
sale of properties.

EWEZRANGHEERHEYEM
A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

28.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

28. FEWWE 5 RIH ()

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade FEWE ZRIARREBEREZES T
receivables are as follows:

2019 2018

20195 20184

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5E AR® T AREFT

At 1 January R1A1H 20,135 20,974

Impairment provided/(reversal) WERE, (BE) 11 9 (839)

At 31 December M12A31H 20,144 20,135

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by product type and customer type and rating). The calculation
reflects the reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2019

RERE AR RBABEREETRE
DT LAE+§%§HH1ZTTES?§°?§§1%TE%
REABUBEBEANZEATF DD
A (BEmBR - 2P BRI &FR)&E
HIA 2t E - et B RN E B HA 5
B BRI B RRIT ROR R
ARG IR R AT SEEH

TXHINEHEARERAREREE
MEWE ZHRIENEERRER

R2019F12H31H

1to 6 6 months
months to1year to3years
1267 6EAZ1E 1Z23F
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBERXE 0.1% 0.2% 0.5% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BRE#AE (ARET ) 6,192 492 1,931 20,127 28,742
Expected credit losses (RMB'000)  BHIEEEE (ARBTL) 6 1 10 20,127 20,144
As at 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H
Past due
1106 6 months 1 year Over
months to 1 year to 3 years 3 years Total
1Z26f87 6EAZEIF 153F R RES Bt
Expected credit loss rate EHEEBRERX 0.1% 0.2% 0.5% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BEE#AE (ARETT) 5,745 1,063 - 20,127 26,935
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) TEHIEEEIE (ARETT) 6 2 - 20,127 20,135
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

29. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

29. AN FOR - Hitt B R EAR HtE &

OTHER ASSETS
<MLL [T 31 December
2019 2018
20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARBF T
Non-current assets EMBEE
Prepayments TR A 623,248 424,646
Current assets MENE E
Prepayments TEfT5RIE 257,715 587,427
Deposits and other receivables from KB FEREE D FHY
non-related companies e Rk E AW FIR 1,689,445 1,561,281
Deposits and other receivables from REBBATNZRER
related companies H b jE Ug 38 1,357,013 1,283,135
Loans to third parties RY¥E=ZHANER 700 10,000
3,304,873 3,441,843
Impairment of other receivables from P=EHE: ) VNG|
non-related companies H b e W R IERU (B (57,288) (21,352)
Impairment of other receivables from KB IERAEE AR
related companies E A fE W B R E (92,186) (37,646)
(149,474) (58,998)
3,155,399 3,382,845

The loans to third parties of RMB700,000 (2018: RMB10,000,000)
bear interest at 10% per annum is repayable in 2.5 months.

BRYE=7ERXRB/AKNK700,0007T
(20184 : A R %10,000,0007T) ° % &
TR F F R10%aT B AR2.5(E B A E
iﬁo

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other HMEWsIaEREBERESSHNT
receivables are as follows:

2018

20184

Note RMB’000

B 5 ARBTT

At 1 January R1A1H 58,998 48,600

Impairment provided REEE 11 104,117 10,459

Amount written off during the year — F 1% (13,641) (61)

At 31 December MW12H31H 149,474 58,998
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R R Y &

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

29. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER ASSETS (continued)

The balances due from related companies included in the above
are as follows:

290 FARIE - AtpBRFHER A E

= (8)

EXCPrELRE AR B R A R AERR AN

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
20194 20184
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBTT
Associates iR /NE]| 158,191 149,173
Fellow subsidiaries EESLIEN 132,478 215,394
Non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries i &/ TE’HH % % 3= 550,333 512,682
A company significantly influenced by —RXEXARBESEATE
a director of the Company /NG 516,011 516,011
Impairment of other receivables from EQ=la) NG
related companies ,Hﬁtﬁ WK IE R (B (92,186) (37,646)
1,264,827 1,355,614

Included in the balances due from associates is an amount of
RMB154,312,000 due from Commercial City, which includes
the loan and the related interest receivable at the amount of
RMB147,808,377 (31 December 2018: RMB138,306,821). The
loan bears interest at 6.5%-10% per annum and is repayable in
one year. During the year, the interest income generated from the
loan was RMB8,965,000 (2018: RMB8,182,000).

Included in the balances due from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries is an amount of RMB399,933,400 (31 December
2018: RMB399,933,400). The loan bears interest at 10.5% per
annum and is repayable in one year. During the year, the interest
income generated from the loan was RMB39,616,000. The loan
and the related interest receivable amounted to RMB483,804,365
(31 December 2018: RMB441,811,358). Further details are set out
to note 45 (i).

The remaining balances due from associates and other related
companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.
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JIE UK B 2 N ) A BR R B HE E UK R L
Z%%EAE%15431200073EEP@
FERLREREBEINESBEARE
147808377n(2018¢12)ﬂ31a AR
#138,306,8217T) * B % HZEWTGS%—
10%:H B8 BEAR—FRAER-FR &
ETEEMF B WA B AR ES 965,000
70 (20184 : AR #8,182,0007T) °

FEUTET B A B IEIE AR AR R4S B R B 1R
458 A K #399,933,4007T (2018412 A
31H : A K #399,033,4007T) - B & i%
FHEI05%:H B BAR—FRER-
FRN - EFRMEENFBRABARE
39,616,0007T - E X & FEWABREF.E A A
R #483,804,3657C (20184 12A31H :
AR#441,811,35870) < #E— 2 F IG5 H Y
R 3E45() °

& s Bgt 2 2 A B H b BB Bk 8 A SRR M 4
THo REER RENMREREEER-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

29.

30.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets were in Stage 1,
and a provision for impairment of RMB149,474,000 was provided.
Details of impairment assessment of financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 43.

The Impairment of other receivables from related companies
amounted to RMB92,186,000 at 31 December 2019, which
includes the impairment of the balances due from Shenyang
Maoye Property Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Demao Investment
Enterprises and Shenzhen Hezhengmao Investment Enterprise at
the amount of RMB55,457,000, RMB20,626,000, RMB8,248,000
(31 December 2018: RMB0, RMB20,626,000 and RMB8,248,000),
respectively.

The carrying amounts of the remaining other receivables that were
neither past due nor impaired relate to other debtors for whom
there was no recent history of default.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS

29. AR - b BRAER E B

= (8)

MN2019F12A31H st AFE F 18 -
HERFTEBEREMNEENSRMEE
BERE—RE BffRAERBEARE
149,474,0007T ° 5 B8 & £2019F 12 H 31
BIEFER AR FIE - E b EUGIE K&
HEMmEENSREENRENGHFBEH
AT FE43.

MR2019F12A31H KRB BEt A A A H
fth B U SR IE R E A A R #92,186,0007T
BREDAKELGEEEERR AR
FINEREECERFIAEREED
¥ 0 R E & 8 A R ¥55,457,0007T * A
R #20,626,0007T & A R #8,248,0007C
(2018F 128318 : ARMEOTT AR¥E
20,626,0007t &2 A R #8,248,0007T ) °

R 380 HR T R R (B O 7R £ L 1 B M RRR AR
0 {8 {8 62 L A 3T HA 1 & 4 R AL (] < 3R A0
BHANBREE -

. RERFEE/YWURERER

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBF T
Cash and bank balances Be MBETHES 1,232,571 3,304,911
Pledged deposits B 208,265 201,948
1,440,836 3,506,859
Less: Pledged bank balances for B REETIEERARITAR
construction in progress (119,963) (106,666)
Pledged bank balances for mortgages ~ AZBIKIFRIRIT 4 54 (52,128) (31,563)
Pledged time deposits for housing BERRESERTERN
fund loans TEHTFR (11,160) (53,719)
Pledged bank balances for bank loans — &R{TE FIKBARIT A & (10,000) (10,000)
Frozen bank deposits EREAIRITIER (15,014) =
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 1,232,571 3,304,911

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED & ¥ B IR A R A 7

208



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 30. RERBFEEYURBHER (#)

DEPOSITS (continued)

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits
were denominated in the following currencies:

AEBNREES MRS EFEYARERT
AIIATHIEEHIR -

31 December

31 December

2019 2018

2019 20184

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

RMB AR 1,435,866 3,495,967
Hong Kong dollar BT 2,399 5,138
United States dollar ETT 2,542 5,725
Great British pound W 10 10
Singapore dollar N T 19 19
1,440,836 3,506,859

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB1,440,836,000
(31 December 2018: RMB3,506,859,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one month and six months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances and bank
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.
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BEREHR AEBUARETENIR
& RIRTTHE 8% B A R 1,440,836,0007T
(20184128318 : AR #3,506,859,000
o) c ARBESEE R E B EMmER:
SRT - AR IR R B K BE (OMEBIBIEN) K
(EE-SERNEEERE) A5 H
P BIBIR I TINE EIEHIRIT
ANRESBBHEMER

PITRSRARE B RTFRRZHIUTD
R 8. o 5 HATE SRR ) 1 618 A R %
18T AR B 0 BV IR & R 36 bAA
FE 20 2 BTE 30K S BREURLE, » 48 1T 4 4
FITEAOEAMRLEERSL SBR
B R 1T -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 [E 3§ &



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

31. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

L ENEEZRERR
ENEFRANERERSHRIZER

HEVRRE DTN T -

31 December

31 December

2019 2018

20195 20184

128318 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Within 90 days 90K LA 2,100,267 3,211,374
91 to 180 days 91K E180K 25,935 133,195
181 to 360 days 181K E360K 4,881 152,632
Over 360 days 360K M £ 502,609 260,628
2,633,692 3,757,829

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally

settled within 90 days.

The Group’s bills payable amounted to RMB162,806,000 as at 31
December 2019 (31 December 2018: RMB678,700,000).
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R2019F 12310 » NEB M EN FIE
B AR #162,806,0007T (2018412 A31

H: AR#678,700,0007T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019

HE2019F 128318 L FE
32.DEPOSITS RECEIVED, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 32. EWRE  ErtERAREMENRIE
PAYABLES
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20194 20184F
12A31H 12H31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
53 AR¥TT ARETT
Contract liabilities EHEE (a) 4,727,033 4,606,115
Deferred revenue RFEMA 143,222 114,158
Deposits received Bz e 674,654 628,865
Accrued operating lease rental expenses FEIR&EH SR 65,080 89,728
Accrued utilities FRAARERAX 25,352 26,221
Accrued liabilities TBIREA 203,775 160,102
Accrued staff costs FEIREEBRY 51,510 52,159
Provision for coupon liabilities THHaERE 93,039 87,911
Value-added tax and other tax payables & {E 7 K H b & & 5 18 395,967 309,407
Payables for construction ERTREEMNTIA 2,213,343 1,553,899
Loans from fellow subsidiaries m— R &K B AR E AR (b)
IE 845,844 139,219
Loan from a company significantly MXARREZTERTEN (b)
influenced by a director of the Company 2 GIf& A E 574,069 491,495
Balance due to the non-controlling JERT—EIMT B A RIHERAE  (b)
shareholders of a subsidiary Epfef s 208,039 156,530
Other payables H b 308 (c) 1,003,698 838,240
11,224,625 9,254,049
Notes: et
(a) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (a) ARBEFBEWT:
31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
201912831 [EEgEEIRERIE 20184118
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARBTIT ARBFT
Sale of properties HEYE 3,509,900 3,299,401 1,251,040
Sale of prepaid cards HEFEMN R 1,217,133 1,306,714 1,148,665
Total contract liabilities SR EERE 4,727,033 4,606,115 2,399,705
Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver properties and AHAEBEERNMERTEE AN FIWE
presale of prepaid cards. The increase in contract liabilities in 2019 and KB 2019F R2018F AN BEREEE
2018 was mainly due to the increase in short-term advances received from HREEMREEYENRBNE SRS
customers in relation to the sale of properties at the end of the year. e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

32. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, ACCRUALS AND OTHER
PAYABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

The balances due to related companies included in the above are as
follows:

2. hizE B EAREMENK
15 ()

faE: ()

(b)

FTALXHENBIB A RAEERMT

31 December

31 December

2019 2018

20195128318 201812 A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBFT

Associates i A= /NG]| 4,172 453

Fellow subsidiaries EESGIEPNG] 863,186 149,886

A non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary ~ — B A A A FEFE AR AR 3R 230,384 156,530
Companies significantly influenced by XARRAREETERZENDE

a director of the Company 574,069 491,495

1,671,811 798,364

Included in the balances due to fellow subsidiaries is an amount
of RMB845,844,000 (31 December 2018: RMB139,219,000)
which includes the loan from Maoye Department Store Investment
Limited of RMB309,123,000, the loan from Shenzhen Maoye Group
of RMB330,000,000 and the loan from Maoye Group Limited of
RMB146,885,000 and the related interest payable. The loans of
RMB309,123,000 and RMB146,885,000 bear interest at 7.00% per annum
and the loan of RMB330,000,000 bears interest at 8.00% per annum.
The loans mentioned above are all repayable in one year. During the
year, the loan interest expenses amounted to RMB40,562,000 (2018:
RMB9,506,000).

Included in the balance due to companies significantly influenced
by a director of the Company is an amount of RMB574,069,000 (31
December 2018: RMB491,495,000) which includes a loan amounting
to RMB200,000,000 and the related interest and penalty payable. The
loan bears interest at 8.79% per annum and an interest penalty at
0.05% per day. During the year, the loan interest and penalty expenses
were RMB21,476,000 and RMB54,871,000 (2018: RMB17,833,000 and
RMB46,273,000), respectively.

The remaining balances due to related companies are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

The other payables are non-interest-bearing and will generally mature
within one year.

ENREAMNBRAAEHTRIEARE
845,844,0007C (20184128310 : AR
139,219,0007L) ' ZLHEREEXETERE
BRARREEFRARESZ09,123,0007T * &
Y (£ E) IRHERAR330,000,000
TREEEBERAAERERARYE
146,885,0007T MA & JE(S MHBAF B - B A
R #309,123,0007T & A & 146,885,000
TLEFNE7.00%:F 8 REFRARE
330,000,0007T 3% 4 #1| %8.00%xt £ o Lt &
FE—EMER-FR - BRMELENTE
F A AREA40,562,0005T (20184 : ARHE
9,506,0007T) °

ENZARAETEAFZENRDALHT
B4 AR #574,069,0007T (2018412 A 31
H: AR#%491,49500070) i & @BRIEE
A R #200,000,0007T & F& - 48 78 K 8 &
T4 o BEFILEN KL 79%:T B K EFXK0.05%
MEB-FRN BEFFEREEIEHS A
ANER#21,476,0007T & A R #54,871,000
7T (20184 : A R#17,833,0007T & A R
46,273,0007T ) °

R R B E MR T BN REEA &
BRERKEE-

HthENHERLEE  —RIR—FAEH -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019

HE2019F 128318 L FE
33.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER BT EMRITER KR HAER
BORROWINGS
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
2019%12A31H 2018F12A31H
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%)  Maturity  RMB'000 (%) Matuity ~ RMB00O
BRAIE (%) HEA AR¥Tn ECSESE) H#ME  ARETRT
Current k]
Interest-bearing bank SERITER
loans - secured -BHEF 4.45-790 2020 3,184,681  3.59-7.90 2019 3,300,341
Current portion of a corporate NEEHN
bond - unsecured IR
—mER - - - 450 2019 1,710,955
Current portion of long term REEBITERR
interest-bearing bank MEH»
loans - secured -BHEF 4.90-9.50 2020 4,540,000  5.15-7.01 2019 2,072,125
USD senior note - secured (b) ITEEFE-EHEMAD) 13.25 2020 1,549,700 - - -
9,274,381 7,083,421
Non-current FHH
Non-current portion of interest- SERTERM
bearing bank loans - secured FHEEH
-BHA 4.90-9.50 2021-2033 6,842,500 5.15-7.01 2020-2033 9,621,850
Corporate bond - unsecured (a) A AIEH—EEH(a) 750 2021 3,031 450 2021 3,020
USD senior note - unsecured (b)  ETEAZE-EEE(D) - - - 13.25 2020 1,533,632
6,845,531 11,158,502
16,119,912 18,241,923
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20194 20184
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Analysed into: ST
Bank and other loans repayable: RITREMEEEER:
Within one year —F R 9,274,381 7,083,421
In the second year REZF 2,588,031 6,191,002
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=FEFRF
(EBEEMEEAN) 3,048,000 3,142,000
Beyond five years REFUE 1,209,500 1,825,500
16,119,912 18,241,923
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

33.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

()

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

On 6 January 2016, Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha completed the issuance of
a corporate bond with a total principal amount of RMB1,700,000,000 on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange of the PRC. The corporate bond carries interest
at 7.5% per annum (2018: 4.5%), payable annually on 5 January in arrears,
and has a term of up to 5 years at maximum. The bond is embedded with
a right for the issuer to adjust par interest rate and a right for investors to
repurchase the bond at the end of the third year.

The carrying amount of the corporate bond at 31 December 2019 was
RMB3,031,000.

On September and October 2018, the Company issued senior notes with
a principal amount of US$150,000,000 and US$100,000,000 (the “Senior
Notes”). The Senior Notes bears interest at 13.25% per annum, payable
semi-annually on 27 March and 27 September, and will mature on 27
September 2020, unless redeemed earlier. The offering price is 100% of
the principal amount. On 14 November 2018 and 17 November 2018, the
Company redeemed part of the Senior Notes with a total principal amount
of RMB191,996,000 from the open market. There was no gain or loss from
the redemption. The carrying amount of the Senior Notes at 31 December
2019 was RMB1,549,700,000.

The Senior Notes are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

33.

FTERITERREAE R (8

GEE

()

201651 H6H  FYNKEBERTRLE
BERGTERETASRELATR LEE
ERXSGHERBET—DEASRBAARE
1,700,000,0007C F) R BIE 5 » R AIEFH IR F
FIE7 5% (20184 : 45% )58 REF1A
5AXN - BRAHRASTE -EEHEBEEEITA
AHABREEMNENERN REEERE=F
FRABEESHEF

2019 12A31H  RRIEHFNIREEAA
R #3,031,0007T °

MR2018F9A R10A  ARRIEITALEA
150,000,0003 7T % 100,000,0003 7T #) (&
AEB([BEEE]) BARRZFNE
13.25%51 /8 - A3 A27A RO AT A B F X
=R BRIERATEEE - & B 502020479 A
27 B B B - B 1TE AB100% A £ 58 - 120184
115148 %2018F 11 178 * KA At AR
TiZEE AL 48R AARK191,996,0007TH)
HoBLEE BREAELERSSBE-R
2019 12A31H  BAZEMNERAEEAA
R #1,549,700,0007T °

BARBEEBMERHMARAR M-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R R Y &

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

33.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(c) Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by:

(i) certain land and buildings of the Group with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB3,402,100,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB3,171,431,000);

(i) certain investment properties of the Group with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB8,394,183,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB7,693,131,000);

(iii) certain land lease prepayments of the Group with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB367,287,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB409,306,000);

(iv) certain properties under development of the Group with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB103,262,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB704,348,000); and

(v) certain stocks of Maoye Commercial with a carrying amount of
RMB2,893,380,000 (31 December 2018: RMB6,002,401,000), ZJBC
with a carrying amount of RMB1,228,738,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB1,320,401,000), and certain equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income with a carrying amount of
RMB858,567,000 (31 December 2018: RMB762,660,000).

(d) Except for the 13.25% unsecured USD senior notes of RMB1,549,700,000
(31 December 2018: RMB1,533,632,000) and the secured bank loan
of RMB107,281,000 (31 December 2018: RMB80,840,000) which are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, all borrowings are in RMB.

(e) Except for bank loans with a carrying amount of RMB8,030,731,000 (31
December 2018: RMB10,352,488,000) at fixed interest rates, all borrowings
bear interest at floating interest rates.

202 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 75 % Bl 422 i85 R A 7)

33.

FTERITERREAAGR (8

faE: ()

(c)

REEETRITEFA U T EERR

() *"5EBEEAFEHDAEARE
3,402,100,0007T (20185 12H31H : A
R #3,171,431,00070) K& T L1 42

=

F

(i "EEBEBEBFAELNARARKE

8,394,183,0007T (2018124311 : A
R7,693,131,00070) & TR E MY
SN

(i) AEBMEBEBDFEHDAARIE
367,287,0007T (2018412 A31H : A
R #409,306,00070) B0& T i ETE
R

(ivy A E B E®EFEDHDAEARK
103,262,0007T (20184F12H831H : A
R #704,348,0007T) N E THEF Y
E X

(v) XEXEBERTPRFANEARED A
A AR #2893,380,0007T & A R
1,228,738,0007T (2018412 A31H :
AR #6,002,401,000t X A R
1,320,401,0007T) W& T i 0 - RARME
B A A R #858,567,0007T (2018412
A318 : AR #762,660,0007T) #%& T
BERUANAABEFEEEZFHFAH
EEBENERIRE -

B A R #1,549,700,0007T (2018412 A31
H: AR #1,533,632,0007T) H113.25% &
X TTE L B & A R 107,281,000
(2018512 A31H : A K #80,840,0007T) A
BEMBITEFRAETETEIN FTEEHRY
BARE-

K BRI B A A R %8,030,731,0007T (20184
12A318 : AR¥10,352,488,0007T ) HI5E1T
BRIEE TR BN FIBERERZS
FIRETB -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

33.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER 3B.TEBITERREMER (&)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

In addition, Zhongzhao, Shenzhen Maoye Group, Maoye Commercial, Shenzhen
Maoye Shangsha, Maoye International Holdings Limited, Taizhou Maoye, Shanxi
Real Estate, Baoding Maoye, Baoding Land and Real Estate, Anhui Guorun,
Chengshang Group, Chengdu Qingyang Renhe Spring, Chengdu Renhe
Spring, Shenzhen Maoye Investment, Victory Commercial, Shenzhen Xinghua
Industrial Co., Ltd. ("Xinghua Industrial’), Northeast SME Credit Reguarantee
Co., Ltd., Mr. Huang Mao Ru and Mrs. Huang Jingzhang (spouse of Mr. Huang
Mao Ru), Mr. Zou Zhao Bin and Mrs. Chen Liping (spouse of Mr. Zou Zhao Bin),
Mr. Chen Zhe Yuan, Mr. Liu Jian Guo have guaranteed certain of the Group’s
bank loans with a total amount of RMB9,404,181,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB6,768,465,000) as at the end of the reporting year.

The Group had the following undrawn banking facilities at the year end:

faE: ()

BEAN  RIREFER Rk RN E (M) KE
AE RINEERE XERBRIERER QA
FMNXFE - LABHE REXEFE REFH
E ZHEE REE®E- RBETFECMER K
HCFER ORINKEERE ELZFHE - RYIE
EEERGARAR ([REEHE])  Fitp/
EEBERBRHBRAR  |mEMELEMERGF L
(EEMEENRS) FRBEERBEBFELLT
(BRBEENEB) RETEERZBERLEE S
AN £ B 48 58 5 A R 159,404,181,0007T (2018412
A31H : AR#6,768,465,0007T ) & THRITE R
REER

FR AEBRFETIARERNRITRERE

31 December

31 December

iHAREARRITREEE

Amount of undrawn banking facilities

2019 2018
20194 20184
128318 124318
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
627,600 1,410,000

34. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS

34. RARBRIRE

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

20194 2018%F

12H31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT ARBTT

Defined benefit obligations REBAEE 8,916 9,049
Long-term retirement benefits R HRIKAE A = i
Less: current portion of retirement benefits  J8, : —F A FH 2 AR K E T (830) (812)
8,086 8,248

The Group and the Company provide certain of the eligible staff
with post-retirement benefits pursuant to a retirement benefit plan.
The plan is funded solely by the Group on an actual payment
basis.

The latest actuarial valuation of the plan was carried out on 31
December 2019 by the Willis Towers Watson Company, using the
projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

A& B R R RIER KRB A B R &
fRiF R B TIRHURIKE A - &XGT &I 2
AEEREREHEERHRES -

51218 &% ¥748 E (5 (8 2 B Willis Towers
Watson CompanyfE2019F 128318 {#
FRiEEEMNEEREMBEEER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R R Y &

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

34. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(continued)

The principal actuarial assumption used as at the end of the

reporting period is as follows:

34 RIKERERE (|

REBEHRARANEERERRHT
LUNNE

31 December

31 December

PFrid & (%)

Discount rate (%)

2019 2018
20195 20184
12831H 12831H
3.25% 3.25%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at

31 December 2019 is shown below:

2019F12831H * EABRERM T =5
EAmHRmT:

Decrease in Increase in
net defined net defined
benefit Decrease in benefit
obligation rate % obligation
RERBMEE RERBNEME

FERED HEETR% FEEM

Discount rate I8 &

(176) 0.25% 182

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on
a method that extrapolates the impact on net defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions

occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income in respect of the plan are as follows:

FRAGEREDTEREEERRNE
HRBELINSEEHHRERNEDF
B BRI MRETE -

REFABRR MRA 2 HRERERN
BRAGH &I hT

31 December

31 December

2019 2018

20194 20184

12A31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETx ARET T

Interest cost FE AR 281 341
Net benefit expenses BN RS FER 281 341
Recognised in finance costs B E B AR R 281 341
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31H L FE

34.PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS 34. RIRE R B E (40
(continued)
The movements in the present value of the defined benefit AEBMNEENREZSHOT

obligations are as follows:

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARET T

At 1 January M1A1H 9,049 8,944
Interest cost B R 281 341
Pension payments made ERARE (965) (919)
Benefit expenses recognised in other O E 2 T UK 2 T 5R 4 M) RS2
comprehensive income 551 683
At 31 December M12H31H 8,916 9,049
The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair ATRNEERABEEAAEBEED
value of plan assets are as follows: s
2018 20184
Pension cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement gains in other comprehensive income
SABRMERAEAE AR ENENER BNE
Actuarial
changes Sub-fotal
Sub-fotal arising from included
included changesin in other
1 January Net in proft Benefit financial  Experience comprehensive 31 December
2018 interest orloss paid  assumptions  adjustments income 2018
Rt
EECs FAER
s FARES fitet FEMES  RoveF

1R HREE PR BNER REBT  ARBE IHE 12318
RWBONO  RMBOO  RWBODO  RMBON  RMBOOO  RMBODO  RMBO  RMBOXO
ARETL ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARMTR

Defied benefi bliations SEEIEE 8944 4t 341 919 663 - 63 9049

Beneft bty EaE 8944 3 341 919 63 - 63 909

=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31H EFE
34. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS 34 ERBEREE (50
(continued)
2019 20194
Pension cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement gains in other comprehensive income
TABERERERA HARt2ERENENT NS
Actuarial
changes Sub-total
Sub-total arising from included
included changes in in other
1 January Net in profit Benefit financial  Experience comprehensive 31 December
2019 interest or loss paid assumptions adjustments income 2019
R5%
BREE ARH
20195 FTABEN i 2EUEN R20195
1A1R RERE Mt BRI L EEELS NtE 12R31A
RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TR  ARMTn ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETR AR¥TR ARETR
Defined benefit obligations RERHER 9,049 281 261 (965) 551 - 551 8,916
Benefit liability BHEE 9,049 281 281 (965) 551 - 551 8,916
35.ISSUED CAPITAL 35. B BITR A
SR LT [T 31 December
2019 2018
2019 2018%F
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTE NS
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRERE:
5,140,326,000 5,140,326,0000%
(31 December 2018: 5,140,326,000) (2018F12A31H :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 5,140,326,0000% )
BREME010E T2 E B 514,033 514,033
Equivalent to RMB'000 ZEBEARBTT 460,153 460,153
During the year, there was no movement in issued capital. RERN  BETRABEES)-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31H IEFE

36. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 104 to 105 of the

financial statements.

36. [##E
AEBMAXBR FEHBECERE

BRE-

R B HRFEI04E106E 2R & &

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

(i) Contributed surplus

On 12 June 2015, Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha, Shenzhen
Demao Investment Enterprises (Limited Partnership) and
Shenzhen Hezhengmao Investment Enterprise (Limited
Partnership) (collectively, the “Vendors”) entered into a
framework agreement and a compensation agreement with
Maoye Commercial that the Vendors agreed to sell the
entire issued share capital of Shenzhen Maoye Department
Store Company Limited, Shenzhen Maoye Department
Store Shennan Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Maoye Oriental Times
Department Store Co., Ltd., Zhuhai City Maoye Department
Store Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Maoye Department Store
Huagiangbei Co., Ltd. (the “Target Entities”) to Maoye
Commercial at a total consideration of 1,161,542,889 shares
of Maoye Commercial.

According to the special audited accounts of the Target
Entities for the year ended 31 December 2018 audited by
Ruihua Certified Public Accounts, the total net profits of the
Target Entities amounted to approximately RMB827,507,000,
without taking into account the effect of non-operating gains
and losses. The amount was lower than the 2018 Profit
Guarantee by RMB12,196,400. Therefore, the 2018 Profit
Guarantee has not been met. According to the compensation
agreement, Maoye Commercial should be entitled to
repurchase 6,080,270 compensation shares at the cost of
RMB1 from the Vendors, representing approximately 0.52% of
the total consideration shares (the “Repurchase”).

The carrying amount of Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha’s
investment in the compensation shares of 6,080,270 was
recognised as a deduction of the contributed surplus. Upon
completion of such transfers, Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha's
shareholding in Maoye Commercial has decreased from
1,406,857,724 to 1,401,135,188 shares, representing a
decrease in the percentage of shareholding from 81.23% to
80.90%.

(i) BerDTE

MR2015F6 128  FII K EHE -
FIERILELE (BERER) X
JEEERRELE (BREE) (&
WA ZEER|) X EMEIE
EhmkmEls VAEEZEE
HREE m %Fﬁ%ﬁ FNEERE
Eﬁﬁ FIMEEEE XM AER
/mﬂl\***%ﬁﬁﬁﬂtﬁfﬁﬁﬁ
CHEMEEAEBRA
ﬂllﬁ%%ﬁié%%ﬁibﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬂwﬁ%
BR)NEMEETRAE BREA
1,161,542 ,8890% /% % B 2 A 15

RERESHMEKMEZ 2B EZ
EEE E2018FE12A31A ILEEE
MRAEEIZER  BIZEEFNBEE
%) B AN R #827,507,0007T (51K 3F
LM TE)  £8EMN2018
FRFRE HAEARE12,196,400
7T o B It - 20184 B FI R 25 I ok &
X o AR 15 17 18 5 5 “%Fﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁé
BARBATHKABZEE HRE
6,080,270/% # B (7 - 4R R E
70.52% ([ZEEE ) -

76,080,2700% 18 (& i% 19 & )& Yl
BEXRERENEREEERERA
BERESRNBRE ZSEEETK
% Wll&%ﬁfﬁm%ﬁ.ﬁiz
A% 2 01,406,857, 724 m 4 &=
1,401,135,188% * tHHE I FAR LI A

81.23% Nf&%80.90% °
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

36. RESERVES (continued)

(ii) Statutory surplus reserve

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current year and the prior year are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
104 to 105 of the financial statements.

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the PRC
subsidiary of the Group is required to allocate 10% of its profit
after tax to the statutory surplus reserve until such reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital of the PRC subsidiary.
Subject to certain restrictions set out in the PRC Company
Law, part of the statutory surplus reserve may be converted to
increase paid-up capital/issued capital of the PRC subsidiary,
provided that the remaining balance after the capitalisation is
not less than 25% of the registered capital.

36. f# i (4)

(i) EERBRLDE
FEBRAPR FFREBERE
BB IS R R E104E 1058 Z 47
EREEPHRED-

RIEH B R RDE - A5 B A B8
RAABHERBIZEN 2 10% A
EBHBNE  EEZAEEDDEM
BABEMARAZ50% < REBEFEA
BUEME & TRHI| - B0EE &R
PNERIEES SR NI O RN
SEBEITRA EERLEBRETS
DR 225% e

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

7 mEBRERERME

(@) EXFRERS

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to the
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB39,324,000
and RMB39,324,000, respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for plant and equipment (2018:Nil).

RER REBBERELXEHHEE
TSR ERREERTEARER
JEBELRE AREEZ9,324,0007T & A
R #39,324,0007T (20184 : 4 ) o

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) RMEETBHELEEBENEE
activities
2019
20195
USD Loansfrom  Loan from
Bank and senior fellow athid  Dividend Interest Lease
other loans note subsidiaries party  payable  payable  Accruals liabilities
mEZKE
/TR in DAGAN  EEZR
HiEx RERE BR EANER EARE EfAE  EHRE HERR &t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARMTR ARMTn ARETR ARETz ARMTr ARMTR ARMTR ARET:R
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 518 16,708,291 1,533,632 208,072 - - 188439 - 3,058,470 21,696,904
Changes from financing REBERERENEY
cash flows (2,138,079) 16,068 924,311 140,000  (165842) (1,219.813)  (60,077)  (436,851) (2,940,283)
New lease i - - - - - - - 3934 3934
Interest expense MEEX - - - - - 1,124,072 - 196542 1,320,614
2018 final dividend N1BERBRE - - - - 165842 - - - 165842
Non-controlling interests FERERER - - - - - - 60,077 - 60,077
Interest capitalised FSERL - - - - - 169,779 - - 169,779
At 31 December 2019 R2019F128318 14570212 1,549,700 1,132,383 140,000 - 262411 - 2857485 20,512,257
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37. mERERERMTE (&|)
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) RETHELEENEEH (K)
activities (continued)

2018
20185
Loans from
Bank and Usb afellow  Dividend Interest
other loans ~ senior note  subsidiary payable payable  Accruals Total
BlEESE

Bk £ RERA

AER  BARE  WER  EMRE  EMNE  EIEE a5t
RMBO00  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RWBIOOD
ARETRL ARBTR ARBTL ARETL ARETL ARETL ARETR

At 1 January 2018 R201851A18 17,780,326 1,958,697 388,573 - 148,012 - 20,275,608
Changes from financing cash flows REREREHENE (1,073904)  (425065)  (180,501)  (177,548) (1214756)  (119,922) (3,191,696)
Interest expense FIERY 1,869 - - - 1008319 - 1010,188
2017 final dividend 017TERHRE - - - 177,548 - - 177 548
Non-controlling interests FERRRER - - - - - 119922 119922
Interest capitalised FSERL - - - - 246864 - 246,864
At 31 December 2018 720185124318 16,708,291 1,533,632 208,072 - 188,439 - 18,638,434

(c) Total cash outflows for leases (c) HERERHAE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of AR RERNEER SR AE
cash flows is as follows: wm

2019

20194

RMB’000

ARE T

Within operating activities RIEETEEA (31,821)

Within financing activities REEEEA (436,851)

(468,672)
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A318 EFE

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 38.AEE

The law case of Taizhou First Department Store and
Fenglian Company

On 14 December 2011, Taizhou First Department Store Co.,
Ltd. (“Taizhou First”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered into
the Property Lease Agreement (the “Agreement’) with Liyang
Fenglian Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Fenglian Company”),
pursuant to which, Taizhou First will rent the property of Fenglian
Company to operate Maoye Department Store Liyang Pingling
Square Branch (“Liyang Store”). On 19 December 2014,
Fenglian Company filed a lawsuit at the Changzhou Intermediate
People’s Court (the “Court”) over the unilateral termination of the
Agreement by Taizhou First. On 17 July 2018, Fenglian Company
amended its litigation claims, requiring an order that Taizhou First
shall pay a property use fee of RMB81,126,129, a rental loss of
RMB14,316,376, a commercial service fee of RMB239,700 and
interest.

On 28 November 2018, the Court adjudicated that the lease
agreement and supplemental lease agreement entered into
between the two parties were terminated on 30 November 2014
and that Taizhou First shall compensate Fenglian Company for the
use of its property in the amount of RMB66,611,996, the interest
from 1 December 2014 to the date of full settlement which shall be
calculated at the prevailing lending rate stipulated by the People’s
Bank of China, and the handling costs relating to the case. The
court judgment also rejected the other litigation claims from
Fenglian Company. Both Taizhou First and Fenglian Company
appealed against the court judgment. The court hearing was held
at the Jiangsu High People’s Court L& mAAARZER) on 7
May 2019 and the trial is still in progress.

Upon consulting with the lawyer, the management of the Group
has made provison for the litigation of RMB25,000,000.

230 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED /% % BB 2 52 5 R A &
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R2011F125 148 NEE 2 B R 7
FMBE—EEHEROERAR ([F
M—F]REBLHEEREARA
A([8BAT R (GGERAERR)
(T ) BFEM— G AHE L QG
EERARKEXREDEER FEES

G (IEBIE]) - 20145128190 - &
BARUEMN—EETEFERGE AR

/N
AEMTAHRRARZER ([EE])IRE
A 20187 A17H  LEE N FHE R
HFERB R ELEMN—ELXNEERE
HE AR 126,129T - THEE L A
R#14316,376 L  BEREBARE
239,7007T M BB F B o

i3

M2018F11F28H  JAREHFEE H T LAY
HEMZERERBAEREN2014FE11 A
30BER TN —EBRFEALHARE
ERHEE AREK66,611,9967T * 82014
FI2A1HEBHMEHBOFE (Eh
BARBITRITREENERFRFAE) &
REEBFEE LEFRITRKE LA
BIEM R - TN — B R LA RS
HOARERORIEL FEF - AREE AR 2019F
S5A7THRIEE S B ARKERETT T
HTEHTT -

LHAEMER  AEEEEEC TR
VB B 5 A R 525,000,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31AILFE
39. COMMITMENTS 39. A&

(a) The Group had the following capital commitments at the end
of the reporting year:

(a) AEERBEFRENATEDRAGH:

31 December 31 December
2019 2018

20195 20184
12H31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREF T

Contracted, but not provided for, Bt T RAEFETA - BRIEREE
in respect of land and buildings 1,551,268 2,213,924

(b) Operating lease commitments as at 31 December
2018

The Group leases certain of its department stores and

(b) R2018F12A31 A WL HE &

REERBE A REH L EHOZ R

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

office premises under non-cancellable operating lease
arrangements. Leases for stores and office premises were
negotiated for terms ranging from two to thirteen years.
Leases for office equipment were with terms of 12 months or
less.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

BETEEEMERBAEWE - JE
BB AEMENRLO 2 AN
ToFEE13F - PARAERENHELN A
1218 A sl AR »

M2018F 128318 * NEEBIE A
BUHFE 2 MBI B R R R E MR
@RI

31 December
2018

20184
12A31H
RMB’000
ARET T

Within one year —F KN
In the second to fifth years, inclusive
After five years RAFUE

334,861

RE_FEZERF (EBREMFEAN) 1,331,287

2,178,355

3,844,503
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

40. BARE T X 5 R4 R

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (@) FA-BRUFFHRE H T P
financial statements, the Group had the following material SN REB @B TETT T3 E
transactions with related parties during the year: NE

2019 2018
2019%F 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFTT
(1) Recurring transactions REMRS
Operating lease rental expenses charged by: LRI E:
Tefsm%:
Shenzhen Maoye Group Co., Ltd. (i) & (vii) I E (RE) KR
AR () R (vil) - 27,082
Zhong Zhao Investment (Group) Limited RIKRE (5E)
(i) & (vi) BRAF()R (vi) - 19,790
Shenzhen Oriental Times Industry Co., Ltd. MR ERES
(i) & (vii) B AR DA R (vi) - 75,891
Shenzhen Maoye Property Business Co., Ltd. RITRENFEE
(i) & (vii) BRAE() R (vi) - 7,565
Chongging Maoye Real Estate Co., Ltd. EEXEHEARRA
(i) & (vii) (1) K (vii) - 32,765
- 163,093
Management fee income from the operation RETEEWERK
of department store: EEBERA:
Wuxi Maoye Property Co., Ltd. Shopping BHRKEEZEERAR
Centre Branch (i) & (viii) EWMHRLD AT
(i) % (vii) 755 755
755 755
Management fee expense from the operation RETEEWERN
of a department store: EEBYA
Shenyang Commercial City Co., Ltd. EHEENRD
(“Commercial City") (i) & (xiv) ARRAE ([E¥H])
(il M (xiv) 351 337
351 337
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 40.BAE¢ A X B4R (&)
(continued)

(a) (continued) (@ (&)
2019 2018
2019 2018%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR AREF T
(2) Non-recurring transactions (2) FLEMRS
Loans to: BUATEAFREER:
Commercial City (ii) EE2AD) - 120,000
Mr. Zou Zhao Bin (vi) & (ix) B R, 5t A (vi) R (ix) - 399,933
- 519,933
Repayment of loans by: UT&ARBER:
Commercial City (ii) EEA0) - 66,000
Victory Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (v) HEFREZRBR
NAE|(V) - 399,933
- 465,933
Interest income on loans to: BUATEHREERN
FEWA:
Commercial City (ii) EE () 8,965 8,182
Mr. Zou Zhao Bin (vi) & (ix) BB 5 4 (vi) & (ix) 39,616 39,508
48,581 47,690
Loans from: BUATEABEANER:
Shenzhen Maoye Group Co., Ltd. (i) & (xi) I EIEIENG)
BRAF()R(x) 543,000 223,000
Maoye Department Store Investment Limited KEBERBERRA
(i) & (%) ()R (x) 138,303 61,769
Maoye Group Limited (i) KESEBR AR - 144,370
681,303 429,139
Repayment of loans to: MU FEEER:
Shenzhen Maoye Group Co., Ltd. (i) & (xi) FIEE () RH
AR RF() R () 213,000 316,224
Maoye Group Limited (i) KESEBR AR - 144,370
Maoye Department Store Investment Limited KEBBEREBRAR
(i) & (x) ()R (x) - 149,046
213,000 609,640
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 40.B@5¢ 5 3 5 Bt 6k ()

(continued)

(a) (continued)

@

(%)

2019 2018
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREF T
Interest expense on loans from: BUATELFEAERN
FEmX:
Shenzhen Maoye Group Co., Ltd. (i) & (xi) AIEE (8RR
AR RF()R(x) 4,140 1,632
Maoye Group Limited (i) RKESEBR AT 13,657 1,188
Maoye Department Store Investment Limited KEBBEREBRAR
(i) & (x) (R 28,077 7,008
45,874 9,848
Banking facilities guaranteed by: T OB A ERORT
g%
Shenzhen Maoye Group Co., Ltd. (i) & (xii) I E (RE) K
AR A ()R (i) 2,180,000 1,780,000
Shenzhen Demao Investment Enterprises RIBERRERE
(Limited Partnership) & Shenzhen (BRE&%) R
Hezhengmao Investment Enterprise BEXRERE
(Limited Partnership) (iii) & (xii) (BRER) (i) & (xii) - 50,000
Mr. Huang Mao Ru and Mrs. Huang BRIEERRFELZ LT
Jingzhang jointly and severally (iv) & (xii) (£ R f@5))
(iv) R (xii) 4,647,281 1,485,540
Shenzhen Xinghua Industrial Co., Ltd. RYBEEER MR
(i) & (i) AR 2 7)) R (i) 100,000 -
Mr. Chen Zhe Yuan (xii) & (xiii) BR ¥ 7T 5% A (xii) B (xiii) 30,000 -
Mr. Liu Jian Guo (xi) & (xiii) 21522 B 55 A (xii) B2 (xiii) 10,000 -
Mr. Zou Zhao Bin and Mrs. Chen Liping PRHLERREF 2+
jointly (vi) & (i) (H7) (vi) B (i) 100,000 -
7,067,281 3,315,540
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31H IEFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(continued)

(a) (continued)

40. BB T3 X 57 B A 6 (48

(@ (&)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

(iy They are fellow subsidiaries of the Company.
(i) Commercial City is an associate of the Company.

(iii) Shenzhen Demao Investment Enterprises (Limited
Partnership) and Shenzhen Hezhengmao Investment
Enterprise (Limited Partnership) are companies
significantly influenced by a director of the Company.

(iv) Mr. Huang Mao Ru is a director of the company.

(v) Victory Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. is a non-controlling
shareholder of Inner Mongolia Victory Commercial
(Group) Management Co., Limited, Maoye Commercial’s
subsidiary.

(vi) Mr. Zou Zhao Bin is a non-controlling shareholder of
Inner Mongolia Victory Commercial (Group) Management
Co., Limited, Maoye Commercial's subsidiary. Mrs. Chen
Liping is Mr. Zou Zhao Bin’s spouse.

(vii) The operating lease rental expenses charged by the
fellow subsidiaries of the Company were determined
based on the underlying contracts as agreed between the
Group and these fellow subsidiaries.

(viii)The management fee income from the operation of
a department store was determined based on the
underlying contracts as agreed between the Group and
the fellow subsidiaries of the Company.

(ix) In January 2018, Mr. Zou Zhao Bin borrowed loans from
Shenzhen Department Store Co., Ltd with an aggregate
amount of RMB399,933,400, which bear interest at 10.5%
per annum. In January 2019, the Loan Agreement was
extended to December 2019. The loans have not been
repaid. In March 2020, the Loan Agreement had been
further extended form 31 December 2019 to 16 March
2020.

(x) The Group borrowed a loan from Maoye Department
Store Investment Limited with the principal amount of
RMB138,303,000 in June 2019, which bears interest of
7.00% per annum. The loan is repayable in two years.

() BEARRRRANARMBEAR -
(i) AEBARARNMBEAT -

(iii) FIEEZERE (BRERE) M

RNEEXKRELE (BERAE)
BREARPEEFBEATEND
Gk

(iv) EEWMEEABRARIES-

(v) ZHNREZERERQA[EXE
BEEMBRRARLHESMEE
(£EH) BRQAN—RIFERAK
o

(vi) B RKERENB AR
ARLHEZHEE (KB ERA
AIE) — BRI R - BREBF K
TRBIBELE 2B -

(vii) AN &) R R B R R E A £
EHEATIREBEAESEHRZSE
EE NG o =l R ok
%CJ

(ViDEEREBEEMBEBNEEBIA
RIBAEFEHRAARNBRZRZHNER
Rl EA BRI A BT -

(ix) A2018F 17 AN L £ 8%
INEEREBRABMBEAER
48458 5 AR 399,933,4007T
BEFRI05%TE - BERERK
HiR— - A2019E1 8 - B
HIEREZE2019F 128 - EFM &
B8 - JA202043 A EX s
20190F12A31AE—FERE
202043 A16H °

(x) R2019F6H AEBBHXER
BREERAREAER KX
%845 AR #138,303,0007T £
FR7.00%:1 5 BEREFE A
GEEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(continued)

(a) (continued)

40. BT 5 R 57 B A BR ()

(a (&

(xi) In 2019, Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha obtained loans
from Shenzhen Maoye Group with the amount of
RMB213,000,000 and RMB330,000,000 which bear
interest at 7.00% and 8.00% per annum, respectively. The
Group repaid loans to Shenzhen Maoye Group with the
amounts of RMB213,000,000 in 2019.

(xii) Certain of the Group’s bank loans were guaranteed by
Shenzhen Maoye Group, Mr. Huang Mao Ru and Mrs.
Huang Jingzhang, Xinghua Industrial, Mr. Chen Zhe Yuan,
Mr. Liu Jian Guo, Mr. Zou Zhao Bin and Mrs. Chen Liping
jointly and severally.

(xiii)Mr. Chen Zhe Yuan and Mr. Liu Jian Guo are the legal
persons of a subsidiary respectively.

(xiv)The management fee expense from the operation of
a department store was determined based on the
underlying contracts as agreed between the Group and
the associates of the Company.

The related party transactions in respect of items 40(a)(i)
and 40(a)(ii) above also constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related
parties as at the end of the reporting period are included in
notes 29 and 32 to the financial statements.

(c) Compensation of key management

(xi) R2019%F R X EmER R
JEZE(EE)RSERARE
213,000,0007¢ }.330,000,000
FF &5 R A7.00%K8.00% °
REBR2019F AR E (£
)BiEARE AR¥213,000,000
7":0

=T AKERITE R BRI
X (&E) \EXMLERKFL
T EEEX RETTEAL
B4 R AE MREF X
T AR R AR HER -

(xii)BRE TR M BRI EED IR
—RKHMTBRBEIEHIA

XivVEEREEMELNEREMX
THAR I AN S [ B K ] Bt R )
B IRRE A KT E -

(xii)

BIE ETRAFEI4AT - FH X
40(a)(i) &2 40(a)(ii) 8 &) B Bt 75 32 5 )

(b) EEREAEETT HURMEBAER:

©

B

REBRRERREBE T REE
REARFHIS BN ISR M 3E20 132

o

EZEEASHM

2018
20184
RMB’000
ARET T

#r MOERR
BKER

Salaries and allowances
Retirement benefits

4,705
106

4,158
134

4,811 4,292

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in note 8.
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(continued)

(d) The Group has rental contracts with five fellow subsidiaries
of the Group. At the reporting date, the Group had total lease
liabilities with fellow subsidiaries under non-cancellable
leases falling due as follows:

40. BATS 5 R 57 B A BR ()

(d) ZEECEAKED KR KB QA
RIAHESAMN NS AM N&E
RIBTATHUEESREERNB AR Z
RM B HHAE R EAEN T

KRNI CT@8 31 December
2019 2018

20194 20184
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARET T

Lease liabilities — current HEBE-H 72,759 -
Lease liabilities — non-current HEBE—FEANE 1,094,137 -
1,166,896 -

Under such rental contracts, the minimum lease payment
during the year was RMB176,600,047. As at 31 December
2019, the Group's right-of use assets relating to such rental
contracts amounted to RMB1,435,429,000 (31 December

BEZEHEEALH RTFRHRIE
MENZAARE176,600,0477T
MR2019F12A31H  AEE B B
EHeAHNNFREEEAARE

2018: Nil). 1,435,429,0007T ° (20184 12 A 31
A ) -
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

M ERMITEWNDE

RBEEHRREESH T ANEEEES
U

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2019 20195

Financial assets at FVPL
NAREESEEHES
FABRENEREE
S ELCT

as such
upon initial
recognition

Financial
assets at
amortised
cost

Equity
investments
designated
at FVOCI
EEHMNU
DREE
FEE
HBETA
Hit2H
U 23 WO 25
RE
RMB’000
AR%T R

Mandatorily
designed
as such

BEBERE
STEMN
TREE
RMB’000
AR#TT

RAO%
BRAREE
RMB’000
ARBTR

SRAE -
RMB’000

ARBTR

BT
RMB’000
AR¥T R

Financial assets

Equity investments designated

BERMAREREER

at FVOC| HEHH AEMEE
W riEmRE - - 1,497212 - 1,497212
Trade receivables FEWE 5B - - - 8,598 8,598
Financial assets included in FPATERRIE  EfEKR
prepayments, other PEREMEEM
receivables and other assets SHEE - - - 2,379,946 2,379,946
Loan to associates B YNGIE-EN - - - 114,724 114,724
Financial asset at FVPL UAR(EEELEES
FABERERERE 206,000 3,001 - - 209,001
Pledged deposits BEAER - - - 208,265 208,265
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReZEEY - - - 1,232571 1,232,571
206,000 3001  1,497212 3944104 5,650,317
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
Financial liabilities = =R GTENEREE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Trade and bills payables BB ZFTEREE 2,633,692
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals s+ AEMENFENEFERNLREAE 5,865,364
Lease liabilities HEBE 2,857,485
Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings SHERITERREMER 16,258,215
27,614,756
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

N EMTENDE @)

2018 20184
Financial assets at FVPL
WAREERE
BHEFH BN
EHEE
Designated Equity Financial
as such  Mandatorily  investments assets at
upon initial designed  designated amortised
recognition as such at FVOCl cost Total
HEEAN
RREE
=R
HEBEA
Hith2E HEHKA
R F EhEatior £ HER
Financial assets TREE REETE  BEEE RkE  EREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBEFT ARETT AREFT ARBTFT ARETE
Equity investments designated EEBUAAEBENE
at FVOCl BEZHHAAMRE
WaEnEsRE - - 1312915 - 1312915
Trade receivables fEWE 578 - - - 6,800 6,800
Financial assets included in T ATBII IR - EA R
prepayments, other FEREMEEM
receivables and other assets EREE - - - 2334537 2334537
Loan to associates REEARNER - - - 114,724 114,724
Financial asset at FVPL WRRBEFEAEES
TABENEREE 208,080 144 - - 208,224
Pledged deposits BEAER - - - 201,948 201,948
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBeEED - - - 3304911 3,304,911
208,080 144 1,312,915 5,962,920 7,484,059
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
TRE SR
Financial liabilities TREE AENTRARE
RMB’000
ARETT
Trade and bills payables BB SHFELERE 3,757,829
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals s AE A EM ZIE R EFEROSRARE 4,124,241
Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings SERITERREMER 18,241,923
26,123,993
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

42.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

RIBTENAARBERAAREEE

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

m

AEESRTEAE (FABEEAAEES
EREERIN) WEREEBSEA AEES
O

Carrying amounts Fair values
REEE AREE
RPRDELET LT 31 December [RINVEILII@ 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
20194 20184 20195 20185
12831H 12H31H 128310 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT ARBTR AREBEFT
Financial assets cCREE
Equity investments designated EEBUAAEBETER
at fair value through other HEZ2E: A HM2A
comprehensive income WRMERRE 1,497,212 1,312,915 1,497,212 1,312,915
Financial assets at fair value IRAREEAEEEEZS
through profit or loss FABRRNERERE 209,001 208,224 209,001 208,224
1,706,213 1,521,139 1,706,213 1,521,139
Financial liabilities cRAE
Interest-bearing bank loans and HERITERREMER
other borrowings 16,119,912 18,241,923 16,119,912 18,241,923
Other long-term liabilities HipRHEE 138,303 - 138,303 -
16,258,215 18,241,923 16,258,215 18,241,923

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, the current portion of pledged deposits, trade
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, loans to
associates financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, amounts due from/to related parties, dividend receivable
and amounts due from/to subsidiaries approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
manager reports directly to the chief financial officer and the
audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the value of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.
The valuation process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The fair value of the liability
portion of the convertible bonds is estimated using an equivalent
market interest rate for a similar convertible bond.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices. The fair values of unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
have been estimated using a market-based valuation technique
based on assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the directors
to determine comparable public companies (peers) based
on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and to calculate an
appropriate price multiple, such as price to book (“P/B") multiple
and price to earnings (“P/E") multiple, for each comparable
company identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing
the enterprise value of the comparable company by an
earnings measure. The trading multiple is then discounted for
considerations such as illiquidity and size differences between
the comparable companies based on company-specific facts
and circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to
the corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted equity
investments to measure the fair value. The directors believe that
the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation technique,
which are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related changes in fair values, which are
recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and
that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by banks in Mainland China. The
Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments
by using a discounted cash flow valuation model based on the
market interest rates of instruments with similar terms and risks.

RE/MTENAARBERAIAEBEE

& ()

BRucRass B EIN EREERAE
MRARBEDNERENRSTRHE)
BT ANHOSREIR AT
ARBEFEARFEAEE:

AEERREMERN AR EEEZRE
BHIRRIRE R EE B EBBLUER F
SRk KT HERA T AR IES
ML FAETTIT B ARG E - A R A A E S
B ER D D EERRE L AT RE
FERNERTSMNEETEHE -

SR EN AR BERETSRE
B HERARREEFELEZHTA
Hp2HEKEMR EHERIRENDR
BEEBENTZNGEERMAELRRL
PEFEABEMESK L R T AERMmE
THEE-HEZREEFRETE RE-
ERERREBEEALBRARATE (R
%) UshE—RA WA LR E A EE
EMEBREE - OMEXR ([WRE))E
BETREX((HTER])EH-ZEEI
BALBRARNEREERABNGE
Bt E X SEHERARBEARFES
ERBERRALERARZENRE MR
REZEREZRARTUNR - EMBRE
BEMNIF LS R E W EER N
BEUFEAARBE-EFTRA HAE
RAEPBIRAR B EERMELNG
BRAAREENMCHREEMEZEE SN
REBEEREZHBEIE  URHZFHAB
RERESHRE/EENEE-

AREBEIF EHRE - P BEAMIRTT
BITMEYER - AERECRBENAE
BOUER M RER N TANTISHENHT
RAESHERAGBIZSIHLTREN
NAfEE-
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HZE2019F12A31H EFE
42.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 2.TEMTENAARBERAAEERE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) Y E )
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the T X8t 7A20194F 22018124318 &
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative BITEGFEMANEATEREAE
sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2019 and 2018: FEBRBED:
Valuation Significant unobservable
technique input Range Sensitivity of fair value to the input
RERM BEATABEBAE B/ ARBEEHBAENSRE
Unlisted equity Valuation Average P/E multiple 11.88 - 3271 5% increase in multiple would
investments multiples of peers result in increase in fair value by
FELmEREA fE1EEE \ RMB590,000
EESSohiF & 11.88 - 327.1 &8 EF5% G
DA EEE A R590,0007T
Average P/B multiple 0.82-2.12 5% increase in multiple would
of peers result in increase in fair value by
RMB2,602,000
BESSSInEiES 0.82-2.12 EH EA5%HEEH
NREELEMNARK2602,0007T
Discount for lack 17.40% — 22.49% 5% increase in multiple would
of marketability result in decrease in fair value by
RMB781,000
Ef O RABEMMTER 17.40% - 22.49% 8 EF5% G
RAEBERD ARK781,0007T
Fair value hierarchy NREEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy TERTEFPLAEESRTANAAEAER
of the Group's financial instruments: EER:
Assets measured at fair value RAREBEFENEE
As at 31 December 2019 A2019612831H
Fair value measurement using
ARBEFERR
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BERTHE EBEATUEE
ERMIERE BWAE WAE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B EH E={ st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR
Financial assets at fair value ARBEEGTEEEEZ
through profit or loss SABENEREE 3,001 - 206,000 209,001
Equity investments designated EERBNALBEFEAR
at fair value through other 2 AEMEE
comprehensive income W mEmEE 923,245 - 573,967 1,497,212
926,246 - 779,967 1,706,213
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Assets measured at fair value (continued)

As at 31 December 2018

RE/MTENAARBERAIAEBEE
& (@)

BRARBEFTENEE (&)
MR2018F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

ARBEGEER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BT, BAWEBE BANTIHE
HiE BWAE BAE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£/ E_MH E=/R &t
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBEFT AREFT ARETT ARBEFT
Financial assets at fair value MARBEGEEHEH
through profit or loss AR ERERE 144 - 208,080 208,224
Equity investments designated EEBUNARBEFEAH
at fair value through other BEFAELMEE
comprehensive income WammEaikE 838,810 - 474,105 1,312,915
838,954 - 682,185 1,521,139

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
value as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
and out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities

(2018: Nil).
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank loans, amounts due from/to related parties, and
cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with floating
interest rates.

The effective interest rates and terms of repayment of the interest-
bearing bank loans of the Group are set out in note 33 above.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact of

43. M AR EER S

= MBUR

K%E’J‘EE%@IE@%HE@E??E

R JEU A AR S IRA R R & R
/\”*T M-ZETMTANTIZENER
ZISEIE’J?%*E*iﬁ&’;ﬁ%ﬁi AEBEBRE
EWE ZFRBANENEZRBEANS
Eﬁ@iwﬂéﬁ?&%ﬁmﬁ%&i@%g
AA%%‘Q

Zli’iléﬁémﬁlﬂﬁﬁ?EZExH b BL4E
FERR INERR - FERR RENHE
[ Be K% A 1B e B “%Agﬁﬁﬁz’;fﬁ%ﬁ
EERRMKE  LERRBAFRAT

A= @k
AEEAT T RERNEE TN KA
REMRRH TSN EEEE -

AEBEEFBRITEROBEEREN E RIER
R B £ P FESS

T%EIJ/T?EAE?%¢F$El%%)féﬁﬁﬂ}?ﬂ
(BBRFEEFRNTE) RASE DR
FAEREMEEERFTENIBER T EHH X

floating rate borrowings) and the Group’s equity during the year. AR E B SRE -
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in basis points before tax in equity*
2E BB AT i@
#g/CAL)  #m/ OB & (Rd)
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTTT ARBTTT
31 December 2019 20195 12831H
RMB AR 100 (113,608) -
RMB ARE (100) 113,608 -
31 December 2018 2018 12A31H
RMB AR 100 (126,907) -
RMB AR (100) 126,907 -

Excluding retained profits
* TEEREAET
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43.Bi#EMEE BEMBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk SN L s

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk primarily relates AEEZENIINERRFZHEAEEE
to the Group’s foreign interest-bearing bank borrowings, the SN BIRTTIESR B ZEBRURAEY
currencies of which are different from the functional currency. EEBTRINEEETE-

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of T &R BRI E B R AN & B B 5 A1 A1 E
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the ERBEEMEBERFETENERTASE
US$ exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the TEXSEAEEHSIENEBEERK
Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in fair value of monetary BEMNARBEZSHNEHE -

assets and liabilities).

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in US$ rate before tax

EnER B B A R
EH(THE) &M/ (BD)

% RMB’000
% ARBF T
2019 20194
If RMB weakens against MARKERETRE
the United States dollar (5%) (76,053)
If RMB strengthens against MARKERETIEE
the United States dollar 5% 76,053
2018 20184
If RMB weakens against IMAR R ETE(E
the United States dollar (5%) (187,466)
If RMB strengthens against MAR¥EHRETIEE
the United States dollar 5% 187,466
Credit risk EERE
The Group's sales of merchandise are mainly on a cash basis. REBEXZUARHHEE M HRER
For credit sales, the Group trades only with recognised and HER  AEEERER REERTH
creditworthy third parties. In addition, receivable balances are FEZHEIRG WM AEBRFEEE
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad FEWFIEE S ZRER I TE X -

debts is not significant.
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2019

43. AR EE B EMBCR (&)

EERE (&)

BRA MO F KB 7 45
TRETMIZAIIBENRKEEEZEHR
F(TEERNBEBREER BRIFEHA
B % BN BHE ) B A) JE BN R H At & R AT
B SENEEEEEREAEERRKMO
DERBEERDE -FI2ISEATREE
MEREE(E -

A2019F12A31H

Lifetime ECLs
AERAFHAREESE
Simplified
Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
BB EZRE K473 gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥Tn AR¥ETRT AR%Tx
Loans to associates RS D AER 114,724 - - - 114,724
Trade receivables* s E 55" - - - 8,598 8,598
Financial assets included in FF AT IR - E b IR
prepayments, other receivables REMEENSRERE"
and other assets
- Normal** —EE* 2,268,172 - - - 2,268,172
- Doubtful™ — A g 226,498 - - - 226,498
Pledged deposits BHEAER
— Not yet past due — WA 208,265 - - - 208,265
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY
— Not yet past due — AR H 1,232,571 - - - 1,232,571
4,050,230 - - 8,598 4,058,828
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43. B % E ks B2 B ZE M BUR (4)

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2018

&Rk (4
RAMORFRER I (E)

MR2018F12H31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+ZEATEH
FEE#E A REREREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FBE FEZRE  E-RR #lx @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETRT AR®Tx
Loans to associates R E AR ER 114,724 - - - 114,724
Trade receivables* [EWE 5 5 - - - 6,800 6,800
Financial assets included in SFARRTFRIE - B A R
prepayments, other receivables REMEENSHEE"
and other assets
- Normal* —EE* 2,142 471 - - - 2,142 471
- Doubtful™ — ] g 306,790 - - - 306,790
Pledged deposits BEAER
— Not yet past due — AR H 201,948 - - - 201,948
Cash and cash equivalents REeRBLEED
— Not yet past due — [ AR 18 3,304,911 - - - 3,304,911
6,070,844 - - 6,800 6,077,644

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
note 28 to the financial statements.

** The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are
not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to

credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 28
to the financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31H EFE

43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43. B EMEE B EMEE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash

equivalents and have available funding through bank and other
borrowings to meet its working capital requirements.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was as follows:

On demand

RMB’000

AR®T R

Lease Liabilities HEBE -

Trade and bills payables [ENE HHBERERNER -

Deposits received, accruals Blize EHAERAR

and other payables Hb A 5RA -

Interest-bearing bank and HERTERREMER

other borrowings -

HBIERR
AEMOBEARKERAS KRS F
B9 30 AR R RIS R A%
1S FECES

AEBERBEEERBDESAE T AN
ERESERNER HATAZESH
TAREREE (PIEKE S HIE)W
IMBERARREESNREARERE -

RBERR - ERAOERREREROE
BMAEGENIEERIT:

31 December 2019
2019%12831H
Less than

1 year Over 1 year Total
—£R —FHE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AR%T R AR®T R

259,977 3,611,456 3,871,433
2,633,692 = 2,633,692
5,865,364 = 5,865,364

9,917,466 8,594,852 18,512,318

18,676,499 12,206,308 30,882,807

31 December 2018

20184 12A31H
Less than
1 year Over 1 year Total
—ER —FUE Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTRT  ARETT

On demand

BREXR

RMB’000

ARMEFT

Trade and bills payables ERHESHBERENEE -

Deposits received, accruals Blke EHERK

and other payables Hh e 308 -

Interest-bearing bank and HERITERREMER

other borrowings _

3,757,829 - 3,757,829
4,124,241 - 4,124,241

8,304,754 12,749,500 21,054,254

16,186,824 12,749,500 28,936,324
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43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43. Bi i B k& B3 B 2 M B (&)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the level of equity indices
and the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to
equity price risk arising from equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income (note 24) and
individual equity investments included in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (note 24). The Group’s listed equity
investments are listed on the Shenzhen and Shanghai stock
exchanges and are valued at quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period.

The market equity indices for the following stock exchanges, at
the close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to
the end of the reporting period, and their respective highest and
lowest points during the year were as follows:

B ER

P (8 2 2 52 45 A P4 48 BIUK S K 3 Bl &
SEBEEFEFNRAELSQIABET
R B e o 7 S (B T 4 e AR (B R B R B 4R
ERNAREBEFELEZEB T AEM
EEWmHERIE (KE24) RIARR
BEAELEEH T ABENEREE
B E R R IRE (K 5E24) - NEE R £
MRERENRI N EBESX S E
W R EE AR mERE

RERFEOHREHRRNRL 5 H &K H]
RERES - TOIE R 5 FTH) 5 R R 8L
REZERNFANKZS REEMHMT

Year ended Year ended

KRN LTET) [ofT R W 10T LIV 31 December 31 December

2019 2018 2018

Bz

20184

20195 20184 12H31H

12A31H 12A31H I

High/low High/low

5/1& &=/

Shenzhen - A Share Index R AR 2L 1,802 1,790/1,802 1,326 1,333/1,315
Shanghai - A Share Index FB-ABREE 3,050 3,031/3,052 2,494 2,505/2,478
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43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43. B EMEE B EMEE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated
as lease liabilities plus interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits.
Capital includes the liability component of convertible bonds and
equity attributable to owners of the parent. The Group'’s policy is to
keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as
at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

EXER
AEEEREENTERRERERELE
FroafRmEEFRRBENEARLLE L
MRHEEBI ARRAERKEE-

AEERBLEEMR NN ES LN EEE
ENRRESZEEAZREEREE - A
BRABREAREE  NEBENEAERS
FRE R AR B~ MR R IR IE & AN BT
f% o REE N Z AR INEBHE DI H) B A48 E
IR - R E 2 20194F K2018F12H31H
HFEER BEATERE BEAKERFIT
EEE RS-

AEBRBERNBGEL REITENR %L
RIZEBFHEGUANERN EEEFEZ
MEtE - B FHBIZEEa G BRIT
ERREMEFREEEREEED R
BEEBEIGTE EABEITBREARE
A BETD M ARHEE AEEEZE-
AEEMNBRERBERAB B E2HFZR
A B B K - ;20194 2018412 A 31

HHEREBBELEMT:

KEW Tl Tl 31 December

2019 2018

20194 20184

12A31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Lease liabilities HEAE 2,857,485 -
Interest-bearing bank loans and STEIRITER R E ALK

other borrowings 16,119,912 18,241,923
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and BBRekBeEEBYR

pledged deposits BEBER (1,440,836) (3,506,859)

Net debt B 17,536,561 14,735,064

Equity attributable to owners of the parent &2 & #E A AFE (L& &= 13,030,346 12,300,008

Adjusted capital LG AR 13,030,346 12,300,008

Capital and net debt ERREEFE 30,566,907 27,035,072

Gearing ratio BEARBREEE 57% 55%
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44. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

Guarantees amounting to RMB731,896,900 are given to banks
with respect to mortgaged loans procured by the purchasers of
group’s properties. Such guarantees will be released by banks
upon the issuance of the real estate ownership certificate to the
purchasers or the satisfaction of the mortgaged loans by the
purchasers, whichever is earlier. In the opinion of directors of the
company, the fair value of the financial guarantee contracts is not
significant.

45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F[E 3§ &

Pursuant to the relevant terms of a loan agreement made
on 12 December 2017, Shenzhen Department Store (the
“Lender”), a subsidiary of Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd,
agreed to provide a term loan to Mr. Zou Zhao Bin (the
“‘Borrower”), in the principal amount of RMB399,933,400,
bearing interest at a rate of 10.56% per annum. The loan is
secured by a share pledge agreement dated 29 December
2017 executed by Victory Investment Holding Co., Ltd in
favour of the Lender with respect to a 15% equity interest in
Victory Commercial (the “Share Charge”).

The maturity date of the loan was 31 December 2019.
As of the maturity date, the Borrower has not repaid the
principal amount and interest of the loan in the amount of
RMB483,804,365 (note 29).

According to the valuation report issued by the valuer on
11 March 2020, the value of 15% equity interest in Victory
Commercial amounts to RMB585 million, which is enough to
cover the principal and interest of the loan.

On 16 March 2020, the Board announced that Maoye
Commercial Co., Ltd (the “Purchaser”), Victoria Investment
Holding Co., Ltd (the “Vendor”) and the Borrower have
entered into the supplemental loan agreement, pursuant to
which the Vendor will repay the obligations under the loan
together with the Borrower to the Purchaser, and the maturity
date of the loan agreement had been further extended from
31 December 2019 to 16 March 2020.
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45.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

(continued)

On 16 March 2020, the Board announced that the Purchaser
entered into the acquisition agreement with the Vendor and
the Borrower, pursuant to which the Vendor has conditionally
agreed to sell and the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to
purchase 15% of the equity interests in Victory Commercial,
for a consideration of RMB577.5 million. Meanwhile, the
Purchaser entered into the fee settlement agreement with the
Lender, the Vendor, the Borrower and Victory Commercial,
pursuant to which the consideration of RMB577.5 million will
be paid as follows: (i) RMB491.7 million will be set off against
the principal and interest of the loan owed by the Borrower to
the Purchaser (and its subsidiaries); (ii) RMB37.7 million will
be set off against the amount due from the Vendor to Victory
Commercial; and (iii) the remaining RMB48.1 million, after
negotiation between the Purchaser and the Vendor, does not
have to be paid by the Purchaser.

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) continues
to spread across the world.

The COVID-19 has certain impact on the business operations
of the Group in particular the retail store operations. In
adherence to the guidelines of the Chinese government
and to protect the employees from infection, the Group has
temporarily suspended the operations of its retail stores since
the end of January in 2020. With the COVID-19 gradually
under control in China, the Group has resumed the majority of
its suspended retail stores according to the regional policies
from 18 February 2020 to 2 March 2020. However, the daily
business hours of the retail stores, which is still restricted
until now, is about 4 hours less than before on average. The
degree of the impact depends on the situation of the epidemic
preventive measures and the duration of the epidemic.

The Group will keep continuous attention on the change of
situation and make timely response and adjustments in the
future, assess and react actively to its impacts on the financial
position and operating results of the Group.

Given the dynamic nature of these circumstances, the related
impact on our Group’s consolidated results of operations,
cash flows and financial condition could not be reasonably
estimated at this stage and will be reflected in the Group’s
2020 interim and annual financial statements.
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

46. 71 8] B B AR R &=

BRAARANBERRYHRRKNE

HESImT

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
20194 20184
12H31H 128318
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRARIKRE 139,761 139,761
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR RIE N H At B W 5ROR 43,033 2
Dividend receivable FEU R B 1,249,587 1,228,192
Due from subsidiaries NI E/ ] 1,994,715 2,383,694
Due from related parties JE Ui B Bk 5 1B 28,116 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 4,303 4515
Total current assets RBVEELE 3,319,754 3,616,403
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals HMERNFIERESER 66,457 152,569
Dividend payable FE SRR B 22 -
Due to subsidiaries FEAST B B A R FUIA 169,193 466,575
Due to the immediate holding company ANk NCIE ) 440,112 64,574
Interest-bearing bank loans and other STRRITE R R E M E R
borrowings 1,656,981 80,840
Total current liabilities B REERE 2,332,765 764,558
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 986,989 2,851,845
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBARE
LIABILITIES 1,126,750 2,991,606
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans and SFTERITER R EAE K
other borrowings - 1,533,632
Other long-term liabilities HEREEE 138,303 =
Total non-current liabilities MBI B ERRE 138,303 1,533,632
Net assets BEFE 988,447 1,457,974
Equity =
Issued capital BT AR 460,153 460,153
Reserves (note) i (M) 528,294 997,821
Total equity G ey e 988,447 1,457,974
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

46. A A B BT FE AR R 3R ()

GES

RABIHBENBEHINT

Equity Retained
Share  component Capital Exchange profits/
premium of convertible redemption Contributed  fluctuation (accumulated
account bonds reserve surplus reserve losses) Total
ARBRES BRARE HNERE BEEAN/
REPEER HNERHS i BaaEs wE  (RiER) @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETT ARBTR AR%Tn AR%TR AR¥Tn AR%Tx
Balance at 1 January 2018 20184
1R1B 8 1,575,565 55,538 27770 152,671 (167,888) (216,396) 1,427,260
Total comprehensive loss for the year & A2 E E{EA%E - - - - (95,074) (334,365) (429,439)
At 31 December 2018 #2018 12A318 1,575,565 55,538 27,770 152,671 (262,962) (550,761) 997,821
Total comprehensive loss for the year & A2 T E{EA%E - - - - (146,705) (322,822) (469,527)
At 31 December 2019 2019128318 1,575,565 55,538 27,770 152,671 (409,667) (873,583) 528,294
The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess of KA EHBSREMBERE R RRN
the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired, over MARBEBBRBARARIRMEIT L
the previous nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in RDBAEBE Z5E-

exchange therefor.

47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue BB MERER2020F3H24B EEESH#
by the board of directors on 24 March 2020.
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